
Monday, May 11, 2020 AGENDA Page 1 

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 

SPECIAL MEETING 

MONDAY, MAY 11, 2020 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.   Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   
 
To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android 
device: Use URL - https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89665366733. If you do not wish for your name 
to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself 
to be anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 and Enter Meeting ID: 896 6536 6733.  If you wish to 
comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 and wait to be recognized 
by the Chair.  
 
Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee 
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently 
closed and cannot accept written communications in person. 
 

 

  

1

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89665366733


Monday, May 11, 2020 AGENDA Page 2 

AGENDA 

Roll Call 

Public Comment 

Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: April 27, 2020

2. Review and Approve Draft Agendas:
a. 5/26/20 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal

4. Adjournments In Memory

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling

7. Land Use Calendar

Referred Items for Review 

8. Discussion of Potential Revisions to the City Council Rules of Procedure
and Order for Conduct of Business During a Declared Emergency

9. Discussion Regarding City Council Budget Referrals and Council Items

10. Discussion Regarding Impact of COVID-19 (novel coronavirus) on Meetings
of Legislative Bodies

2



Monday, May 11, 2020 AGENDA Page 3 

Referred Items for Review 

11. Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: February 4, 2020 
Due: July 7, 2020 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission). 
Council Referral: To refer a discussion of Officeholder Accounts and Council 
District (D-13) accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a 
reasonable set of limitations and rules for such accounts and bring back 
recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider referring to the Fair 
Campaign Practices Committee. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 

 

  
Unscheduled Items  
 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

12. Referral: Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery 
From: Councilmembers Robinson and Hahn 
Referred: November 25, 2019 
Due: June 7, 2020 
Recommendation: Refer to the Zero Waste Commission to develop a plan, in 
consultation with the public and key stakeholders, to achieve timely compliance 
with Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) including: 1. An ordinance making composting 
compulsory for all businesses and residences in the City of Berkeley. The 
Commission should also consider the inclusion of compulsory recycling. 2. An 
edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 
generators.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170 

 
 

Items for Future Agendas 

 Discussion of items to be added to future agendas 

 
Adjournment – Next Meeting Tuesday, May 19, 2020 

3



 

Monday, May 11, 2020 AGENDA Page 4 

 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 
Additional items may be added to the draft agenda per Council Rules of 
Procedure. 
Rules of Procedure as adopted by Council resolution, Article III, C3c - Agenda - Submission of Time Critical 
Items 

Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report 
prepared by the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or council member is received by the City Clerk after 
established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda Committee’s published agenda.   

 If the Agenda Committee finds the matter to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda Committee 
may place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar.  

The City Clerk shall not accept any item past the adjournment of the Agenda Committee meeting for which 
the agenda that the item is requested to appear on has been approved. 

Written communications addressed to the Agenda Committee and submitted to the City Clerk Department 
by 5:00 p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting, will be distributed to the Committee prior to the 
meeting.   

This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953 and 
applicable Executive Orders as issued by the Governor that are currently in effect.  Members of the City 
Council who are not members of the standing committee may attend a standing committee meeting even 
if it results in a quorum being present, provided that the non-members only act as observers and do not 
participate in the meeting. If only one member of the Council who is not a member of the committee is 
present for the meeting, the member may participate in the meeting because less than a quorum of the 
full Council is present. Any member of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this 
matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900. 
 

COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including 
auxiliary aids or services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 
(V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before the meeting date.  

* * * 
I hereby certify that the agenda for this special meeting of the Berkeley City Council was posted at the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 Martin Luther King 
Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on May 7, 2020. 

 
Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA. 

4



Monday, April 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 1 

BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA & RULES COMMITTEE 
SPECIAL MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, APRIL 27, 2020 
2:30 P.M. 

Committee Members:  
Mayor Jesse Arreguin, Councilmembers Sophie Hahn and Susan Wengraf 

Alternate: Councilmember Ben Bartlett 
 

PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
 
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 
2020, this meeting of the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee will be conducted exclusively 
through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.   Please be advised that pursuant to the 
Executive Order, and to ensure the health and safety of the public by limiting human contact that 
could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting location available.   
 
To access the meeting remotely using the internet: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android 
device: Use URL - https://zoom.us/j/94066072320. If you do not wish for your name to appear 
on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click on "rename" to rename yourself to be 
anonymous. To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon on the screen. 
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 and Enter Meeting ID: 940 660 723 20.  If you wish to 
comment during the public comment portion of the agenda, press *9 and wait to be recognized 
by the Chair.  
 
Written communications submitted by mail or e-mail to the Agenda & Rules Committee by 5:00 
p.m. the Friday before the Committee meeting will be distributed to the members of the Committee 
in advance of the meeting and retained as part of the official record.  City offices are currently 
closed and cannot accept written communications in person. 
 

 

  

5

https://zoom.us/j/94066072320
arichardson
Typewritten Text
01



Monday, April 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 2 

Roll Call: 2:30 p.m. All present. 

Public Comment – 3 speakers. 
 
Review of Agendas 

1. Approval of Minutes: April 13, 2020 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to approve the Minutes of 4/13/2020. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 

2. Review and Approve Draft Agendas: 
a. 5/12/20 – 6:00 p.m. Regular City Council Meeting 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to approve the 5/12/2020 agenda with the 
changes noted below. 

 Item 11 Construction Contract (City Manager) – Revised recommendation 
 Item 17 Repeal SB 872 (Arreguin) – Councilmembers Davila and Harrison added as co-

sponsors 
 Item 20 BOLT Appointment (Hahn) – Councilmember Bartlett and Mayor Arreguin added 

as co-sponsors 
 Item 21 Budget Referral (Robinson) – Councilmember Harrison added as a co-sponsor 

 Vote: All Ayes. 
 

Order of Items on Action Calendar 
1. Published Charges: Mental Health 
2. Fiscal Year 2021 Proposed Budget 
3. Surveillance Technology Report 

3. Selection of Item for the Berkeley Considers Online Engagement Portal 
- None selected 

4. Adjournments In Memory 
- All victims of COVID-19 
- Don Yost, Local Business Leader 

 

Scheduling 

5. Council Worksessions Schedule 
- Climate/Resiliency Update moved to July 21; June 23 reserved for a budget 

meeting 

6. Council Referrals to Agenda Committee for Scheduling 
Action: M/S/C (Wengraf/Hahn) to take no action on Item 5 Pathways. 

 Vote: All Ayes. 
 
 Item 2 regarding Grant Writing removed from the list. 

 

6



Monday, April 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 3 

7. Land Use Calendar 
- 1533 Beverly scheduled for July 14 
- 0 Euclid and 1155-1173 Hearst scheduled for June 9 

 

Referred Items for Review 

8. Discussion of Potential Revisions to the City Council Rules of Procedure 
and Order 

 

Action: Discussion held.  Requested potential schedules or deadlines for 
urgency items. 

 
 

Unscheduled Items  
 
These items are not scheduled for discussion or action at this meeting.  The Committee may schedule 
these items to the Action Calendar of a future Committee meeting. 

9. Referral: Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery 
From: Councilmembers Robinson and Hahn 
Referred: November 25, 2019 
Due: June 7, 2020 
Recommendation: Refer to the Zero Waste Commission to develop a plan, in 
consultation with the public and key stakeholders, to achieve timely compliance 
with Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) including: 1. An ordinance making composting 
compulsory for all businesses and residences in the City of Berkeley. The 
Commission should also consider the inclusion of compulsory recycling. 2. An 
edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 
generators.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Rigel Robinson, Councilmember, District 7, (510) 981-7170 
 
Action: No action taken 

 

 

 

7



Monday, April 27, 2020 MINUTES Page 4 

 Unscheduled Items  

10. Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder 
Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 (Item contains supplemental material) 
From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission 
Referred: February 4, 2020 
Due: July 7, 2020 
Recommendation: Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first 
reading of an ordinance amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 
18531.62. Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair 
Political Practices Commission). 
Council Referral: To refer a discussion of Officeholder Accounts and Council 
District (D-13) accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a 
reasonable set of limitations and rules for such accounts and bring back 
recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider referring to the Fair 
Campaign Practices Committee. 
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6950 
 
Action: Scheduled for discussion and action on May 11, 2020 

 
 

Items for Future Agendas 

 Rules of Procedure item; Budget Referrals item; Item 10 Officeholder Accounts 

 
Adjournment  

 

Action: M/S/C (Hahn/Wengraf) to adjourn the meeting. 
Vote: All Ayes. 
 

 Adjourned at 4:02 p.m. 
 
 
I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct record of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting held on April 27, 2020. 
 
_____________________________ 
Mark Numainville 
City Clerk 
 
 
Communications 
Communications submitted to City Council Policy Committees are on file in the City Clerk Department at 
2180 Milvia Street, 1st Floor, Berkeley, CA. 

8



 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 1 

D R AF T  AG E N D A  

 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 
6:00 PM 

 

JESSE ARREGUIN, MAYOR 
Councilmembers: 

DISTRICT 1 – RASHI KESARWANI  DISTRICT 5 – SOPHIE HAHN 
DISTRICT 2 – CHERYL DAVILA  DISTRICT 6 – SUSAN WENGRAF 
DISTRICT 3 – BEN BARTLETT  DISTRICT 7 – RIGEL ROBINSON 
DISTRICT 4 – KATE HARRISON  DISTRICT 8 – LORI DROSTE 

 
PUBLIC ADVISORY:  THIS MEETING WILL BE CONDUCTED EXCLUSIVELY THROUGH 
VIDEOCONFERENCE AND TELECONFERENCE  
Pursuant to Section 3 of Executive Order N-29-20, issued by Governor Newsom on March 17, 2020, this meeting 
of the City Council will be conducted exclusively through teleconference and Zoom videoconference.  Please be 
advised that pursuant to the Executive Order and the Shelter-in-Place Order, and to ensure the health and safety 
of the public by limiting human contact that could spread the COVID-19 virus, there will not be a physical meeting 
location available.   
 
Live audio is available on KPFB Radio 89.3. Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable 
B-TV (Channel 33) and via internet accessible video stream at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx. 
 
To access the meeting remotely: Join from a PC, Mac, iPad, iPhone, or Android device:  Please use this URL 
<<Insert URL>>. If you do not wish for your name to appear on the screen, then use the drop down menu and click 
on "rename" to rename yourself to be anonymous.  To request to speak, use the “raise hand” icon by rolling over 
the bottom of the screen.  
 
To join by phone: Dial 1-669-900-9128 and enter Meeting ID: <<Insert Meeting ID>>. If you wish to comment during 
the public comment portion of the agenda, Press *9 and wait to be recognized by the Chair.  
 
To submit an e-mail comment during the meeting to be read aloud during public comment, email 
clerk@cityofberkeley.info with the Subject Line in this format: “PUBLIC COMMENT ITEM ##.” Please observe a 
150 word limit. Time limits on public comments will apply. Written comments will be entered into the public record.   
 
Please be mindful that the teleconference will be recorded as any Council meeting is recorded, and all other rules 
of procedure and decorum will apply for Council meetings conducted by teleconference or videoconference. 
 
This meeting will be conducted in accordance with the Brown Act, Government Code Section 54953.  Any member 
of the public may attend this meeting.  Questions regarding this matter may be addressed to Mark Numainville, City 
Clerk, (510) 981-6900. The City Council may take action related to any subject listed on the Agenda. Meetings will 
adjourn at 11:00 p.m. - any items outstanding at that time will be carried over to a date/time to be specified. 

 

9

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info
arichardson
Typewritten Text
02a



 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 2 

Preliminary Matters 

Roll Call:  

Ceremonial Matters: In addition to those items listed on the agenda, the Mayor may add additional 
ceremonial matters. 

City Manager Comments:  The City Manager may make announcements or provide information to 
the City Council in the form of an oral report.  The Council will not take action on such items but may 
request the City Manager place a report on a future agenda for discussion. 

Public Comment on Non-Agenda Matters: Persons will be selected to address matters not on 
the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons wish to speak, each person selected will be allotted two 
minutes each.  If more than five persons wish to speak, up to ten persons will be selected to address 
matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected will be allotted one minute each. The 
remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda items will be heard at the end 
of the agenda. 
 
Consent Calendar 
 The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” or “Information” to the 

“Consent Calendar”, or move “Consent Calendar” items to “Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent 
Calendar” are voted on in one motion as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at 
the Council meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent”. 

No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar once public comment has commenced. At 
any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and Consent items, any 
Councilmember may move any Information or Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will 
vote on the items remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons 
who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time 
the matter is taken up during the Action Calendar. 

Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items Only: The Council will 
take public comment on any items that are either on the amended Consent Calendar or the Information 
Calendar.  Speakers will be entitled to two minutes each to speak in opposition to or support of Consent 
Calendar and Information Items.  A speaker may only speak once during the period for public comment 
on Consent Calendar and Information items. 

Additional information regarding public comment by City of Berkeley employees and interns: Employees 
and interns of the City of Berkeley, although not required, are encouraged to identify themselves as such, 
the department in which they work and state whether they are speaking as an individual or in their official 
capacity when addressing the Council in open session or workshops. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

10



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 3 

1. 
 

Minutes for Approval 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Approve the minutes for the council meetings of April 14, 2020 
(special closed and regular), April 21, 2020 (special closed and regular) and April 28, 
2020 (regular).  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Mark Numainville, City Clerk, (510) 981-6900 

 

2. 
 

California Governor's Office of Emergency Services - Authorized Agent for 
Disaster Relief for COVID-19 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution designating the City Manager as the 
Authorized Agent for the purpose of obtaining certain state and financial assistance 
related to preparation for, response to, and recovery from the COVID-19 pandemic.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Dave White, City Manager's Office, (510) 981-7000 

 

3. 
 

Assessments: Downtown Berkeley Property Based Business Improvement 
District 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Downtown Berkeley Property 
Based Business Improvement District (DPBID) Annual Report of FY 2020 and 
proposed budget for FY 2021, and declaring Council’s intention to levy an annual 
assessment for the DPBID for FY 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530 

 

4. 
 

Assessments: Telegraph Property Based Business Improvement District 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution approving the Telegraph Property Based 
Business Improvement District (TBID) Annual Report of FY 2020 and proposed 
budget for FY 2021, and declaring Council’s intention to levy an annual assessment 
for the TBID for FY 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Jordan Klein, Economic Development, (510) 981-7530 

 

5. 
 

Notice of Appropriations Limit for Fiscal Year 2021 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution providing notice that: 1) Council will adopt an 
appropriations limit for Fiscal Year 2021 at its meeting of June 30, 2020; and 2) the 
amount of the limit and the background material used in its calculation will be 
available for public review from the City Clerk’s Office on or before June 15, 2020.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

11



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 4 

6. 
 

Contract Amendment: Berkeley Food & Housing Project 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute a contract and any amendments with vendor Berkeley Food & 
Housing Project (BFHP) to provide administrative services for Berkeley Mental 
Health (BMH) Flexible Spending Programs and the Russell Street Residence 
through June 30, 2021 in an amount not to exceed $960,874.  This will extend the 
existing contract by one year and add in $603,874 in funding to pay for the services 
outlined below.  
Financial Implications: Various Funds - $603,874 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

7. 
 

Contract: Bay Area Community Resources for the Placement of AmeriCorps 
Members 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to execute an expenditure contract and any amendments or extensions 
thereto with Bay Area Community Resources in an amount not to exceed $56,000 for 
the period July 1, 2020 through June 30, 2021 for the placement of AmeriCorps 
members.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

8. 
 

Grant Agreement: Funding Support from Alameda County to Public Health 
Infrastructure Program 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to submit grant agreements to Alameda County, to accept the grant, and 
execute any resultant revenue agreements and amendments to conduct public 
health promotion, protection, and prevention services for the Public Health 
Infrastructure Program in the projected amount of $32,080 for FY 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

12



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 5 

9. 
 

Revenue Grant Agreements: Funding Support from Alameda County to 
Conduct Public Health Services 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt four Resolutions authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to submit grant agreements to Alameda County, to accept the grants, and 
execute any resultant revenue agreements and amendments to conduct public 
health promotion, protection, and prevention services for the following five revenue 
agreements: 
1. Foster Care Program in the projected amount of $93,187 for FY 2021;  
2. Berkeley High School and Berkeley Technology Academy Health Center 
Programs in the projected amount of $178,778 for FY 2021;  
3. School Linked Health Services Program (Measure A Funding) in the projected 
amount of $193,175 for FY 2021;  
4. Tobacco Prevention Program in the projected amount of $76,290 for FY 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

10. 
 

Revenue Grant Agreement: Funding Support from the State of California for 
the Tuberculosis Program 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager or her 
designee to submit grant agreements to the State of California, to accept the grant, 
and execute any resultant revenue agreements and amendments to conduct public 
health promotion, protection, and prevention services for the Tuberculosis Control 
Program in the projected amount of $14,000 for FY 2021.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Lisa Warhuus, Housing and Community Services, (510) 981-5400 

 

11. 
 

Contract: Software AG, Inc. for Software, maintenance and professional 
services for Data Integration Middleware Platform webMethods 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute a 
contract with Software AG, Inc. for software, maintenance and professional services 
for Data Integration Middleware Platform webMethods in an amount not to exceed 
$436,000 for the term June 1, 2020 to June 30, 2023.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Savita Chaudhary, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500 

 

13



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 6 

12. 
 

Contract No. 10414B Amendment: Geographic Technologies Group (GTG) for 
Geographic Information System (GIS) Master Plan 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend 
Contract No. 10414B with Geographic Technologies Group (GTG) for Geographic 
Information System (GIS) Master Plan, for a total not to exceed $95,451 and for a 
total contract value of $399,411 from September 14, 2016 to June 30, 2022.  
Financial Implications: Professional Services Fund - $95,451 
Contact: Savita Chaudhary, Information Technology, (510) 981-6500 

 

13. 
 

Donation:  Friends of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp for Berkeley Tuolumne Camp 
Shade Structure Design 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution accepting a cash donation from the Friends 
of Berkeley Tuolumne Camp in the amount of $74,266 for the Berkeley Tuolumne 
Camp Shade Structure Design.  
Financial Implications: Donation - $74,266 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 

14. 
 

Lease for 235 University Avenue – YOONACO, Inc. dba Hana Japan 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt first reading of an Ordinance authorizing the City Manager 
to execute a lease agreement and necessary amendments with YOONACO, Inc., 
doing business as Hana Japan Steak and Seafood, at 235 University Avenue at the 
Berkeley Marina for a term of five years, with a five year tenant-option.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Scott Ferris, Parks, Recreation and Waterfront, (510) 981-6700 

 

15. 
 

Declaration of Intent - FY 2021 Street Lighting Assessments 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt two Resolutions granting the City Manager the authority to 
approve the Engineer’s Reports; set a public hearing to be held before the Council of 
the City of Berkeley at its June 16, 2020 meeting; and authorize the City Clerk to 
publish Notice of the Public Hearing for FY 2021 Levy of Assessments for Berkeley 
Street Lighting Assessment District No. 1982-1 and Street Lighting Assessment 
District 2018.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

14



Consent Calendar 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 7 

16. 
 

Contract Amendment No. 31900055: Community Conservation Centers, Inc. for 
Processing and Marketing Services of Recyclable Materials 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend and 
extend Contract No. 31900055 with Community Conservation Centers, Inc. for the 
Processing and Marketing of Recyclable Materials, which includes curbside 
collected, residential drop-off and buyback materials, for one (1) year through June 
30, 2021, with an increase of $2,100,000 for a revised Contract not to exceed 
amount of $6,100,000.  
Financial Implications: Zero Waste Fund - $2,100,000 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

17. 
 

Contract No. 10661A Amendment: SKIDATA, Inc. (formerly Sentry Control 
Systems) for Parking Access and Revenue Control System Maintenance 
Services and Warranties 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to Contract No. 10661A with SKIDATA, Inc. (formerly Sentry Control 
Systems) to provide maintenance services and warranties for parking access and 
revenue control system equipment, increasing the contract amount by $111,150 for a 
total not-to-exceed amount of $1,335,257.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

18. 
 

Contract No. 10145 Amendment: IPS Group, Inc. for Parking Meter Operations 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to amend 
Contract No.10145 with IPS Group, Inc. to provide parking meters, replacement 
parts, and support services, increasing the contract amount by an additional 
$1,513,540 for a total contract amount not to exceed $7,033,457 through June 30, 
2022.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

19. 
 

Contract No. 9977A Amendment: Portable Computer Systems dba PCS Mobile 
for Automated License Plate Reader Equipment 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution authorizing the City Manager to execute an 
amendment to Contract No. 9977A with Portable Computer Systems dba PCS 
Mobile to replenish the contract budget for automated license plate reader 
equipment, increasing the contract amount by $175,000, for a total amount not to 
exceed $1,825,000.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

15



Action Calendar  
 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 8 

 The public may comment on each item listed on the agenda for action as the item is taken up. For items 
moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information Calendar, persons who spoke on 
the item during the Consent Calendar public comment period may speak again at the time the matter is 
taken up during the Action Calendar. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak line use the “raise hand” function to 
determine the number of persons interested in speaking at that time. Up to ten (10) speakers may speak 
for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit 
the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time 
to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more than four minutes.  

The Presiding Officer may, with the consent of persons representing both sides of an issue, allocate a 
block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 
 

Action Calendar - Public Hearings  
 

 Staff shall introduce the public hearing item and present their comments. This is followed by five-minute 
presentations each by the appellant and applicant. The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing 
to speak, use the “raise hand” function to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested 
in speaking at that time. 

Up to ten (10) speakers may speak for two minutes. If there are more than ten persons interested in 
speaking, the Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. 
Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes. The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons representing both sides of an 
issue allocate a block of time to each side to present their issue. 

Each member of the City Council shall verbally disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the 
hearing. Councilmembers shall also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement 
of the hearing. Written reports shall be available for public review in the office of the City Clerk. 

 

20. 
 

Electric Bike Share Program Franchise Amendment (Continued from April 21, 
2020) 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 9.60, conduct a 
public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt the first reading of an Ordinance granting 
a Franchise Agreement Amendment to Bay Area Motivate, LLC, a subsidiary of Lyft 
Incorporated, to provide shared electric bicycles to the Berkeley public.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Phillip Harrington, Public Works, (510) 981-6300 

 

21. 
 

Fiscal Year 2021 Proposed Budget Update Public Hearing #2 
From: City Manager 
Recommendation: Conduct a second public hearing regarding the FY 2021 
Proposed Budget Update.  
Financial Implications: See FY 2021 Proposed Budget Update 
Contact: Teresa Berkeley-Simmons, Budget Manager, (510) 981-7000 

 

 

16



Action Calendar – Policy Committee Track Items 
 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 9 

 

22. 
 

Establishing a COVID-19 Business Damage Mitigation Fund 
From: Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember Harrison (Author), 
Councilmember Robinson (Author) 
Recommendation: Refer to the City Manager to establish a COVID-19 Business 
Damage Mitigation Fund in an amount up to $100,000 to provide one-time grants to 
small businesses who experience property damage due to vandalism and other 
problematic behavior during this COVID-19 local State of Emergency  
Financial Implications: Up to $100,000 
Contact: Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, (510) 981-7100 

 

23. 
 

Support a Global Ceasefire During the Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic 
From: Councilmember Davila (Author), Councilmember Bartlett (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: 1. Adopt a Resolution in Support of a Global Ceasefire during 
the COVID-19 Pandemic. 
2. Send copies of this resolution to the United Nations Secretary-General, United 
States Senators Bernie Sanders, Kamala Harris, Dianne Feinstein, and United 
States Congressional Representatives Barbara Lee, Ro Khanna, Alexandria Ocasio-
Cortez, Ilhan Omar, Ayanna Pressley, Rashida Harbi Tlaib, and Pramila Jayapa.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Cheryl Davila, Councilmember, District 2, (510) 981-7120 

 

24. 
 

Urgency Ordinance: Updates to the Covid-19 Emergency Response Ordinance 
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author) 
Recommendation: Adopt an urgency ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code 
13.110, Title 13, “The COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance,” to enhance 
emergency tenant protections consistent with recently adopted County laws, action 
in other jurisdictions, and consultation with community stakeholders.  
Financial Implications: None 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 

 

Information Reports 
 

25. 
 

FY 2019 Fourth Quarter Investment Report: Ended June 30, 2019 (Reviewed by 
Budget & Finance Policy Committee. Item contains supplemental material) 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

26. 
 

FY 2020 First Quarter Investment Report: Ended September 30, 2019 (Reviewed 
by Budget & Finance Policy Committee. Item contains supplemental material) 
From: City Manager 
Contact: Henry Oyekanmi, Finance, (510) 981-7300 

 

Public Comment – Items Not Listed on the Agenda 

17



 

 

Tuesday, May 26, 2020 DRAFT AGENDA Page 10 

Adjournment 
NOTICE CONCERNING YOUR LEGAL RIGHTS: If you object to a decision by the City Council to approve 
or deny a use permit or variance for a project the following requirements and restrictions apply:  1) No 
lawsuit challenging a City decision to deny (Code Civ. Proc. §1094.6(b)) or approve (Gov. Code 
65009(c)(5)) a use permit or variance may be filed more than 90 days after the date the Notice of Decision 
of the action of the City Council is mailed. Any lawsuit not filed within that 90-day period will be barred.  2) 
In any lawsuit that may be filed against a City Council decision to approve or deny a use permit or variance, 
the issues and evidence will be limited to those raised by you or someone else, orally or in writing, at a 
public hearing or prior to the close of the last public hearing on the project. 
 

Live captioned broadcasts of Council Meetings are available on Cable B-TV (Channel 33),  
via internet accessible video stream at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx 

and KPFB Radio 89.3. 
Archived indexed video streams are available at http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil. 
Channel 33 rebroadcasts the following Wednesday at 9:00 a.m. and Sunday at 9:00 a.m. 
 

Communications to the City Council are public record and will become part of the City’s electronic 
records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please note: e-mail addresses, names, 
addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any communication 
to the City Council, will become part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or 
any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
to the City Clerk Department at 2180 Milvia Street. If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please contact the City 
Clerk Department for further information. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council regarding any item on this agenda 
will be posted on the City's website at http://www.cityofberkeley.info. 

Agendas and agenda reports may be accessed via the Internet at 
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil 

 
COMMUNICATION ACCESS INFORMATION: 
To request a disability-related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or 
services, please contact the Disability Services specialist at (510) 981-6418 (V) or (510) 981-6347 (TDD) 
at least three business days before the meeting date. 
 

 
Captioning services are provided at the meeting, on B-TV, and on the Internet. 
~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~ 

18

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/CalendarEventWebcastMain.aspx
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/citycouncil


2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7100 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7199
E-Mail: mayor@cityofberkeley.info

ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

To: Members of the City Council

From: Mayor Jesse Arreguín, Councilmembers Kate Harrison and Rigel Robinson

Subject: Establishing a COVID-19 Business Damage Mitigation Fund

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the City Manager to establish a COVID-19 Business Damage Mitigation Fund 
in an amount up to $100,000 to provide one-time grants to small businesses who 
experience property damage due to vandalism and other problematic behavior during 
this COVID-19 local State of Emergency 

BACKGROUND
The local Shelter in Place order, which initially went into effect on March 17, prohibits in- 
person dining and retail activity. This has created a significant decrease in revenues to 
local businesses which has resulted in layoffs and in some extreme cases permanent 
closures. Additionally, many of our commercial districts are empty throughout the day, 
which means that those businesses that are still in operation see limited foot traffic, 
leaving employees vulnerable to aggressive behavior. Based on preliminary figures 
from the Berkeley Police Department, crime in most areas during the year to date has 
gone down compared to this time last year. However, one notable exception to this is a 
10.4% increase in thefts. Specifically, petty theft (a loss less than $950) is up 7.4% and 
grand theft (a loss of more than $950) is up by 56.4% - a spike attributed in part to a rise 
in catalytic converter thefts. While these preliminary numbers have not been fully vetted, 
they are believed to be solid indicators of the crime situation in Berkeley. 

During this COVID-19 emergency, City staff have received numerous complaints from 
local businesses regarding problematic and violent behavior, including assault of 
employees and property damage. As a result of increased criminal activity, the Berkeley 
Police Department have deployed overtime shifts in Telegraph and the Downtown to 
increase police patrols to respond more quickly to calls for service and to increase 
police presence to deter crime. While the deployment of the Downtown Task Force has 
provided additional presence and support for businesses, crime is still occuring. 
Businesses have specifically requested that the City establish a Damage Mitigation 
Fund to provide one-time funding for repairs to local businesses occurring as a result of 
vandalism and other problematic behavior during this COVID-19 State of Emergency. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Page 1 of 13

19

arichardson
Typewritten Text
02a.22



Establishing a COVID-19 Business Damage Mitigation Fund ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

Page 2

Up to $100,000. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental impacts from the recommendation 

CONTACT PERSON
Mayor Jesse Arreguín 510-981-7100

Attachments:
1) Letter from business associations requesting Damage Mitigation Fund
2) Report on vandalism from the Downtown Berkeley Association and the

Telegraph Business Improvement District

Page 2 of 13

20



 
 

 
 
 
May 4, 2020 - VIA EMAIL 
 
Mayor Jesse Arreguin and City Council 
City of Berkeley  
2180 Milvia St., Berkeley, CA 94704 
 
Dear Mayor and City Council, 
 
Our merchants and property owners need help NOW with a Damage Mitigation Fund due to extraordinary 
adverse impacts related to the coronavirus on their businesses, employees, and livelihoods. Since the Shelter in 
Place order went into effect on March 16, merchants and property owners in the Downtown and Telegraph 
commercial districts have sustained a significant increase in property damage and deeply disturbing behaviors. 
Not only are we experiencing a significant increase in the homeless population (60% increase Downtown), but 
also a small subset of homeless and/or street population are engaging in very aggressive behaviors. Many know 
they will not be jailed for illegal behaviors because of the COVID related mandate from the California Judicial 
Council.  Moreover, there is absence of students, workers, and residents in our districts, that usually have a 
moderating impact on behavior norms. 
 
As per attached examples this violent behavior has included multiple broken windows, doors and fixtures; and 
well as spreading of feces, firing extinguishers, throwing furniture, assaulting employees, etc. Just this past 
Saturday a woman entered McDonalds on at University and Shattuck and went behind counter and into the 
kitchen touching equipment and employees and ripping out cabling and damaging point-of-sale system. 
Understandably their employees were terrified. Moreover, McDonalds had to shut down and bring in a 
decontamination company to insure the kitchen and food preparation was safe to resume operations. 
 
In addition to this damage, most our businesses have experienced a serious decline in revenues due to the 
coronavirus and the Shelter in Place order. Many businesses have been forced to close, and many essential 
businesses and restaurants doing take-out and delivery are hanging on by a thread with sales down often 50% to 
80%.  And then they have to deal with wanton property damage, that is traumatizing and they cannot afford. 
 
While we appreciate BPD’s efforts for increased patrols, these courageous businesses need City support NOW to 
defray the cost of this property damage and clean up costs. Hence, we are requesting that the City set up a 
Damage Mitigation Fund for businesses and property owners in the Downtown and Telegraph commercial 
districts that immediately reimburses them documented property damage repair, third party cleaning expenses, 
and/or health or leave costs of traumatized employees, from the start of the Shelter in Place order on March 16 
through as long as the order continues, or the fund is exhausted.  It is the least we can do, and also the right thing 
to do, so they hopefully survive and we are not faced by lost businesses and vacancies in the heart of our great 
City. 
 
Thank you for your timely consideration of this urgent matter. 
 
Sincerely, 

 
John Caner, CEO 
Downtown Berkeley Association 

 
 
Alex Knox, Executive Director  
Telegraph Business Improvement District 

 
CC:  City Manager Dee Williams-Ridley 
 

Page 3 of 13

21



Merchant Vandalism
Telegraph Business District

Downtown Business District
Updated: April 28th, 2020

Page 4 of 13

22



Sliver Pizzeria
2174 Shattuck Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 5 of 13

23



Cancun Sabor Mexicano
2134 Allston Way, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 6 of 13

24



McDonalds 4/5
1998 Shattuck Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 7 of 13

25



McDonalds 1/5
1998 Shattuck Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 8 of 13

26



McDonalds 3/5
1998 Shattuck Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 9 of 13

27



McDonalds 2/5
1998 Shattuck Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 10 of 13

28



Barbarian Grub & Ale
2012 Shattuck Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 11 of 13

29



Bank of America
2347 Telegraph Ave, Berkeley, CA 94704

Page 12 of 13

30



2521 Telegraph Ave

Page 13 of 13

31



32



Cheryl Davila
Councilmember 
District 2

CONSENT CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

To:           Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
 
From:      Councilmembers Cheryl Davila (Author) and Ben Bartlett (Co-Sponsor) 

Subject:   Support a Global Ceasefire During the Coronavirus (COVID-19) Pandemic 

RECOMMENDATION
1. Adopt a Resolution in Support of a Global Ceasefire during the COVID-19 

Pandemic.

2. Send copies of this resolution to the United Nations Secretary-General, United 
States Senators Bernie Sanders, Kamala Harris, Dianne Feinstein, and United 
States Congressional Representatives Barbara Lee, Ro Khanna, Alexandria 
Ocasio-Cortez, Ilhan Omar, Ayanna Pressley, Rashida Harbi Tlaib, and Pramila 
Jayapa.

BACKGROUND
Infection by the Coronavirus (COVID-19) is non-discriminant by race, age, gender, ethnicity, 
religious belief, socioeconomic status, or nationality. Accordingly, the United Nations Secretary-
General Guterres stated, "the virus has shown how swiftly it can move across borders, 
devastate countries and upend lives."1  Despite this, there has been escalation of violence, the 
possibilities of war, and ongoing conflicts in several countries. Simultaneous to battling the 
coronavirus, countries such Yemen, Syria, Cameroon, the Philippines, Afghanistan, and 
Somalia have prolonged political conflict. In response, the UN Secretary General continued, 
"we need to do everything possible to find the peace and unity our world so desperately needs 
to battle COVID-19. We must mobilize every ounce of energy to defeat it."2

The Berkeley City Council has a long history of promoting world peace and has a track record 
of opposing wars. For example, at the January 21, 2020 meeting, the Council unanimously 
approved a resolution opposing the United States’ engagement of war with Iran3. At this critical 
moment when civilians are already struggling to battle the COVID-19 pandemic there is an 
urgent need for a global ceasefire. Our priorities should be focused on ‘flattening the curve’ and 
quelling the virus by sheltering in place. As we struggle to develop a vaccine, slow the spread, 
and provide healthcare workers adequate Personal Protective Equipment (PPE), refugee 

1 https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-ceasefire/
2 https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-ceasefire/
3 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/01_Jan/Documents/2020-01-21_Item_40_No_War_with_Iran.aspx

Page 1 of 6

33

https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-ceasefire/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-ceasefire/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/01_Jan/Documents/2020-01-21_Item_40_No_War_with_Iran.aspx
arichardson
Typewritten Text
02a.23



camps and other sites where displaced families have sought shelter should not continue to be 
struck by shelling.

The conflict in Syria will soon enter its tenth year. Under the auspice of the COVID-19 global 
pandemic, an immediate ceasefire is needed. This will require greater diplomacy, fortitude, and 
leadership, to put an end to the compounded misery elicited by both military violence and the 
public health crisis. Such actions are possible, as on March 16, 2020, President Rodrigo 
Duterte of the Philippines announced a unilateral ceasefire beginning March 19th to deal with 
the COVID-19 response.4 Likewise, on March 18, 2020, the Libyanian Government concurred 
with the call from the United Nations to stop fighting and focus on dealing with COVID-19.5 On 
March 24, the Ukraine Foreign Minister announced support for a global ceasefire, joining the 
French and German Foreign Ministers to announce a joint statement. On the same day, the 
Syrian Democratic Forces and Syrian Opposition Coalition announced their support for a 
ceasefire and shifting their focus to combating COVID-19. Furthermore, on March 25, 2020, the 
Central African Republic called for a national ceasefire and signed on to a Peace Agreement. 
The Southern Cameroons Defence Forces likewise announced a temporary ceasefire.6 Beyond 
this, on March 26, 2020, the Afghanistan Government stated they have enlisted a team to 
negotiate with the Taliban. On March 27, 2020, the African Union Commission Chairperson 
Moussa Faki Mahamat stated there is a “moral and humanitarian obligation for all warring 
parties to immediately stop fighting to facilitate the measures being taken by Member States 
and other actors to combat and defeat the coronavirus pandemic.” 

On March 30, 2020, Pope Francis stated his support for a global ceasefire by urging an end to 
“any form of hostility, promoting the creation of humanitarian aid routes, openness to 
diplomacy, and attentiveness to those who find themselves in situations of grave vulnerability.” 
On April 1st, the Colombian National Liberation Army also announced a one month ceasefire. 
Furthermore, on April 20th, according to the Permanent Mission of France to the United 
Nations, 59 countries have also called for an immediate ceasefire. These include: Andorra, 
Argentina, Australia, Austria, Bangladesh, Belgium, Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Costa 
Rica, Cote d’Ivoire, Croatia, Czech Republic, Denmark, El Salvador, Estonia, Finland, France, 
Germany, Ghana, Guinea, Hungary, Iceland, Indonesia, Ireland, Italy, Jamaica, Japan, Jordan, 
Kenya, The Republic of Korea, Kuwait, Liechtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Mali, Malta, 
Mexico, Montenegro, Namibia, The Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Peru, Philippines, 
Poland, Portugal, Qatar, San Marino, Slovakia, Slovenia, South Africa, Spain, Sweden, 
Switzerland, United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom, and Uruguay.7

According to the World Health Organization COVID-19 Situation Report, as of May 4, there are 
a total of 3,435,894 global confirmed cases and 239,604 deaths globally to date.8 The World 
Health Organization has raised the risk assessment of COVID-19 to ‘very high’ at the global 
level. Everyday we are seeing increased cases in a number of countries, most recently on the 
African continent. Alarm for the virus should supersede any geopolitical conflict at this moment.

The United Nations Secretary-General Guterres has called for a Global Ceasefire, which has 
been gaining momentum by asking world leaders to participate in an online campaign. The 
petition currently has over 1.8 million signatures from around the world. When advocating for 
the ceasefire Guterres stated, “our world faces a common enemy: COVID-19... It is time to put 

4 https://time.com/5809477/philippines-new-peoples-army-ceasefire-covid19/  
5 https://news.un.org/en/story/2020/03/1060302
6 https://www.bbc.com/news/world-africa-52053738 
7 https://onu.delegfrance.org/COVID-19-59-countries-support-Antonio-Guterres-s-call-for-an-immediate-global 
8 https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/coronaviruse/situation-reports/20200504-covid-19-sitrep-105.pdf?sfvrsn=4cdda8af_2   

Page 2 of 6

34

https://secure.avaaz.org/campaign/en/global_ceasefire_loc/?slideshow
https://time.com/5809477/philippines-new-peoples-army-ceasefire-covid19/
https://news.un.org/en/story/2020/03/1060302
https://www.bbc.com/news/world-africa-52053738
https://onu.delegfrance.org/COVID-19-59-countries-support-Antonio-Guterres-s-call-for-an-immediate-global
https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/coronaviruse/situation-reports/20200504-covid-19-sitrep-105.pdf?sfvrsn=4cdda8af_2


armed conflict on lockdown and focus together on the true fight of our lives.” Recently, the UN 
Secretary General provided an update, stating “a substantial number of parties to conflict have 
expressed their acceptance for the call... Cameroon, the Central African Republic, Colombia, 
Libya, Myanmar, the Philippines, South Sudan, Sudan, Syria, Ukraine and Yemen”.9 This is 
very encouraging, and the City of Berkeley should also heed the call of the United Nations and 
support the Global Ceasefire. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
Protecting humanity from future acts of violence during this crisis is itself an act of 
environmental sustainability.

CONTACT PERSON
Cheryl Davila
Councilmember District 2                                                                                      
510.981.7120
cdavila@cityofberkeley.info

ATTACHMENTS:
1. Resolution

REFERENCES:
CBS News: “UN chief praises positive response to global ceasefire”
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-
ceasefire/

No War With Iran, City of Berkeley City Council Item. Introduced Jan 21, 2020
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/01_Jan/Documents/2020-01-
21_Item_40_No_War_with_Iran.aspx

United Nations COVID-19 Response
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-
general%E2%80%99s-appeal-global-ceasefire

BBC News: “Cameroon rebels declare coronavirus ceasefire”
https://www.bbc.com/news/world-africa-52053738 

TIME Magazine: “Philippine Rebels Declare Ceasefire to Heed U.N. Chief's Call”
https://time.com/5809477/philippines-new-peoples-army-ceasefire-covid19/  

___________________________
9 https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general’s-appeal-global-ceasefire    

United Nations News: “UN chief calls for ceasefire as Yemen braces for possible COVID-19 
outbreak”
https://news.un.org/en/story/2020/03/1060302

Democracy Now: “U.N. Calls for Global Ceasefire So Countries Can Unite in Fight Against 
Coronavirus Pandemic”

Page 3 of 6

35

https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-ceasefire/
https://www.cbsnews.com/news/coronavirus-un-chief-praises-positive-response-to-global-ceasefire/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/01_Jan/Documents/2020-01-21_Item_40_No_War_with_Iran.aspx
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/2020/01_Jan/Documents/2020-01-21_Item_40_No_War_with_Iran.aspx
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general%E2%80%99s-appeal-global-ceasefire
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general%E2%80%99s-appeal-global-ceasefire
https://www.bbc.com/news/world-africa-52053738
https://time.com/5809477/philippines-new-peoples-army-ceasefire-covid19/
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general%E2%80%99s-appeal-global-ceasefire
https://news.un.org/en/story/2020/03/1060302


https://www.democracynow.org/2020/3/24/headlines/un_calls_for_global_ceasefire_so_countrie
s_can_unite_in_fight_against_coronavirus_pandemic

United Nations April 2, 2020 Report: Update on the Secretary-General’s Appeal for a
Global Ceasefire
https://www.un.org/sites/un2.un.org/files/update_on_sg_appeal_for_ceasefire_april_2020.pdf

United Nations News: "The fury of the virus illustrates the folly of war"
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/fury-virus-illustrates-folly-war 

Permanent Mission of France to the United Nations: “COVID-19: 59 countries support Antonio 
Guterres’ call for a global ceasefire” 
https://onu.delegfrance.org/COVID-19-59-countries-support-Antonio-Guterres-s-call-for-an-
immediate-global   

United Nations Secretary-General Guterres Update:
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general’s-appeal-
global-ceasefire    

World Health Organization COVID-19 Situation Report
https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/coronaviruse/situation-reports/20200504-covid-19-
sitrep-105.pdf?sfvrsn=4cdda8af_2 

Page 4 of 6

36

https://www.democracynow.org/2020/3/24/headlines/un_calls_for_global_ceasefire_so_countries_can_unite_in_fight_against_coronavirus_pandemic
https://www.democracynow.org/2020/3/24/headlines/un_calls_for_global_ceasefire_so_countries_can_unite_in_fight_against_coronavirus_pandemic
https://www.un.org/sites/un2.un.org/files/update_on_sg_appeal_for_ceasefire_april_2020.pdf
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/fury-virus-illustrates-folly-war
https://onu.delegfrance.org/COVID-19-59-countries-support-Antonio-Guterres-s-call-for-an-immediate-global
https://onu.delegfrance.org/COVID-19-59-countries-support-Antonio-Guterres-s-call-for-an-immediate-global
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general%E2%80%99s-appeal-global-ceasefire
https://www.un.org/en/un-coronavirus-communications-team/update-secretary-general%E2%80%99s-appeal-global-ceasefire
https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/coronaviruse/situation-reports/20200504-covid-19-sitrep-105.pdf?sfvrsn=4cdda8af_2
https://www.who.int/docs/default-source/coronaviruse/situation-reports/20200504-covid-19-sitrep-105.pdf?sfvrsn=4cdda8af_2


RESOLUTION NO. XXXX
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL FOR THE CITY OF BERKELEY IN SUPPORT OF 
A GLOBAL CEASEFIRE ESPECIALLY DURING THE COVID-19 PANDEMIC 

WHEREAS, The Coronavirus (COVID-19) is non-discriminant of gender, age, ethnicity, 
nationality, religious belief, or socioeconomic status; and 

WHEREAS, The United Nations Secretary-General Guterres stated that "the virus has shown 
how swiftly it can move across borders, devastate countries and upend lives. We need to do 
everything possible to find the peace and unity our world so desperately needs to battle 
COVID-19"; and

WHEREAS, Despite this, there has been escalating violence, the possibilities of war, and 
ongoing conflicts in several countries simultaneous to battling the coronavirus; particularly in 
Yemen, Syria, Cameroon, the Philippines, Afghanistan, and Somalia ; and

WHEREAS, The Berkeley City Council has a long history of promoting world peace and a track 
record of opposing wars, and on January 21, 2020, the Council unanimously approved a 
resolution opposing the United States’ engagement of war with Iran; and

WHEREAS, Under the auspice of the COVID-19 global pandemic an immediate ceasefire is 
needed, requiring greater diplomacy, fortitude, and leadership to put an end to the compounded 
misery elicited by both military violence and the public health crisis; and

WHEREAS, Such actions are possible, as for example as on March 16, 2020, the Philippines, 
Libya, Syria, the Central African Republic, the Southern Cameroons Defence Forces, 
Afghanistan Government, the African Union, and the Colombian National Liberation Army have 
concurred with the call from the United Nations to stop fighting and focus on dealing with 
COVID-19; and

WHEREAS, On March 30, Pope Francis stated his support for a global ceasefire by urging an 
end to “any form of hostility, promoting the creation of humanitarian aid routes, openness to 
diplomacy, and attentiveness to those who find themselves in situations of grave vulnerability”; 
and

WHEREAS, 59 countries have also called for an immediate ceasefire. These include: Andorra, 
Argentina, Australia, Austria, Bangladesh, Belgium, Brazil, Canada, Chile, Colombia, Costa 
Rica, Cote d’Ivoire, Croatia, Czech Republic, Denmark, El Salvador, Estonia, Finland, France, 
Germany, Ghana, Guinea, Hungary, Iceland, Indonesia, Ireland, Italy, Jamaica, Japan, Jordan, 
Kenya, Republic of Korea, Kuwait, Liechtenstein, Lithuania, Luxembourg, Mali, Malta, Mexico, 
Montenegro, Namibia, The Netherlands, New Zealand, Norway, Peru, Philippines, Poland, 
Portugal, Qatar, San Marino, Slovakia, Slovenia, South Africa, Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, 
United Arab Emirates, United Kingdom, Uruguay; and

WHEREAS, According to the World Health Organization COVID-19 Situation Report, as of May 
4, 2020 there are a total of 3,435,894 global confirmed cases and 239,604 deaths globally to 
date; and 

WHEREAS, The World Health Organization has raised the risk assessment of COVID-19 to 
‘very high’ at the global level; and

Page 5 of 6

37



WHEREAS, It is agreed upon by faith leaders like the Pope, as well as political leaders, that 
alarm for the virus should supersede any geopolitical conflict at this moment; and

WHEREAS, The United Nations Secretary-General Guterres called for a Global Ceasefire, 
which has been gaining momentum by asking world leaders to participate in an online petition 
campaign;

WHEREAS, The petition currently has over 1.8 million signatures from around the world; and 

WHEREAS, the UN Secretary General provided an update stating, “a substantial number of 
parties to conflict have expressed their acceptance for the call… Cameroon, the Central African 
Republic, Colombia, Libya, Myanmar, the Philippines, South Sudan, Sudan, Syria, Ukraine and 
Yemen”; and

WHEREAS, The City of Berkeley should also heed the call of the United Nations and support 
the Global Ceasefire; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Berkeley City Council supports a Global 
Ceasefire during the COVID-19 Crisis; and

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that copies of this resolution will be sent to the United Nations 
Secretary-General, United States Senators Bernie Sanders, Kamala Harris, and Dianne 
Feinstein, as well as United States Congressional Representatives Barbara Lee, Ro Khanna, 
Alexandria Ocasio-Cortez, Ilhan Omar, Ayanna Pressley, Rashida Harbi Tlaib, and Pramila 
Jayapa.

 
 

Page 6 of 6

38

https://secure.avaaz.org/campaign/en/global_ceasefire_loc/?slideshow
https://secure.avaaz.org/campaign/en/global_ceasefire_loc/?slideshow


Kate Harrison
Councilmember District 4

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7140 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-6903 E-Mail: 
KHarrison@cityofberkeley.info

1

ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Councilmember Harrison

Subject: Urgency Ordinance: Updates to the Covid-19 Emergency Response 
Ordinance

RECOMMENDATION
1. Adopt an urgency ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code 13.110, Title 13, 

“The COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance,” to enhance emergency 
tenant protections consistent with recently adopted County laws, action in other 
jurisdictions, and consultation with community stakeholders. 

BACKGROUND
A. Berkeley’s COVID-19 Emergency Response Ordinance

On March 17, 2020, the Berkeley City Council adopted an emergency ordinance 
prohibiting evictions of residential and commercial tenants unable to pay their rent due 
to COVID-19. Subsequently, on April 21, 2020, the Council further amended the City’s 
ordinance to enhance eviction protections for commercial tenants, namely a prohibition 
on unreasonable rent increases for impacted businesses and nonprofits. Since the 
enactment of these protections, neighboring jurisdictions and the Alameda County 
Board of Supervisors have enacted a number of additional protections that are either 
complimentary to, or more stringent than, Berkeley’s ordinance. The item updates BMC 
13.110 to include best practices and to align with newly adopted countywide 
protections. 

B. Alameda County’s Urgency Ordinances

On March 24, 2020, the Alameda Board of Supervisors passed an urgency ordinance 
creating a temporary moratorium on evictions for renters and homeowners in the 
Unincorporated County (Ordinance No. 2020-14). On March 31, 2020, the Board 
extended protections to the entire County. Similar to BMC 13.110, the ordinances 
applied a moratorium on evictions to tenants, homeowners or mobile home owners who 

Page 1 of 14

39

arichardson
Typewritten Text
02a.24



Urgency Ordinance: Updates to The Covid-19 Emergency Response 
Ordinance

ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

 2

can provide documentation that they cannot pay their rent or mortgage due to a 
substantial loss of income, substantial out- of-pocket medical expenses, or 
extraordinary childcare needs caused by COVID-19. 

On April 21, 2020, the Board considered and adopted additional amendments crafted 
and presented by the Alameda County’s Community Development Agency and the 
Housing and Community Development Department (HCD), in coordination with County 
Counsel, Public Health, all cities countywide, Resources for Community Development, 
and multiple legal agencies including Bay Area Legal Aid, Centro Legal de la Raza, 
East Bay Community Law Center, and Housing and Economic Rights Advocates.1 

County agency directors wrote that the pandemic and shelter in place orders created 
severe new socioeconomic impacts and exacerbated those already in existence. 
Accordingly, the County deemed any eviction, regardless of cause, a public health 
threat. 

The April 21 amendments included the following key changes: 

1. Expands to Include all Evictions: The Ordinance institutes a moratorium on all
evictions during the local health emergency regardless of cause, with limited 
exceptions. The exceptions to this moratorium include an imminent health or 
safety risk; however, infection or a heightened risk of infection with COVID-19 is 
not an allowable risk. It is the burden of a landlord claiming their eviction action is 
not prohibited to prove an exception applies. 

2. Repayment Provisions: Tenants shall have twelve (12) months to repay overdue 
rent, unless the tenant and landlord can come to a mutual repayment agreement. 
The repayment period will ensure residents have a reasonable amount of time to 
become current on past rent. The amended moratorium will also create a 
permanent ban on evictions for this overdue rent, instead making the overdue 
rent a consumer debt. Without this provision, the County’s eviction moratorium 
only delays a wave of evictions that will likely result from this crisis. By declaring 
that rent that becomes overdue during the public health crisis can never be used 
to evict a resident, landlords retain the ability to pursue the overdue rent as debt 
via small claims court, a payment plan or garnishing of wages. 

3. Documentation Requirement: The proposed amended ordinance allows residents 
claiming COVID-19 impacts an extended period of time in which to provide 
documentation of those impacts upon request by a landlord: within 45 days of the 
landlord’s request or 30 days of the expiration of the shelter in place order, 
whichever is later. The proposed amended ordinance also allows a sworn 

1 Amend Countywide Temporary Moratorium on Residential Evictions, Alameda County Community 
Development Agency, April 21, 2020,
https://www.acgov.org/board/bos_calendar/documents/DocsAgendaReg_04_21_20/GENERAL%20AD
MINISTRATION/Regular%20Calendar/CDA_294956.pdf

Page 2 of 14

40



Urgency Ordinance: Updates to The Covid-19 Emergency Response 
Ordinance

ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

 3

statement attesting to the existence of a COVID-19 impact as acceptable 
documentation. These additions make it easier for residents to claim the 
protections granted under this ordinance, especially residents who do not have 
immediate access to the required documentation or the ability to submit them. 

4. Outlaw of Waiver: Tenants are not allowed to waive rights granted by this 
ordinance. This modification was included after legal agencies gave feedback 
that some tenants had been approached by their landlords with incentives if they 
were to sign away their rights granted by similar ordinances. It is the intention of 
the County to ensure all residents who qualify receive these protections. 

5. Co-existence with City Eviction Ordinances: Cities that have passed eviction 
moratoriums may “opt out” of provisions of the County moratorium. Giving cities 
this option provides baseline protections for residents of cities without moratoria, 
but allows cities to make determinations in the best interest of their residents. 

C. Updates to The Covid-19 Emergency Response Ordinance

Unreasonable evictions are directly at odds with local, state and federal measures to 
recover from the pandemic. 

Housing stability is prerequisite for flattening the COVID-19 infection curve. Loss of 
housing presents significant health risks for those directly affected and the 
population at large, through disruption of shelter in place orders, social distancing 
measures and increased homelessness. Testing, quarantine, and physical 
distancing measures are bolstered by housing security. 

In recognition of developments at the County level, action in other jurisdictions, and 
consultation with community stakeholders, the item proposes the following key 
amendments to BMC 13.110: 

1. Reference to Status of Statewide Court Proceedings: 

Updates the findings section to acknowledge the Judicial Council of California’s 
emergency rules suspending court proceedings for unlawful detainer and judicial 
foreclosures until 90 days after the Governor suspends the state of emergency.

2. Expansion of Moratorium Scope: 

Consistent with County ordinances: extends the effective period of the ordinance 
30 days beyond the local State of Emergency and limits residential and 
commercial evictions to instances necessary to preserve health and safety (non-
COVID-19 related). 

Page 3 of 14

41



Urgency Ordinance: Updates to The Covid-19 Emergency Response 
Ordinance

ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

 4

3. Noticing Rules: 

Clarifies that tenants can qualify for protections provided by the ordinance as 
long as upon the request of a Landlord, the tenant notifies them that they will be 
delinquent in the payment of rent within forty-five day after the request or within 
thirty days after the County’s shelter in place order is lifted, whichever is later.

4. Restrictions Pursuant to Rent Stabilization and Eviction for Good Cause 
Ordinance: 

a. Adds moratorium on rent increases exceeding the Consumer Price Index Rent 
Adjustment in rent controlled units regulated by Berkeley Municipal Code Section 
13.76.010 et seq. 

b. Clarifies that rent increases at odds with this section shall be void and 
unenforceable.

5. Definition of Tenant: 

Expands definition of tenant to include a tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, or 
any other person entitled by written or oral rental agreement to use or occupancy 
of either residential or commercial property.

6. Fines, Fees and Interest: 

Clarifies that restrictions on late fees, fines, or interest supersede contrary lease 
provisions. 

7. Payment Plans:

a. Clarifies that tenants shall have twelve months to repay overdue rent unless 
the landlord and tenant can come to a mutual repayment agreement. Prior to 
executing any repayment agreement the Landlord must provide documentation 
to the tenant demonstrating they applied for federal, state and local direct 
payments and were denied or approved and the amounts and months for which 
the landlord received any direct payments.

b. Clarifies that any direct relief in the form of federal, state and local or private 
direct payments that result in a reduction in the landlord’s mortgage obligation 
obtained by a landlord whose tenant has suffered COVID-19-related decreases 
in income, or increased family expenses, shall be passed through to, and 
credited towards, satisfaction of the tenant’s rental obligations. 

8. Retaliation:

Page 4 of 14

42



Urgency Ordinance: Updates to The Covid-19 Emergency Response 
Ordinance

ACTION CALENDAR
May 26, 2020

 5

Prohibits landlord from retaliating against a tenant for exercising their rights 
under this Ordinance, including but not limited to shutting off any utilities or 
reducing services or amenities to which the Tenant would otherwise be entitled.

9. Obligation to Accept Rent from Third Parties and Provide a W-9: 

Clarifies that it shall be a complete eviction defense if the landlord impeded the 
tenant’s effort to pay rent via a third party, or refusing to provide a W-9 form or 
other necessary documentation for the tenant to receive rental assistance from a 
government agency, non-profit organization, or other third party. Clarifies that 
third party payments shall not create a tenancy between the landlord and the 
third party as long as either the landlord or the tenant provide written notice that 
no new tenancy is intended.

Consistent with the recent Alameda County and neighboring jurisdiction actions, and 
the ongoing shelter-in-place order and associated emergency activities in response 
to the global pandemic, it is in the public interest to clarify and amend the COVID-19 
Emergency Response Ordinance. 

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identifiable environmental impacts associated with this action. 

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Kate Harrison
510-981-7140

Page 5 of 14

43



1

ORDINANCE NO.      -N.S.

URGENCY ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 13.110 OF THE BERKELEY 
MUNICIPAL CODE, THE COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

 
BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:
 
Section 1. The Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 13.110 is amended to read as follows:

Chapter 13.110
COVID-19 EMERGENCY RESPONSE ORDINANCE

 

Sections: 
13.110.010 Findings and Purpose
13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct
13.110.030 Definitions
13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees
13.110.050 Application
13. 110.060 Implementing Regulations
13.110.070 Waiver
13.110.080 Remedies
13.110.090 Severability  

 
13.110.010 Findings and Purpose
 
International, national, state and local health and governmental authorities are 
responding to an outbreak of respiratory disease caused by a novel coronavirus named 
"SARS-CoV-2." And the disease it causes has been named "coronavirus disease 2019," 
abbreviated COVID-19, ("COVID-19"). In response to this emergency, on March 3, 
2020, the City Manager acting as the Director of Emergency Services declared a local 
State of Emergency based on COVID-19 (hereinafter referred to as "the State of 
Emergency"), which the City Council subsequently ratified on March 10, 2020. In 
addition, on March 4, 2020, the Governor declared a state of emergency in California 
and the President of the United States declared a national state of emergency on March 
13, 2020 regarding the novel coronavirus and COVID-19.
 
On March 16, 2020, the City of Berkeley Public Health Officer, along with several other 
neighboring jurisdictions issued a Shelter in Place Order directing all individuals living in 
the City of Berkeley to shelter at their place of residence except that they may leave to 
provide or receive certain essential services or engage in certain essential activities, 
and prohibiting non-essential gatherings and ordering cessation of non-essential travel. 
On March 31, this Shelter in Place Order was extended to May 3, 2020, and restricted 
activities further.

Page 6 of 14

44



2

 
Furthermore, on March 16, 2020, the Governor issued Executive Order N-28-20, 
specifically authorizing local governments to halt evictions for commercial tenants, 
residential tenants, and homeowners who have been affected by COVID-19, 
emphasizing that the economic impacts of COVID-19 have been significant and could 
threaten to undermine housing security as many people are experiencing material 
income loss as a result of business closures, the loss of hours or wages or layoffs 
related to COVID-19, hindering their ability to keep up with rents, mortgages and utility 
bills.
 
The Order also stated that because homelessness can exacerbate vulnerability to 
COVID-19, Californians must take measures to preserve and increase housing security 
for Californians to protect public health and specifically stated that local jurisdictions 
may take measures to promote housing security beyond what the state law would 
otherwise allow.

On April 6, 2020, the Judicial Council of California issued emergency rules suspending 
court proceedings for unlawful detainer and judicial foreclosures until 90 days after the 
Governor declares that the state of emergency related to the COVID-19 pandemic is 
lifted.

On April 21, 2020, Alameda County enacted an urgency ordinance prohibiting eviction 
for any reason other than withdrawal of rental property under the Ellis Act or court-
ordered eviction for public safety. Although the Alameda County ordinance does not 
have effect within the incorporated area of Berkeley, it is desirable to ensure that 
Berkeley residents have the same level of protection as the residents of unincorporated 
Alameda County. 

During this State of Emergency, and in the interests of protecting the public health and 
preventing transmission of the COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary 
displacement and homelessness. It is the intent of this Ordinance to fully implement the 
suspension of the statutory bases for eviction for nonpayment of rent and for default in 
the payment of a mortgage as authorized by Executive Order N-28-20.

At the same time, the Governor, as well as, the Berkeley Health Officer, and those of 
other jurisdictions ordered the closure of businesses, except those deemed essential. 
Many businesses, such as restaurants, are open only for take-out or pick up services 
and face a critical loss of business.   

The City Council is aware that some landlords of commercial properties are seeking 
significant rent increases during the period when many commercial tenants are closed 
or are experiencing substantial and catastrophic reductions in their business and 
income. Such rent increases force tenants who are closed or have substantially reduced 
revenues face the choice of accepting a significant rent increase, moving at a time when 
it is virtually impossible, or closing altogether. Accepting a rent increase while closed or 
in a reduced state of operations means that the commercial tenants face even more 

Page 7 of 14

45



3

debt to the landlord when the emergency is over, and may face a substantially 
increased rent when the tenant returns to normal operations, if ever.  

Landlords of commercial property that unreasonably increases rents on tenants of 
commercial property during the COVID-19 emergency significantly impacts vulnerable 
small businesses, nonprofits, and artists who form a large part of the backbone of 
Berkeley’s economy, revenue sources, and employment opportunities  These rent 
increases are coming at a time when the commercial rents are likely falling due to 
business closures and potential loss of businesses at the end of the emergency. Thus, 
these rent increases appear as a way of evading the Governor’s and Berkeley’s 
commercial tenant eviction moratorium by forcing tenants to agree to rent increases or 
leave. Such conduct constitutes constructive evictions in contravention of the eviction 
moratorium. Furthermore, such rent increases may affect businesses providing goods 
and essential services, resulting in increases in those costs of essential goods and 
services contravening the intent of anti-price gouging laws. 

On expiration of leases when the emergency order is in place, unreasonable rent 
increases have already forced the closure of businesses and will result in closing of 
additional business causing loss of income for the business owners, loss of employment 
for the employees and of revenue to the city, and an increase in homelessness. To 
reduce the spread of COVID-19, it is essential to avoid unnecessary displacement and 
homelessness. Because of the emergency restrictions, businesses forced out due to 
increased rents will be unable to move to new locations and new businesses will be 
unable to open during this emergency period. During a state of emergency cities have 
extraordinary powers and jurisdiction to create legislation in order to counteract the 
effects of the emergency situation on its people and businesses. Protecting tenants 
from excessive rent increases will prevent additional loss of employment and essential 
services for Berkeley residents. In order to effectively implement an eviction 
moratorium, the City Council finds it imperative to prevent constructive eviction through 
unreasonable rent increases.

Accordingly, the City of Berkeley adopts the following amendments to Berkeley 
Municipal Code Chapter 13.110. 
 
13.110.020 Prohibited Conduct
 
A.         During the local State of Emergency, no landlord or other entity shall evict 
or attempt to evict an occupant of real property unless necessary for the health and 
safety of tenants, neighbors, or the landlord. For purposes of this Ordinance, the basis 
for an exception to this Ordinance cannot be the Resident’s COVID-19 illness or 
exposure to COVID-19, whether actual or suspected.in either of the following situations:
 
1.          For nonpayment of rent by a tenant of a commercial property or residential 
property, if the tenant demonstrates that the inability to pay is due to a Covered Reason 
for Delayed Payment as defined in Section 13.110.030(A),or
 

Page 8 of 14

46



4

2.           A Landlord may not terminate the tenancy of a commercial Tenant for 
failure to pay rent if the tenant demonstrates that the inability to pay is due to a Covered 
Reason for Delayed Payment as defined in Section 13.110.030(A). tenant of a 
residential property, unless necessary for the health and safety of tenants, neighbors, or 
the landlord.

B.        Residential Eviction Moratorium. It shall be a complete defense to any action for 
unlawful detainer that the notice upon which the action is based was served during the 
local State of Emergency. A who landlord becomes aware of the tenant's inability to pay 
rent within the meaning of this Chapter if the tenant notifies the landlord in writing of 
their lost income and inability to pay their rent or any portion thereof, and provides 
documentation to support the existence of a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment. For 
purposes of this section, "in writing" includes email or text communications to a landlord 
or the landlord's representative with whom the tenant has previously corresponded by 
email or text. If the tenant has not notified the landlord in advance of being delinquent in 
the payment of rent, the landlord must serve the tenant with a pre-notice of the rent 
delinquency and its amount and give the tenant at least three days, excluding weekends 
and holidays to provide the landlord with a notice and documentation of a basis for an 
inability to pay rent under this Chapter, if the tenant has such basis, prior serving a 
notice pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure section 1161(2). In the case of nonpayment 
of rent, tThe failure of a Tenant to notify the landlord in advance of being delinquent in 
the payment of rent prior to being served with a notice pursuant to Code of Civil 
Procedure section 1161(2) does not waive the Tenant’s right to claim this Chapter as a 
complete defense to non-payment of rent in an unlawful detainer action. A Tenant is not 
required to provide such documentation to the Landlord in advance to qualify for the 
protections of this ordinance. However, upon the request of a Landlord, a Tenant shall 
provide such documentation to the Landlord within forty-five (45) days after the request 
or within thirty (30) days after the Counity’s local State of Emergency is ended, 
whichever is later. 

Any medical or financial information provided to the Llandlord shall be held in 
confidence, and shall not be disclosed to other entities unless such disclosure is 
permitted or required by the law, or unless the tenant authorizes the disclosure of the 
information in writing.

 C.  No landlord of an Impacted Business or Nonprofit may upon expiration of a 
lease increase rent for an Impacted Business or Nonprofit in an amount greater than ten 
(10) percent over the rent in effect at the commencement of the local state of 
emergency declared by the Director of Emergency Services. For purposes of this 
section, rent means all consideration for the use and enjoyment of the rented premises, 
including base rent and any additional rent or other charges for costs such as utilities, 
maintenance, cleaning, trash removal, repairs and any other charges to the tenant 
required under the rental agreement. This section 13.110.020 C. shall expire on May 
31, 2020, concurrent with Executive Order N-28-20; provided, however, that this section 

Page 9 of 14

47



5

shall be automatically extended if Executive Order N-28-20 is extended or the tenant 
protections therein are extended pursuant to another Governor’s Executive Order.

D.   Moratorium on Rent Increases Exceeding Annual General Adjustment in Rent 
Controlled Units. For rental units regulated by Berkeley Municipal Code Section 
13.76.010 et seq, any notice of rent increase in excess of the Annual General 
Adjustment for the current year, as defined in Berkeley Municipal Code section 
13.76.110, shall be void and unenforceable if the notice is served or has an effective 
date during the local State of Emergency, unless authorized by the decision of a Rent 
Stabilization Board hearing examiner.

13.110.030 Definitions
 
A.         "Covered Reason for Delayed Payment" means:
(1) the basis for the eviction is nonpayment of rent, arising out of a material 
decrease in household,  or business, or other rental unit occupant’s income (including, 
but not limited to, a material decrease in household income caused by layoffs or a 
reduction in the number of compensable hours of work, or to caregiving responsibilities, 
or a material decrease in business income caused by a reduction in opening hours or 
consumer demand), or material out-of-pocket medical expenses; and
(2) the decrease in household,  or business, or other rental unit occupant’s income 
or the out-of-pocket medical expenses described in subparagraph (1) was caused by 
the impacts of COVID-19 pandemic, or by any local, state, or federal government 
response to COVID-19, and is documented.

B.  “No-Fault Eviction” refers to any eviction for which the notice to terminate 
tenancy is not based on alleged fault by the tenant, including but not limited to eviction 
notices served pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 1161(1), 1161(5), or 
1161b. “No-Fault Eviction” does not include withdrawal of accommodations from the 
rental market as provided in Government Code 7060 et seq. (Ellis Act).

B. “Delayed Rent Payment Agreement” means a mutual agreement between a landlord 
and tenant regarding the timing and amount of payments for rent that is delayed by a 
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.

C. “Impacted Business or Nonprofit” means a business or nonprofit organization that 
had a business license in 2019 or 2020 in the City of Berkeley or is a registered non-
profit in either or both of those years and: 

1. whose operation has been shut down due to the COVID-19 emergency, or
2. that is unable to accept customers at its location and is open for limited virtual, 
take-out or pickup services only, or 
3. who suffered a material loss of income.

 
DB.        "Landlord" includes owners, lessors, or sublessors of either residential or 
commercial rental property.

Page 10 of 14

48



6

 
EC.        "Tenant" includes a tenant, subtenant, lessee, sublessee, or any other 
person entitled by written or oral rental agreement to use or occupancy a renter of either 
residential or commercial property.

13.110.040 Collection of Back Rent and Late Fees
 
A. Nothing in this Chapter shall relieve the tenant of liability for unpaid rent, which the 
landlord may seek after expiration of the local State of Emergency. Notwithstanding any 
lease provision to the contrary, aA landlord may not charge or collect a late fee, fine, or 
interest for rent that is delayed for by a Covered Reason for Delayed Payment.the 
reasons stated in this Chapter. The City will develop standards or guidelines for tenants 
to repay unpaid rent accrued during the course of the local State of Emergency. 
Landlords are encouraged to work with local agencies that will be making rental 
assistance available for qualifying tenants.

Tenants shall have twelve (12) months to pay rent that was delayed by a Covered 
Reason for Delayed Payment unless the landlord and tenant can come to a mutual 
repayment agreement (“Delayed Rent Payment Agreement”). 

Any direct relief in the form of federal, state and local or private direct payments that 
result in a reduction in the Landlord’s mortgage or tax obligations related to the subject 
property, shall directly reduce the amount of any rent that was delayed by a Covered 
Reason for Delayed Payment. This requirement shall be implied into any Delayed Rent 
Payment Agreement, regardless of the terms of that agreement. 

13.110.050 Application
 
A. This Chapter applies to eviction notices and unlawful detainer actions based on 
notices served or filed on or after the effective date of this Chapter through 30 days after 
the end of the local State of Emergency. It does not apply to withdrawal of 
accommodations from the rental market pursuant to Government Code 7060 et seq. 
(“Ellis Act”) or to units ordered by the City to be vacated for the preservation of public 
health.

B. With respect to delayed payment covered by this Ordinance, a landlord may seek 
such rent after the expiration of the local State of Emergency, pursuant to Section 
13.110.040, but may not file an action pursuant to Code of Civil Procedure sections 
1161(2) et seq. or otherwise seek to recover possession of a rental unit based on the 
failure to pay rent that accrued during the term of the local State of Emergency for a 
Covered Reason for Delayed Payment. In any action to evict based on alleged non-
payment of rent, it shall be a complete defense to such action if any part of the rent in 
dispute accrued at any time from the effective date of this Chapter through thirty (30) 
days after the expiration of the local State of Emergency.

Page 11 of 14

49



7

C.  A Landlord shall not retaliate against a Tenant for exercising their rights under this 
Ordinance, including but not limited to shutting off any utilities or reducing services or 
amenities to which the Tenant would otherwise be entitled.

D. In addition to the affirmative defenses set forth above, in any action to recover 
possession of a rental unit filed under Berkeley Municipal Code section 13.76.130(A)(1), 
it shall be a complete defense thatif the landlord impeded the tenant’s effort to pay rent 
by refusing to accept rent paid on behalf of the tenant from a third party, or refusing to 
provide a W-9 form or other necessary documentation for the tenant to receive rental 
assistance from a government agency, non-profit organization, or other third party.  
Acceptance of rental payments made on behalf of the tenant by a third party shall not 
create a tenancy between the landlord and the third party.

13.110.060 Implementing Regulations

The City Manager may promulgate implementing regulations and develop forms to 
effectuate this Ordinance. This includes the option of requiring landlords to give a notice 
to Tenants informing them of this Chapter and the right to seek the benefits of this 
Chapter.
 
13.110.070 Waiver
 
A.    A landlord may request that the requirements of this Chapter be waived or 
modified, by the City Manager or their designee, based on a showing that applying the 
requirements would constitute a hardship to the landlord or other tenants, or would 
constitute an unconstitutional taking of property or otherwise have an unconstitutional 
application to the landlord's property. The tenant shall be provided notice of the 
application to the City Manager or their designee and may submit materials in 
opposition to the application.
 
B.  The landlord shall bear the burden of presenting evidence to support the request 
for a waiver or modification of the requirements of this Chapter and shall set forth in 
detail the factual and legal basis for the claim, including all supporting  documentation.
 
C.        The City will develop standards for what might constitute grounds for a 
waiver or modification of the requirements of this Chapter on the part of the landlord.

D. By entering into a Delayed Rent Payment Agreement, Tenants do not waive any 
rights under this Chapter. 

E. Any agreement by a Tenant to waive any rights under this ordinance shall be 
void and contrary to public policy. 

 
13.110.080 Remedies
 

Page 12 of 14

50



8

In the event of a violation of this Ordinance, an aggrieved tenant may institute a civil 
proceeding for injunctive relief, and money actual damages as specified below, and 
whatever other relief the court deems appropriate. Money damages shall only be 
awarded if the trier of fact finds that the landlord acted in knowing violation of or in 
reckless disregard of this Ordinance. The prevailing party shall be entitled to reasonable 
attorney's fees and costs pursuant to order of the court. The remedy available under this 
section shall be in addition to any other existing remedies which may be available to the 
tenant under local, state or federal law. In addition, this Ordinance grants a defense to 
eviction in the event that an unlawful detainer action is commenced in violation of this 
Ordinance.

The protections provided by this ordinance shall be available to all tenants, regardless 
of any agreement wherein a tenant waives or purports to waive their rights under this 
Ordinance, with any such agreement deemed void as contrary to public policy. 
 
A. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) - (Commercial rent restrictions:).

1. Violations of Section 13.110.020(C) may be enforced by an administrative fine of 
up to $1,000 pursuant to Chapter 1.28. Each day a commercial property landlord 
demands rent in excess of the amount permitted pursuant to Section 13.110.020(C) is a 
separate violation. The City may also charge the costs of investigating and issuing any 
notices of violations, and any hearings or appeals of such notices.

2. The City Attorney may refer those in violators of Section 13.110.020(C) to the 
Alameda County District Attorney for redress as a violation of Business and Professions 
Code section 17200, et seq. or, if granted permission by the District Attorney, may bring 
an action pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 17200, et seq. 

13.110.090 Severability
 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or word of this Chapter, or any 
application thereof to any person or circumstance, is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by a decision of a court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions or applications of this Chapter. The 
Council of the City of Berkeley hereby declares that it would have passed this Chapter 
and each and every section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, and word not 
declared invalid or unconstitutional without regard to whether any other portion of this 
Chapter or application thereof would be subsequently declared invalid or 
unconstitutional.

Section 2. Vote Required, Immediately Effective

Based on the findings and evidence in Section 13.110.010 of this Urgency Ordinance, 
the Council determines that this Ordinance is necessary for the immediate preservation 
of the public health, peace and safety in accordance with Article XIV Section 93 of the 
Charter of the City of Berkeley and must therefore go into effect immediately. This 

Page 13 of 14

51



9

Ordinance shall go into effect immediately upon a seven-ninths vote of the City Council, 
in satisfaction of the Charter of the City of Berkeley. 

Page 14 of 14

52



 
 
 
 

Upcoming Worksessions – start time is 6:00 p.m. unless otherwise noted 

Scheduled Dates  

June 23 HOLD – Special Meeting on City Budget  

July 21 1. Crime Report 
2. Climate Action Plan/Resiliency Update 

Sept. 29 1. Digital Strategic Plan/FUND$ Replacement/Website Update 
2. Update: Zero Waste Priorities 

Oct. 20 1. Update: Berkeley’s 2020 Vision 
2. BMASP/Berkeley Pier-WETA Ferry 

         

 

 

Unscheduled Workshops 
1.  Cannabis Health Considerations 
2.  Vision 2050 
3.  Ohlone History and Culture (special meeting) 
4.  Presentation from StopWaste on SB 1383 
 

Unscheduled Presentations (City Manager) 
1. Systems Realignment 

53

arichardson
Typewritten Text
05



 City Council Referrals to the Agenda & Rules Committee and Unfinished 
Business for Scheduling 

1. 68. Revisions to Ordinance No. 7,521--N.S. in the Berkeley Municipal Code to increase 
compliance with the city’s short-term rental ordinance (Referred from the July 24, 2018 
agenda.  Agenda Committee to revisit in April 2019.) March 18, 2019 Action: Item to be 
agendized at future Agenda and Rules Committee Meeting pending scheduling confirmation 
from City Manager. 
From: Councilmember Worthington 
Recommendation: Refer the City Manager to look into adopting revisions to Ordinance No. 
7,521--N.S by modeling after the Home-Sharing Ordinance of the City of Santa Monica and the 
Residential Unit Conversion Ordinance of the City of San Francisco in order to increase 
compliance with city regulations on short-term rentals of unlicensed properties. 
Financial Implications: Minimal 
Contact: Kriss Worthington, Councilmember, District 7, 981-7170 

2. 47. Amending Chapter 19.32 of the Berkeley Municipal Code to Require Kitchen Exhaust 
Hood Ventilation in Residential and Condominium Units Prior to Execution of a Contract 
for Sale or Close of Escrow (Reviewed by Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, 
Environment, and Sustainability Committee) (Referred from the January 21, 2020 agenda) 
From: Councilmember Harrison 
Recommendation:  
1. Adopt an ordinance amending Berkeley Municipal Code (BMC) 19.32 to require kitchen 
exhaust ventilation in residential and condominium units prior to execution of a contract for 
sale or close of escrow. 
2. Refer to the City Manager to develop a process for informing owners and tenants of the 
proper use of exhaust hoods.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

3. 33. Proposed Navigable Cities Framework for Ensuring Access and Freedom-of-
Movement for People with Disabilities in Berkeley (Referred from the March 10, 2020 
agenda) 
From: Commission on Disability 
Contact: Dominika Bednarska, Commission Secretary, (510) 981-6300 
Note: Referred for scheduling of a presentation by the Commission 

4. 7. Adopt a Resolution to Upgrade Residential and Commercial Customers to 100% 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions-Free Electricity Plan and Municipal Accounts to 100% 
Renewable Plan (Reviewed by the Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment & 
Sustainability Committee) (Referred from the April 21, 2020 agenda) 
From: Councilmember Harrison (Author), Mayor Arreguin (Author), Councilmember 
Robinson (Co-Sponsor), Councilmember Hahn (Co-Sponsor) 
Recommendation: Adopt a Resolution to: a. Opt up Berkeley’s municipal accounts to 
Renewable 100 (100% renewable and 100% greenhouse gas-free) electricity service, and 
refer the estimated increased cost of $100,040 to the June 2020 budget process. b. Upgrade 
current and new Berkeley residential and commercial customer accounts from Bright Choice 
(>85% GHG-free) to Brilliant 100 (100% GHG-free), except for residential customers in low 
income assistance programs.  The transition would be effective October 1, 2020 for residential 
customers and January 1, 2021 for commercial customers. c. Provide for yearly Council review 
of the City’s default municipal, residential, and commercial plans.  
Financial Implications: See report 
Contact: Kate Harrison, Councilmember, District 4, (510) 981-7140 
Note: Referred to Agenda & Rules for future scheduling. 

 

54

arichardson
Typewritten Text
06



Address Board/
Commission

Appeal Period 
Ends 

 Determination 
on Appeal 
Submitted

Public
Hearing

NOD – Notices of Decision

Public Hearings Scheduled
0 Euclid Ave - Berryman Reservoir (denial of 4G telecom facility) ZAB 6/9/2020
1155-73 Hearst Ave (develop two parcels) ZAB 6/9/2020

90-Day Deadline: May 19, 2019
1533 Beverly Pl (single-family dwelling) ZAB 7/14/2020
1449 Grizzly Peak Blvd (single family dwelling) ZAB TBD
2650 Telegraph Ave (construct new mixed-use building) ZAB TBD
Remanded to ZAB or LPC

Notes

4/30/2020

CITY CLERK DEPARTMENT
WORKING CALENDAR FOR SCHEDULING LAND USE MATTERS

BEFORE THE CITY COUNCIL

55

arichardson
Typewritten Text
07



56



 

 
City Clerk Department 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6900 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-6901 
E-Mail: clerk@cityofberkeley.info  Website: http://www.cityofberkeley.info/clerk 

C:\Users\arichardson\AppData\Local\Microsoft\Windows\Temporary Internet Files\Content.Outlook\0KOLG4I1\Memo New Urgency 
Item Deadlines.docx 

May 11, 2020 
 
 
To: Agenda & Rules Committee 
 
From: Mark Numainville, City Clerk 
 
Subject: Potential Deadlines for Urgency and Time Critical Items 
 
 
Due to the COVID-19 pandemic, the City Council is meeting through videoconference.  
The changing conditions and need to take urgent action has resulted in several urgency 
items and time critical items being added to the agenda after the agenda has been 
published pursuant to Government Code Section 54954.2(b)(1) or (2). 
 
These urgency items are distinct from the Revised/Supplemental items that are 
submitted at the meeting or just prior to the meeting that are related to an item on the 
published agenda.  The deadlines for these items are codified in Section 2.06.070 of the 
BMC and listed in the table below. 
 
Submission Deadline Distributed Packet 
Seven days before the meeting, 
by 5:00 p.m. (Tuesday) 

Five days before the meeting 
(Thursday) 

Supplemental 1 

Day before the meeting by 12:00 
p.m. (Monday) 

By 5:00 p.m. the day before 
the meeting (Monday) 

Supplemental 2 

Submitted after 12:00 p.m. the 
day prior to the meeting 

At the meeting and posted to 
the web by 5:00 p.m. two days 
after the meeting (Thursday) 

Supplemental 3 

 
By practice, the urgency items have been submitted to the City Clerk via e-mail and the 
City Clerk then forwards the items to the full City Council and posts the items on the 
agenda web page.  Currently, there is no fixed deadline for this type of item. 
 
The Agenda & Rules Committee mentioned the desire to potentially have a new 
deadline for urgency items and time critical items that did not appear on the published 
agenda. 

57

mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/clerk
arichardson
Typewritten Text
08



Potential Deadlines for Urgency and Time Critical Items May 11, 2020 

Page 2 

 
To be effective in the immediate term, it would be best for this deadline to be added to 
the Rules of Procedure by resolution.  The earliest that this could be agendized would 
be the June 2, 2020 regular meeting. 
 
With regards to the timing of the deadline, this is largely subject to the needs and 
desires of the Committee and the Council.  Reasonable deadlines may include the 
following options. 

 12:00 p.m. noon on the day of the meeting 
 3:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting 
 5:00 p.m. on the day of the meeting 
 Prior to the roll call of the meeting 

 
Staff’s processing of these items would continue to be distribution by e-mail, posting to 
the web, and inclusion in Supplemental Communications Packet #3. 
 

58



 

1 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

 

 

 

 

The Berkeley City Council 
Rules of Procedure and Order 

 
Adopted by Resolution No. 69,283–N.S. and  

amended by Resolution No. 69,295–N.S.  
 

Effective February 11, 2020 
 

  

59



Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

Table of Contents 

   2 
  

City of Berkeley 

I. DUTIES ........................................................................................................... 4 
A. Duties of Mayor ............................................................................................... 4 
B. Duties of Councilmembers .............................................................................. 4 
C. Motions to be Stated by Chair ......................................................................... 4 
D. Decorum by Councilmembers ......................................................................... 4 
E. Voting Disqualification ..................................................................................... 4 
F. Requests for Technical Assistance and/or Reports ......................................... 5 

II. MEETINGS ...................................................................................................... 6 
A.  Call to Order - Presiding Officer ...................................................................... 6 
B.  Roll Call .......................................................................................................... 6 
C.  Quorum Call ................................................................................................... 6 
D.  Council Meeting Conduct of Business ............................................................ 6 
E. Adjournment .................................................................................................... 7 
F. Unfinished Business………………………………………………………….……..7 
G. City Council Schedule and Recess Periods .................................................... 7 
H. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag ...................................................................... 8 
I. Ad Hoc Subcommittees ................................................................................... 8 

III. AGENDA ......................................................................................................... 9 
A. Declaration of Policy ........................................................................................ 9 
B. Definitions ........................................................................................................ 9 
C. Procedure for Bringing Matters Before City Council ...................................... 11 
D. Packet Preparation and Posting .................................................................... 15 
E. Agenda Sequence and Order of Business .................................................... 16 
F. Closed Session Documents........................................................................... 17 
G. Regulations Governing City Council Policy Committees………………………18 

IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING ............................................................................. 23 
A. Comments from the Public ............................................................................ 23 
B. Consent Calendar .......................................................................................... 25 
C. Information Reports Called Up for Discussion ............................................... 26 
D. Written Communications ............................................................................... 26 
E. Public Hearings for Land Use, Zoning, Landmarks, and Public Nuisance  

Matters .......................................................................................................... 26 
F. Work Sessions ............................................................................................... 27 
G. Protocol ......................................................................................................... 28 

V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS ........................................................................... 29 
A. Persons Authorized to Sit at Tables .............................................................. 29 
B. Decorum ........................................................................................................ 29 
C. Enforcement of Decorum ............................................................................... 29 
D. Precedence of Motions .................................................................................. 29 
E. Robert’s Rules of Order ................................................................................. 30 
F. Rules of Debate ............................................................................................. 30 
G. Debate Limited .............................................................................................. 31 
H. Motion to Lay on Table .................................................................................. 31 
I. Division of Question ....................................................................................... 31 
J. Addressing the Council .................................................................................. 31 
K. Addressing the Council After Motion Made ................................................... 32 

60



 

3 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

L. Use of Cellular Phones and Electronic Devices………………………………..32 
VI. FACILITIES ................................................................................................... 33 

A. Meeting Location Capacity ............................................................................ 33 
B. Alternate Facilities for Council Meetings ........................................................ 33 
C. Signs, Objects, and Symbolic Materials ......................................................... 33 
D. Fire Safety ..................................................................................................... 33 
E. Overcrowding ................................................................................................ 33 

APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES .......... 34 
APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA 
ITEMS ............................................................................................................................ 37 

  

61



I. DUTIES 

4 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

I. DUTIES 
A. Duties of Mayor 

The Mayor shall preside at the meetings of the Council and shall preserve strict order 
and decorum at all regular and special meetings of the Council.  The Mayor shall 
state every question coming before the Council, announce the decision of the Council 
on all subjects, and decide all questions of order, subject, however, to an appeal to 
the Council, in which event a majority vote of the Council shall govern and 
conclusively determine such question of order.  In the Mayor’s absence, the Vice 
President of the Council (hereafter referred to as the Vice-Mayor) shall preside. 

B. Duties of Councilmembers 
Promptly at the hour set by law on the date of each regular meeting, the members of 
the Council shall take their regular stations in the Council Chambers and the business 
of the Council shall be taken up for consideration and disposition. 

C. Motions to be Stated by Chair 
When a motion is made, it may be stated by the Chair or the City Clerk before debate. 

D. Decorum by Councilmembers 
While the Council is in session, the City Council will practice civility and decorum in 
their discussions and debate. Councilmembers will value each other’s time and will 
preserve order and decorum. A member shall neither, by conversation or otherwise, 
delay or interrupt the proceedings of the Council, use personal, impertinent or 
slanderous remarks, nor disturb any other member while that member is speaking or 
refuse to obey the orders of the presiding officer or the Council, except as otherwise 
provided herein. 

All Councilmembers have the opportunity to speak and agree to disagree but no 
Councilmember shall speak twice on any given subject unless all other 
Councilmembers have been given the opportunity to speak.  The Presiding Officer 
may set a limit on the speaking time allotted to Councilmembers during Council 
discussion. 

The presiding officer has the affirmative duty to maintain order. The City Council will 
honor the role of the presiding officer in maintaining order. If a Councilmember 
believes the presiding officer is not maintaining order, the Councilmember may move 
that the Vice-Mayor, or another Councilmember if the Vice-Mayor is acting as the 
presiding officer at the time, enforce the rules of decorum and otherwise maintain 
order. If that motion receives a second and is approved by a majority of the Council, 
the Vice-Mayor, or other designated Councilmember, shall enforce the rules of 
decorum and maintain order. 

E. Voting Disqualification 
No member of the Council who is disqualified shall vote upon the matter on which the 
member is disqualified.  Any member shall openly state or have the presiding officer 
announce the fact and nature of such disqualification in open meeting, and shall not 
be subject to further inquiry.  Where no clearly disqualifying conflict of interest 
appears, the matter of disqualification may, at the request of the member affected, be 

62



I. DUTIES 

5 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

decided by the other members of the Council, by motion, and such decision shall 
determine such member's right and obligation to vote.  A member who is disqualified 
by conflict of interest in any matter shall not remain in the Chamber during the debate 
and vote on such matter, but shall request and be given the presiding officer's 
permission to recuse themselves.  Any member having a "remote interest" in any 
matter as provided in Government Code shall divulge the same before voting. 

F. Requests for Technical Assistance and/or Reports 
A majority vote of the Council shall be required to direct staff to provide technical 
assistance, develop a report, initiate staff research, or respond to requests for 
information or service generated by an individual council member. 
 

63



II. MEETINGS 

6 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

II. MEETINGS 
A.  Call to Order - Presiding Officer 

The Mayor, or in the Mayor's absence, the Vice Mayor, shall take the chair precisely 
at the hour appointed by the meeting and shall immediately call the Council to order.  
Upon the arrival of the Mayor, the Vice Mayor shall immediately relinquish the chair.  
In the absence of the two officers specified in this section, the Councilmember present 
with the longest period of Council service shall preside. 

B.  Roll Call 
Before the Council shall proceed with the business of the Council, the City Clerk shall 
call the roll of the members and the names of those present shall be entered in the 
minutes.  The later arrival of any absentee shall also be entered in the minutes. 

C.  Quorum Call 
During the course of the meeting, should the Chair note a Council quorum is lacking, 
the Chair shall call this fact to the attention of the City Clerk.  The City Clerk shall 
issue a quorum call.  If a quorum has not been restored within two minutes of a 
quorum call, the meeting shall be deemed automatically adjourned. 

D.  Council Meeting Conduct of Business 
The agenda for the regular business meetings shall include the following: Ceremonial 
Items (including comments from the City Auditor if requested); Comments from the 
City Manager; Comments from the Public; Consent Calendar; Action Calendar 
(Appeals, Public Hearings, Continued Business, Old Business, New Business);  
Information Reports; and Communication from the Public.  Presentations and 
workshops may be included as part of the Action Calendar.  The Chair will determine 
the order in which the item(s) will be heard with the consent of Council. 

Upon request by the Mayor or any Councilmember, any item may be moved from the 
Consent Calendar or Information Calendar to the Action Calendar.  Unless there is 
an objection by the Mayor or any Councilmember, the Council may also move an item 
from the Action Calendar to the Consent Calendar.   

A public hearing that is not expected to be lengthy may be placed on the agenda for 
a regular business meeting.  When a public hearing is expected to be contentious 
and lengthy and/or the Council’s regular meeting schedule is heavily booked, the 
Agenda & Rules Committee, in conjunction with the staff, will schedule a special 
meeting exclusively for the public hearing.  No other matters shall be placed on the 
agenda for the special meeting.  All public comment will be considered as part of the 
public hearing and no separate time will be set aside for public comment not related 
to the public hearing at this meeting. 

Except at meetings at which the budget is to be adopted, no public hearing may 
commence later than 10:00 p.m. unless there is a legal necessity to hold the hearing 
or make a decision at that meeting or the City Council determines by a two-thirds vote 
that there is a fiscal necessity to hold the hearing.  

64



II. MEETINGS 

7 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

E. Adjournment 
1. No Council meeting shall continue past 11:00 p.m. unless a two-thirds majority of 

the Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss specified items; and any motion 
to extend the meeting beyond 11:00 p.m. shall include a list of specific agenda 
items to be covered and shall specify in which order these items shall be handled. 

2. Any items not completed at a regularly scheduled Council meeting may be 
continued to an Adjourned Regular Meeting by a two-thirds majority vote of the 
Council. 

F.  Unfinished Business 
Any items not completed by formal action of the Council, and any items not postponed 
to a date certain, shall be considered Unfinished Business.  All Unfinished Business 
shall be referred to the Agenda & Rules Committee for scheduling for a Council 
meeting that occurs within 60 days from the date the item last appeared on a Council 
agenda. The 60 day period is tolled during a Council recess. 
 

G. City Council Schedule and Recess Periods 
Pursuant to the Open Government Ordinance, the City Council shall hold a minimum 
of twenty-four (24) meetings, or the amount needed to conduct City business in a 
timely manner, whichever is greater, each calendar year. 

Regular meetings of the City Council shall be held generally two to three Tuesdays 
of each month except during recess periods; the schedule to be established annually 
by Council resolution taking into consideration holidays and election dates. 

Regular City Council meetings shall begin no later than 6:00 p.m.  

A recess period is defined as a period of time longer than 21 days without a regular  
meeting of the Council. 

When a recess period occurs, the City Manager is authorized to take such ministerial 
actions for matters of operational urgency as would normally be taken by the City 
Council during the period of recess except for those duties specifically reserved to 
the Council by the Charter, and including such emergency actions as are necessary 
for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health or safety; the authority to 
extend throughout the period of time established by the City Council for the period of 
recess. 

The City Manager shall have the aforementioned authority beginning the day after 
the Agenda & Rules Committee meeting for the last regular meeting before a Council 
recess and this authority shall extend up to the date of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee meeting for the first regular meeting after the Council recess. 

The City Manager shall make a full and complete report to the City Council at its first 
regularly scheduled meeting following the period of recess of actions taken by the 
City Manager pursuant to this section, at which time the City Council may make such 
findings as may be required and confirm said actions of the City Manager. 

65



II. MEETINGS 

8 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

H. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag 
At the first meeting of each year following the August recess and at any subsequent 
meeting if specifically requested before the meeting by any member of the Council in 
order to commemorate an occasion of national significance, the first item on the 
Ceremonial Calendar will be the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

I. Ad Hoc Subcommittees 
From time to time the Council or the Mayor may appoint several of its members but 
fewer than the existing quorum of the present body to serve as an ad hoc 
subcommittee. Only Councilmembers may be members of the ad hoc subcommittee; 
however, the subcommittee shall seek input and advice from residents, related 
commissions, and other groups, as appropriate to the charge or responsibilities of 
such subcommittee. Ad hoc subcommittees must be reviewed annually by the 
Council to determine if the subcommittee is to continue.   
 
Upon creation of an ad hoc subcommittee, the Council shall allow it to operate with 
the following parameters: 
 

1. A specific charge or outline of responsibilities shall be established 
by the Council.  

2. A target date must be established for a report back to the Council.  
3. Maximum life of the subcommittee shall be one year, with annual 

review and possible extension by the Council.  
 
Subcommittees shall conduct their meetings in locations that are open to the public 
and meet accessibility requirements under the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
Meetings may be held at privately owned facilities provided that the location is open 
to all that wish to attend and that there is no requirement for purchase to attend. 
Agendas for subcommittee meetings must be posted in the same manner as the 
agendas for regular Council meetings except that subcommittee agendas may be 
posted with 24-hour notice.  The public will be permitted to comment on agenda items 
but public comments may be limited to one minute if deemed necessary by the 
Committee Chair.  Agendas and minutes of the meetings must be maintained and 
made available upon request.   
 
Ad hoc subcommittees will be staffed by City Council legistive staff.  As part of the ad 
hoc subcommittee process, City staff will undertake a high-level, preliminary analysis 
of potential legal issues, costs, timelines, and staffing demands associated with the 
item(s) under consideration.  Staff analysis at ad hoc subcommittees is limited to the 
points above as the recommendation, program, or project has not yet been approved 
to proceed by the full Council. 
 
Subcommittees must be comprised of at least two members. If only two members are 
appointed, then both must be present in order for the subcommittee meeting to be 
held. In other words, the quorum for a two-member subcommittee is always two.   
 
Ad hoc subcommittees may convene a closed session meeting pursuant to the 
conditions and regulations imposed by the Brown Act.

66



III. AGENDA 

9 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

III. AGENDA 

A. Declaration of Policy 
No ordinance, resolution, or item of business shall be introduced, discussed or acted 
upon before the Council at its meeting without prior thereto its having been published 
on the agenda of the meeting and posted in accordance with Section III.D.2.  
Exceptions to this rule are limited to circumstances listed in Section III.D.4.b and 
items continued from a previous meeting and published on a revised agenda. 

B. Definitions 
For purposes of this section, the terms listed herein shall be defined as follows: 

1. "Agenda Item" means an item placed on the agenda (on either the Consent 
Calendar or as a Report For Action) for a vote of the Council by the Mayor or any 
Councilmember, the City Manager, the Auditor, or any 
board/commission/committee created by the City Council, or any Report For 
Information which may be acted upon if the Mayor or a Councilmember so 
requests.  For purposes of this section, appeals shall be considered action items.  
All information from the City Manager concerning any item to be acted upon by the 
Council shall be submitted as a report on the agenda and not as an off-agenda 
memorandum and shall be available for public review, except to the extent such 
report is privileged and thus confidential such as an attorney client communication 
concerning a litigation matter.  Council agenda items are limited to a maximum of 
four Authors and Co-Sponsors, in any combination that includes at least one 
Author.   

Authors must be listed in the original item as submitted by the Primary Author. Co-
Sponsors may only be added in the following manner: 

 In the original item as submitted by the Primary Author 
 In a revised item submitted by the Primary Author at the Agenda & Rules 

Committee 
 By verbal request of the Primary Author at the Agenda & Rules Committee 
 In a revised item submitted by the Primary Author in Supplemental Reports 

and Communications Packet #1 or #2 
 By verbal or written request of the Mayor or any Councilmember at the Policy 

Committee meeting or meeting of the full Council at which the item is 
considered 

 
2. Agenda items shall contain all relevant documentation, including the information 

listed below:   

a) A descriptive title that adequately informs the public of the subject matter and 
general nature of the item or report; 

b) Whether the matter is to be presented on the Consent Calendar or the Action 
Calendar or as a Report for Information; 

67



III. AGENDA 

10 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

c) Recommendation of the report’s Primary Author that describes the action to 
be taken on the item, if applicable; 

d) Fiscal impacts of the recommendation; 

e) A description of the current situation and its effects; 

f) Background information as needed; 

g) Rationale for recommendation; 

h) Alternative actions considered; 

i) For awards of contracts; the abstract of bids and the Affirmative Action 
Program of the low bidder in those cases where such is required (these 
provisions shall not apply to Mayor and Council items);  

j) Person or persons to contact for further information, with telephone number;   

k) Additional information and analysis as required.  It is recommended that 
reports include the points of analysis in Appendix B - Guidelines for 
Developing and Writing Council Agenda Items. 

3. “Author” means the Mayor or other Councilmembers who actually authored an 
item by contributing to the ideas, research, writing or other material elements. 

4. “Primary Author” means the Mayor or Councilmember listed first on the item. The 
Primary Author is the sole contact for the City Manager with respect to the item.  
Communication with other Authors and Co-Sponsors, if any, is the responsibility 
of the Primary Author. 

5. “Co-Sponsor" means the Mayor or other Councilmembers who wish to indicate 
their strong support for the item, but are not Authors, and are designated by the 
Primary Author to be co-sponsors of the council agenda item. 

6. "Agenda" means the compilation of the descriptive titles of agenda items 
submitted to the City Clerk, arranged in the sequence established in Section III.E 
hereof. 

7. "Packet" means the agenda plus all its corresponding agenda items.  

8. "Emergency Matter" arises when prompt action is necessary due to the disruption 
or threatened disruption of public facilities and a majority of the Council 
determines that: 

a) A work stoppage or other activity which severely impairs public health, 
safety, or both; 

b) A crippling disaster, which severely impairs public health, safety or both.  
Notice of the Council's proposed consideration of any such emergency 

68



III. AGENDA 

11 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

matter shall be given in the manner required by law for such an emergency 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.5. 

9. “Continued Business” Items carried over from a prior agenda of a meeting 
occurring less than 11 days earlier. 

10. "Old Business" Items carried over from a prior agenda of a meeting occurring 
more than 11 days earlier. 

C. Procedure for Bringing Matters Before City Council 
1. Persons Who Can Place Matters on the Agenda. 

Matters may be placed on the agenda by the Mayor or any Councilmember, the 
City Manager, the Auditor, or any board/commission/committee created by the 
City Council. All items are subject to review, referral, and scheduling by the 
Agenda & Rules Committee pursuant to the rules and limitations contained herein. 
The Agenda & Rules Committee shall be a standing committee of the City Council.   

The Agenda & Rules Committee shall meet 15 days prior to each City Council 
meeting and shall approve the agenda of that City Council meeting.  Pursuant to 
BMC Section 1.04.080, if the 15th day prior to the Council meeting falls on a 
holiday, the Committee will meet the next business day. The Agenda & Rules 
Committee packet, including a draft agenda and Councilmember, Auditor, and 
Commission reports shall be distributed by 5:00 p.m. four days before the Agenda 
& Rules Committee meeting. 

The Agenda & Rules Committee shall have the powers set forth below. 
a) Items Authored by the Mayor, a Councilmember, or the Auditor.   

As to items authored by the Mayor, a Councilmember, or the Auditor, the 
Agenda & Rules Committee shall review the item and may take the 
following actions: 

i. Refer the item to a commission for further analysis (Primary Author may 
decline and request Policy Committee assignment). 

ii. Refer the item to the City Manager for further analysis (Primary Author 
may decline and request Policy Committee assignment). 

iii. Refer the item back to the Primary Author for adherence to required 
form or for additional analysis as required in Section III.B.2 (Primary 
Author may decline and request Policy Committee assignment). 
 

iv. Refer the item to a Policy Committee. 

v. Schedule the item for the agenda under consideration or one of the next 
three full Council agendas. 

  

69



III. AGENDA 

12 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

For referrals under Chapter III.C.1.a.i, ii, or iii, the Primary Author must 
inform the City Clerk within 24 hours of the adjournment of the Agenda & 
Rules Committee meeting whether they prefer to:  

1) re-submit the item for a future meeting with modifications as 
suggested by the Agenda & Rules Committee; or 

2) pull the item completely; or 

3) re-submit the item with revisions as requested by the Agenda & 
Rules Committee within 24 hours of the adjournment of the Agenda 
& Rules Committee meeting for the Council agenda under 
consideration; or  

4) accept the referral of the Agenda & Rules Committee in sub 
paragraphs III.C.1.a. i, ii, or iii, or request Policy Committee 
assignment.  

If the Primary Author requests a Policy Committee assignment, the item 
will appear on the next draft agenda presented to the Agenda & Rules 
Committee for assignment. 

In the event that the City Clerk does not receive guidance from the Primary 
Author of the referred item within 24 hours of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee’s adjournment, the item will appear on the next draft agenda for 
consideration by the Agenda & Rules Committee.  

Items held for a future meeting to allow for modifications will be placed on 
the next available Council meeting agenda at the time that the revised 
version is submitted to the City Clerk.  

b) Items Authored by the City Manager.  The Agenda & Rules Committee 
shall review agenda descriptions of items authored by the City Manager.  
The Committee can recommend that the matter be referred to a 
commission or back to the City Manager for adherence to required form, 
additional analysis as required in Section III.B.2, or suggest other 
appropriate action including scheduling the matter for a later meeting to 
allow for appropriate revisions. 

If the City Manager determines that the matter should proceed 
notwithstanding the Agenda & Rules Committee’s action, it will be placed 
on the agenda as directed by the Manager. All City Manager items placed 
on the Council agenda against the recommendation of the Agenda & Rules 
Committee will automatically be placed on the Action Calendar.  

70



III. AGENDA 

13 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

c) Items Authored by Boards and Commissions.  Council items submitted 
by boards and commissions are subject to City Manager review and must 
follow procedures and timelines for submittal of reports as described in the 
Commissioners’ Manual. The content of commission items is not subject to 
review by the Agenda & Rules Committee unless referred for policy review 
to the Agenda & Rules Committee. 

i) For a commission item that does not require a companion report from 
the City Manager, the Agenda & Rules Committee may act on an 
agendized commission report in the following manner:  

1. Move a commission report from the Consent Calendar to the 
Action Calendar or from the Action Calendar to the Consent 
Calendar. 

2. Re-schedule the commission report to appear on one of the next 
three regular Council meeting agendas that occur after the 
regular meeting under consideration.  Commission reports 
submitted in response to a Council referral shall receive higher 
priority for scheduling. 

3. Refer the item to a Policy Committee for review. 

4. Allow the item to proceed as submitted. 

ii) For any commission report that requires a companion report, the 
Agenda & Rules Committee may schedule the item on a Council 
agenda.  The Committee must schedule the commission item for a 
meeting occurring not sooner than 60 days and not later than 120 days 
from the date of the meeting under consideration by the Agenda & 
Rules Committee.  A commission report submitted with a complete 
companion report may be scheduled pursuant to subparagraph c.i. 
above. 

d) The Agenda & Rules Committee shall have the authority to re-order the 
items on the Action Calendar regardless of the default sequence 
prescribed in Chapter III, Section E. 

2. Scheduling Public Hearings Mandated by State, Federal, or Local Statute. 
The City Clerk may schedule a public hearing at an available time and date in 
those cases where State, Federal or local statute mandates the City Council hold 
a public hearing. 

3. Submission of Agenda Items. 
a) City Manager Items.  Except for Continued Business and Old Business, 

as a condition to placing an item on the agenda, agenda items from 
departments, including agenda items from commissions, shall be furnished 
to the City Clerk at a time established by the City Manager. 

71



III. AGENDA 

14 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

b) Council and Auditor Items.  The deadline for reports submitted by the 
Auditor, Mayor and City Council is 5:00 p.m. on Monday, 22 days before 
each Council meeting.  

c) Time Critical Items.  A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is 
considered urgent by the sponsor and that has a deadline for action that is 
prior to the next meeting of the Council and for which a report prepared by 
the City Manager, Auditor, Mayor or Councilmember is received by the City 
Clerk after established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda & 
Rules Committee’s published agenda. 

The Primary Author of the report shall bring any reports submitted as Time 
Critical to the meeting of the Agenda & Rules Committee.  Time Critical 
items must be accompanied by complete reports and statements of 
financial implications.  If the Agenda & Rules Committee finds the matter 
to meet the definition of Time Critical, the Agenda & Rules Committee may 
place the matter on the Agenda on either the Consent or Action Calendar. 

d) The City Clerk may not accept any agenda item after the adjournment of 
the Agenda & Rules Committee meeting, except for items carried over by 
the City Council from a prior City Council meeting occurring less than 11 
days earlier, which may include supplemental or revised reports, and 
reports concerning actions taken by boards and commissions that are 
required by law or ordinance to be presented to the Council within a 
deadline that does not permit compliance with the agenda timelines in BMC 
Chapter 2.06 or these rules. 

4. Submission of Supplemental and Revised Agenda Material. 
Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.06.070 allows for the submission of 
supplemental and revised agenda material.  Supplemental and revised material 
cannot be substantially new or only tangentially related to an agenda item.  
Supplemental material must be specifically related to the item in the Agenda 
Packet.  Revised material should be presented as revised versions of the report 
or item printed in the Agenda Packet.  Supplemental and revised material may be 
submitted for consideration as follows: 

a) Supplemental and revised agenda material shall be submitted to the City 
Clerk no later than 5:00 p.m. seven calendar days prior to the City Council 
meeting at which it is to be considered.  Supplemental and revised items 
that are received by the deadline shall be distributed to Council in a 
supplemental reports packet and posted to the City’s website no later than 
5:00 p.m. five calendar days prior to the meeting.  Copies of the 
supplemental packet shall also be made available in the office of the City 
Clerk and in the main branch of the Berkeley Public Library. Such material 
may be considered by the Council without the need for a determination that 
the good of the City clearly outweighs the lack of time for citizen review or 
City Councilmember evaluation. 

72



III. AGENDA 

15 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

b) Supplemental and revised agenda material submitted to the City Clerk after 
5:00 p.m. seven days before the meeting and no later than 12:00 p.m. one  
day prior to the City Council meeting at which it is to be considered shall 
be distributed to Council in a supplemental reports packet and posted to 
the City’s website no later than 5:00 p.m. one day prior to the meeting.  
Copies of the supplemental packet shall also be made available in the 
office of the City Clerk and in the main branch of the Berkeley Public 
Library. Such material may be considered by the Council without the need 
for a determination that the good of the City clearly outweighs the lack of 
time for citizen review or City Council evaluation. 

c) After 12:00 p.m. one calendar day prior to the meeting, supplemental or 
revised reports may be submitted for consideration by delivering a 
minimum of 42 copies of the supplemental/revised material to the City Clerk 
for distribution at the meeting.  Each copy must be accompanied by a 
completed supplemental/revised material cover page, using the form 
provided by the City Clerk.  Revised reports must reflect a comparison with 
the original item using track changes formatting.  The material may be 
considered only if the City Council, by a two-thirds roll call vote, makes a 
factual determination that the good of the City clearly outweighs the lack of 
time for citizen review or City Councilmember evaluation of the material.  
Supplemental and revised material must be distributed and a factual 
determination made prior to the commencement of public comment on the 
agenda item in order for the material to be considered. 

5. Scheduling a Presentation. 
Presentations from staff are either submitted as an Agenda Item or are requested 
by the City Manager.  Presentations from outside agencies and the public are 
coordinated with the Mayor's Office.  The Agenda & Rules Committee may adjust 
the schedule of presentations as needed to best manage the Council Agenda.  
The Agenda & Rules Committee may request a presentation by staff in 
consultation with the City Manager. 

D. Packet Preparation and Posting 
1. Preparation of the Packet. 

Not later than the thirteenth day prior to said meeting, the City Clerk shall prepare 
the packet, which shall include the agenda plus all its corresponding agenda 
items.  No item shall be considered if not included in the packet, except as 
provided for in Section III.C.4 and Section III.D.4.   

2. Distribution and Posting of Agenda. 
a) The City Clerk shall post each agenda of the City Council regular meeting 

no later than 11 days prior to the meeting and shall post each agenda of a 
special meeting at least 24 hours in advance of the meeting in the official 
bulletin board.  The City Clerk shall maintain an affidavit indicating the 
location, date and time of posting each agenda. 

b) The City Clerk shall also post agendas and annotated agendas of all City 
Council meetings and notices of public hearings on the City's website. 

73



III. AGENDA 

16 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

c) No later than 11 days prior to a regular meeting, copies of the agenda shall 
be mailed by the City Clerk to any resident of the City of Berkeley who so 
requests in writing.  Copies shall also be available free of charge in the City 
Clerk Department. 

3. Distribution of the Agenda Packet. 
The Agenda Packet shall consist of the Agenda and all supporting documents for 
agenda items.  No later than 11 days prior to a regular meeting, the City Clerk 
shall: 

a) distribute the Agenda Packet to each member of the City Council; 

b) post the Agenda Packet to the City’s website; 

c) place copies of the Agenda Packet in viewing binders in the office of the 
City Clerk and in the main branch of the Berkeley Public Library; and 

d) make the Agenda Packet available to members of the press. 

4. Failure to Meet Deadlines. 
a) The City Clerk shall not accept any agenda item or revised agenda item 

after the deadlines established. 

b) Matters not included on the published agenda may be discussed and acted 
upon as otherwise authorized by State law or providing the Council finds 
one of the following conditions is met: 

 A majority of the Council determines that the subject meets the 
criteria of "Emergency" as defined in Section III.B.8. 

 Two thirds of the Council determines that there is a need to take 
immediate action and that the need for action came to the attention 
of the City subsequent to the posting of the agenda as required by 
law. 

c) Matters listed on the printed agenda but for which supporting materials are 
not received by the City Council on the eleventh day prior to said meeting 
as part of the agenda packet, shall not be discussed or acted upon.   

E. Agenda Sequence and Order of Business 
The Council agenda for a regular business meeting is to be arranged in the following 
order:  
1. Preliminary Matters:  (Ceremonial, Comments from the City Manager, Comments 

from the City Auditor, Non-Agenda Public Comment) 
2. Consent Calendar 
3. Action Calendar 

a) Appeals 
b) Public Hearings 

74



III. AGENDA 

17 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

c) Continued Business 
d) Old Business 
e) New Business 

4. Information Reports 
5. Non-Agenda Public Comment 
6. Adjournment 
7. Communications 
Action items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of 
Council. 

The Agenda & Rules Committee shall have the authority to re-order the items on the 
Action Calendar regardless of the default sequence prescribed in this section. 

F. Closed Session Documents 
This section establishes a policy for the distribution of, and access to, confidential 
closed session documents by the Mayor and members of the City Council. 
 
1. Confidential closed session materials shall be kept in binders numbered from one 

to nine and assigned to the Mayor (#9) and each Councilmember (#1 to #8 by 
district).  The binders will contain confidential closed session materials related to 
Labor Negotiations, Litigation, and Real Estate matters. 
 

2. The binders will be maintained by City staff and retained in the Office of the City 
Attorney in a secure manner. City staff will bring the binders to each closed 
session for their use by the Mayor and Councilmembers. At other times, the 
binders will be available to the Mayor and Councilmembers during regular 
business hours for review in the City Attorney’s Office.  The binders may not be 
removed from the City Attorney’s Office or the location of any closed session 
meeting by the Mayor or Councilmembers.  City staff will collect the binders  at 
the end of each closed session meeting and return them to the City Attorney’s 
Office.   
 

3. Removal of confidential materials from a binder is prohibited. 
 

4. Duplication of the contents of a binder by any means is prohibited. 
 

5. Confidential materials shall be retained in the binders for at least two years.   
 

6. This policy does not prohibit the distribution of materials by staff to the Mayor and 
Councilmembers in advance of a closed session or otherwise as needed, but such 
materials shall also be included in the binders unless it is impracticable to do so. 

 

75



III. AGENDA 

18 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

G.   Regulations Governing City Council Policy Committees 

1. Legislative Item Process 
All agenda items begin with submission to the Agenda & Rules Committee.  
 
Full Council Track 
Items under this category are exempt from Agenda & Rules Committee discretion to 
refer them to a Policy Committee. Items in this category may be submitted for the 
agenda of any scheduled regular meeting pursuant to established deadlines (same 
as existing deadlines). Types of Full Council Track items are listed below. 
 
a. Items submitted by the City Manager and City Auditor  
b. Items submitted by Boards and Commissions 
c. Resolutions on Legislation and Electoral Issues relating to Outside 

Agencies/Jurisdictions 
d. Position Letters and/or Resolutions of Support/Opposition   
e. Donations from the Mayor and Councilmember District Office Budgets 
f. Referrals to the Budget Process 
g. Proclamations 
h. Sponsorship of Events 
i. Information Reports 
j. Presentations from Outside Agencies and Organizations 
k. Ceremonial Items 
l. Committee and Regional Body Appointments 

 
The Agenda & Rules Committee has discretion to determine if an item submitted by 
the Mayor or a Councilmember falls under a Full Council Track exception or if it will 
be processed as a Policy Committee Track item.   
 
Policy Committee Track 
Items submitted by the Mayor or Councilmembers with moderate to significant 
administrative, operational, budgetary, resource, or programmatic impacts will go first 
to the Agenda & Rules Committee on a draft City Council agenda.   
 
The Agenda & Rules Committee must refer an item to a Policy Committee at the first 
meeting that the item appears before the Agenda & Rules Committee. The Agenda 
& Rules Committee may only assign the item to a single Policy Committee. 
 
For a Policy Committee Track item, the Agenda & Rules Committee, at its discretion, 
may either route item directly to 1) the agenda currently under consideration, 2) one 
of the next three full Council Agendas (based on completeness of the item, lack of 
potential controversy, minimal impacts, etc.), or 3) to a Policy Committee. 

 

76



III. AGENDA 

19 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

Time Critical Track 
A Time Critical item is defined as a matter that is considered urgent by the sponsor 
and that has a deadline for action that is prior to the next meeting of the Council and 
for which a report prepared by the Mayor or Councilmember is received by the City 
Clerk after established deadlines and is not included on the Agenda & Rules 
Committee’s published agenda. 
 
The Agenda & Rules Committee retains final discretion to determine the time critical 
nature of an item.  
 
a) Time Critical items submitted on the Full Council Track deadlines, that would 

otherwise be assigned to the Policy Committee Track, may bypass Policy 
Committee review if determined to be time critical. If such an item is deemed not 
to be time critical, it may be referred to a Policy Committee. 

b) Time Critical items on the Full Council Track or Policy Committee Track that are 
submitted at a meeting of the Agenda & Rules Committee may go directly on a 
council agenda if determined to be time critical. 

 
2. Council Referrals to Committees 
The full Council may refer any agenda item to a Policy Committee by majority vote. 
 
3. Participation Rules for Policy Committees Pursuant to the Brown Act 

a. The quorum of a three-member Policy Committee is always two members. A 
majority vote of the committee (two ‘yes’ votes) is required to pass a motion. 
 

b. Two Policy Committee members may not discuss any item that has been 
referred to the Policy Committee outside of an open and noticed meeting. 
 

c. Notwithstanding paragraph (b) above, two members of a Policy Committee 
may be listed as Authors or Co-Sponsors on an item provided that one of the 
Authors or Co-Sponsors will not serve as a committee member for 
consideration of the item, and shall not participate in the committee’s 
discussion of, or action on the item. For purposes of the item, the appointed 
alternate, who also can not be an Author or Co-Sponsor, will serve as a 
committee member in place of the non-participating Author or Co-Sponsor.   
 

d. All three members of a Policy Committee may not be Authors or Co-Sponsors 
of an item that will be heard by the committee. 
 

e. Only one Author or Co-Sponsor who is not a member of the Policy Committee 
may attend the committee meeting to participate in discussion of the item. 

 

77



III. AGENDA 

20 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

f. If two or more non-committee members are present for any item or meeting, 
then all non-committee members may act only as observers and may not 
participate in discussion. If an Author who is not a member of the committee is 
present to participate in the discussion of their item, no other non-committee 
member Councilmembers, nor the Mayor, may attend as observers. 

 
g. An item may be considered by only one Policy Committee before it goes to the 

full Council. 
 

4. Functions of the Committees 
Committees shall have the following qualities/components: 
a. All committees are Brown Act bodies with noticed public meetings and public 

comment.  Regular meeting agendas will be posted at least 72 hours in advance 
of the meeting.  

b. Minutes shall be available online. 
c. Committees shall adopt regular meeting schedules, generally meeting once or 

twice per month; special meetings may be called when necessary, in accordance 
with the Brown Act. 

d. Generally, meetings will be held at 2180 Milvia Street in publicly accessible 
meeting rooms that can accommodate the committee members, public 
attendees, and staff. 

e. Members are recommended by the Mayor and approved by the full Council no 
later than January 31 of each year. Members continue to serve until successors 
are appointed and approved. 

f. Chairs are elected by the Committee at the first regular meeting of the Committee 
after the annual approval of Committee members by the City Council.  In the 
absence of the Chair, the committee member with the longest tenure on the 
Council will preside.   

g. The Chair, or a quorum of the Committee may call a meeting or cancel a meeting 
of the Policy Committee. 

h. Committees will review items for completeness in accordance with Section III.B.2 
of the City Council Rules of Procedure and Order and alignment with Strategic 
Plan goals.  

i. Reports leaving a Policy Committee must adequately include budget 
implications, administrative feasibility, basic legal concerns, and staff resource 
demands in order to allow for informed consideration by the full Council. 

j. Per Brown Act regulations, any revised or supplemental materials must be direct 
revisions or supplements to the item that was published in the agenda packet. 

 
Items referred to a Policy Committee from the Agenda & Rules Committee or from 
the City Council must be agendized for a committee meeting within 60 days of the 
referral date.  

78



III. AGENDA 

21 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

Within 120 days of the referral date, the committee must vote to either (1) accept the 
Primary Author’s request that the item remain in committee until a date certain (more than 
one extension may be requested by the Primary Author); or (2) send the item to the Agenda 
& Rules Committee to be placed on a Council Agenda with a Committee recommendation 
consisting of one of the four options listed below. 

 
1. Positive Recommendation (recommending Council pass the item as proposed),  
2. Qualified Positive Recommendation (recommending Council pass the item with 

some changes),  
3. Qualified Negative Recommendation (recommending Council reject the item unless 

certain changes are made) or  
4. Negative Recommendation (recommending the item not be approved). 

  
The Policy Committee’s recommendation will be included in a separate section of the 
report template for that purpose. 
 
A Policy Committee may not refer an item under its consideration to a city board or 
commission. 
 
The Primary Author of an item referred to a Policy Committee is responsible for revisions 
and resubmission of the item back to the full Council. Items originating from the City 
Manager are revised and submitted by the appropriate city staff.  Items from Commissions 
are revised and resubmitted by the members of the Policy Committee.  Items and 
recommendations originating from the Policy Committee are submitted to the City Clerk by 
the members of the committee. 
 
If a Policy Committee does not take final action by the 120-day deadline, the item is 
returned to the Agenda & Rules Committee and appears on the next available Council 
agenda. The Agenda & Rules Committee may leave the item on the agenda under 
consideration or place it on the next Council agenda.  Items appearing on a City Council 
agenda due to lack of action by a Policy Committee may not be referred to a Policy 
Committee and must remain on the full Council agenda for consideration. 
 
Policy Committees may add discussion topics that are within their purview to their agenda 
with the concurrence of a majority of the Committee. These items are not subject to the 
120-day deadline for action.   
 
Once the item is voted out of a Policy Committee, the final item will be resubmitted to the 
agenda process by the Primary Author, and it will return to the Agenda & Rules Committee 
on the next available agenda.  The Agenda & Rules Committee may leave the item on the 
agenda under consideration or place it on the following Council agenda. Only items that 
receive a Positive Recommendation can be placed on the Consent Calendar. 

79



III. AGENDA 

22 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

The Primary Author may request expedited committee review for items referred to a 
committee. Criteria for expedited review is generally to meet a deadline for action (e.g. 
grant deadline, specific event date, etc.). If the committee agrees to the request, the 
deadline for final committee action is 45 days from the date the committee approves 
expedited review. 
 
5. Number and Make-up of Committees 
Six committees are authorized, each comprised of three Councilmembers, with a fourth 
Councilmember appointed as an alternate. Each Councilmember and the Mayor will 
serve on two committees. The Mayor shall be a member of the Agenda and Rules 
Committee. The committees are as follows: 
 

1. Agenda and Rules Committee 
2. Budget and Finance Committee 
3. Facilities, Infrastructure, Transportation, Environment, and Sustainability 
4. Health, Life Enrichment, Equity, and Community 
5. Land Use, Housing, and Economic Development 
6. Public Safety 

 
The Agenda & Rules Committee shall establish the Policy Committee topic groupings, 
and may adjust said groupings periodically thereafter in order to evenly distribute 
expected workloads of various committees. 
 
All standing Policy Committees of the City Council are considered “legislative bodies” 
under the Brown Act and must conduct all business in accordance with the Brown Act. 
 

6. Role of City Staff at Committee Meetings 
Committees will be staffed by appropriate City Departments and personnel.  As part of 
the committee process, staff will undertake a high-level, preliminary analysis of 
potential legal issues, costs, timelines, and staffing demands associated with the item.  
Staff analysis at the Policy Committee level is limited to the points above as the 
recommendation, program, or project has not yet been approved to proceed by the full 
Council. 

80



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

23 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 
A. Comments from the Public 

Public comment will be taken in the following order: 
 An initial ten-minute period of public comment on non-agenda items, after the 

commencement of the meeting and immediately after Ceremonial Matters and 
City Manager Comments.  

 Public comment on the Consent and Information Calendars. 

 Public comment on action items, appeals and/or public hearings as they are 
taken up under procedures set forth in the sections governing each below. 

 Public comment on non-agenda items from any speakers who did not speak 
during the first round of non-agenda public comment at the beginning of the 
meeting.   

Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one 
speaker shall have more than four minutes.  A speaker wishing to yield their time 
shall identify themselves, shall be recognized by the chair, and announce publicly 
their intention to yield their time.  Disabled persons shall have priority seating in the 
front row of the public seating area. 

A member of the public may only speak once at public comment on any single item, 
unless called upon by the Mayor or a Councilmember to answer a specific inquiry. 

1. Public Comment on Consent Calendar and Information Items. 
The Council will first determine whether to move items on the agenda for “Action” 
or “Information” to the “Consent Calendar,” or move “Consent Calendar” items to 
“Action.” Items that remain on the “Consent Calendar” are voted on in one motion 
as a group. “Information” items are not discussed or acted upon at the Council 
meeting unless they are moved to “Action” or “Consent.” 

The Council will then take public comment on any items that are either on the 
amended Consent Calendar or the Information Calendar. A speaker may only 
speak once during the period for public comment on Consent Calendar and 
Information items. No additional items can be moved onto the Consent Calendar 
once public comment has commenced. 

At any time during, or immediately after, public comment on Information and 
Consent items, the Mayor or any Councilmember may move any Information or 
Consent item to “Action.” Following this, the Council will vote on the items 
remaining on the Consent Calendar in one motion.  

For items moved to the Action Calendar from the Consent Calendar or Information 
Calendar, persons who spoke on the item during the Consent Calendar public 
comment period may speak again at the time the matter is taken up during the 
Action Calendar. 

81



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

24 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

2. Public Comment on Action Items. 
After the initial ten minutes of public comment on non-agenda items, public 
comment on consent and information items, and adoption of the Consent 
Calendar, the public may comment on each remaining item listed on the agenda 
for action as the item is taken up. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the 
podium to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in 
speaking at that time. 

If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak for 
two minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the 
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per 
speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however 
no one speaker shall have more than four minutes. 

This procedure also applies to public hearings except those types of public 
hearings specifically provided for in this section, below. 

3. Appeals Appearing on Action Calendar. 
With the exception of appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board 
and Landmarks Preservation Commission, appeals from decisions of City 
commissions appear on the “Action” section of the Council Agenda.  Council 
determines whether to affirm the action of the commission, set a public hearing, 
or remand the matter to the commission.  Appeals of proposed special 
assessment liens shall also appear on the “Action” section of the Council Agenda.  
Appeals from decisions of the Zoning Adjustments Board and Landmarks 
Preservation Commission are automatically set for public hearing and appear on 
the “Public Hearings” section of the Council Agenda. 

Time shall be provided for public comment for persons representing both sides of 
the action/appeal and each side will be allocated seven minutes to present their 
comments on the appeal.  Where the appellant is not the applicant, the appellants 
of a single appeal collectively shall have seven minutes to comment and the 
applicant shall have seven minutes to comment.  If there are multiple appeals 
filed, each appellant or group of appellants shall have seven minutes to comment. 
Where the appellant is the applicant, the applicant/appellant shall have seven 
minutes to comment and the persons supporting the action of the board or 
commission on appeal shall have seven minutes to comment.  In the case of an 
appeal of proposed special assessment lien, the appellant shall have seven 
minutes to comment. 

After the conclusion of the seven-minute comment periods, members of the public 
may comment on the appeal. Comments from members of the public regarding 
appeals shall be limited to one minute per speaker.  Any person that addressed 
the Council during one of the seven-minute periods may not speak again during 
the public comment period on the appeal.  Speakers may yield their time to one 
other speaker, however, no speaker shall have more than two minutes.  Each side 

82



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

25 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

shall be informed of this public comment procedure at the time the Clerk notifies 
the parties of the date the appeal will appear on the Council agenda. 

4. Public Comment on Non Agenda Matters. 
Immediately following Ceremonial Matters and the City Manager Comments and 
prior to the Consent Calendar, persons will be selected by lottery to address 
matters not on the Council agenda.  If five or fewer persons submit speaker cards 
for the lottery, each person selected will be allotted two minutes each.  If more 
than five persons submit speaker cards for the lottery, up to ten persons will be 
selected to address matters not on the Council agenda and each person selected 
will be allotted one minute each. Persons wishing to address the Council on 
matters not on the Council agenda during the initial ten-minute period for such 
comment, must submit a speaker card to the City Clerk in person at the meeting 
location and prior to commencement of that meeting.

The remainder of the speakers wishing to address the Council on non-agenda 
items will be heard at the end of the agenda. Speaker cards are not required for 
this second round of public comment on non-agenda matters. 

Persons submitting speaker cards are not required to list their actual name, 
however they must list some identifying information or alternate name in order to 
be called to speak. 

For the second round of public comment on non-agenda matters, the Presiding 
Officer retains the authority to limit the number of speakers by subject. The 
Presiding Officer will generally request that persons wishing to speak, line up at 
the podium to be recognized to determine the number of persons interested in 
speaking at that time. Each speaker will be entitled to speak for two minutes each 
unless the Presiding Officer determines that one-minute is appropriate given the 
number of speakers. 

Pursuant to this document, no Council meeting shall continue past 11:00 p.m. 
unless a two-thirds majority of the Council votes to extend the meeting to discuss 
specified items.  If any agendized business remains unfinished at 11:00 p.m. or 
the expiration of any extension after 11:00 p.m., it will be referred to the Agenda 
& Rules Committee for scheduling pursuant to Chapter II, Section F.  In that event, 
the meeting shall be automatically extended for up to fifteen (15) minutes for public 
comment on non-agenda items. 

5. Ralph M. Brown Act Pertaining to Public Comments. 
The Brown Act prohibits the Council from discussing or taking action on an issue 
raised during Public Comment, unless it is specifically listed on the agenda.  
However, the Council may refer a matter to the City Manager. 

B. Consent Calendar 
There shall be a Consent Calendar on all regular meeting agendas on which shall be 
included those matters which the Mayor, Councilmembers, boards, commissions, 
City Auditor and City Manager deem to be of such nature that no debate or inquiry 

83



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

26 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

will be necessary at the Council meetings.  Ordinances for second reading may be 
included in the Consent Calendar. 

It is the policy of the Council that the Mayor or Councilmembers wishing to ask 
questions concerning Consent Calendar items should ask questions of the contact 
person identified prior to the Council meeting so that the need for discussion of 
consent calendar items can be minimized.  

Consent Calendar items may be moved to the Action Calendar by the Council.  Action 
items may be reordered at the discretion of the Chair with the consent of Council. 

C. Information Reports Called Up for Discussion 
Reports for Information designated for discussion at the request of the Mayor or any 
Councilmember shall be added to the appropriate section of the Action Calendar and 
may be acted upon at that meeting or carried over as pending business until 
discussed or withdrawn.  The agenda will indicate that at the request of Mayor or any 
Councilmember a Report for Information may be acted upon by the Council. 

D. Written Communications 
Written communications from the public will not appear on the Council agenda as 
individual matters for discussion but will be distributed as part of the Council agenda 
packet with a cover sheet identifying the author and subject matter and will be listed 
under "Communications."  All such communications must have been received by the 
City Clerk no later than 5:00 p.m. fifteen days prior to the meeting in order to be 
included on the agenda. 

In instances where an individual forwards more than three pages of email messages 
not related to actionable items on the Council agenda to the Council to be reproduced 
in the "Communications" section of the Council packet, the City Clerk will not 
reproduce the entire email(s) but instead refer the public to the City's website or a 
hard copy of the email(s) on file in the City Clerk Department.  

All communications shall be simply deemed received without any formal action by the 
Council.  The Mayor or a Councilmember may refer a communication to the City 
Manager for action, if appropriate, or prepare a consent or action item for placement 
on a future agenda. 

Communications related to an item on the agenda that are received after 5:00 p.m. 
fifteen days before the meeting are published as provided for in Chapter III.C.4. 

E. Public Hearings for Land Use, Zoning, Landmarks, and Public Nuisance  
Matters 
The City Council, in setting the time and place for a public hearing, may limit the 
amount of time to be devoted to public presentations.  Staff shall introduce the public 
hearing item and present their comments. 

Following any staff presentation, each member of the City Council shall verbally 
disclose all ex parte contacts concerning the subject of the hearing.  Members shall 
also submit a report of such contacts in writing prior to the commencement of the 
hearing.  Such reports shall include a brief statement describing the name, date, 

84



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

27 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

place, and content of the contact.  Written reports shall be available for public review 
in the office of the City Clerk prior to the meeting and placed in a file available for 
public viewing at the meeting. 

This is followed by five-minute presentations each by the appellant and applicant.  
Where the appellant is not the applicant, the appellants of a single appeal collectively 
shall have five minutes to comment and the applicant shall have five minutes to 
comment.  If there are multiple appeals filed, each appellant or group of appellants 
shall have five minutes to comment. Where the appellant is the applicant, the 
applicant/appellant shall have five minutes to comment and the persons supporting 
the action of the board or commission on appeal shall have five minutes to comment.  
In the case of a public nuisance determination, the representative(s) of the subject 
property shall have five minutes to present. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium 
to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at 
that time. 

If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak for two 
minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the Presiding 
Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per speaker. Any 
person that addressed the Council during one of the five-minute periods may not 
speak again during the public comment period on the appeal. Speakers are permitted 
to yield their time to one other speaker, however no one speaker shall have more 
than four minutes.  The Presiding Officer may with the consent of persons 
representing both sides of an issue allocate a block of time to each side to present 
their issue.   

F. Work Sessions 
The City Council may schedule a matter for general Council discussion and direction 
to staff.  Official/formal action on a work session item will be scheduled on a 
subsequent agenda under the Action portion of the Council agenda. 

In general, public comment at Council work sessions will be heard after the staff 
presentation, for a limited amount of time to be determined by the Presiding Officer. 

The Presiding Officer will request that persons wishing to speak, line up at the podium 
to be recognized and to determine the number of persons interested in speaking at 
that time.  If ten or fewer persons are interested in speaking, each speaker may speak 
for two minutes.  If there are more than ten persons interested in speaking, the 
Presiding Officer may limit the public comment for all speakers to one minute per 
speaker. Speakers are permitted to yield their time to one other speaker, however no 
one speaker shall have more than four minutes. 

After Council discussion, if time permits, the Presiding Officer may allow additional 
public comment.  During this time, each speaker will receive one minute.  Persons 
who spoke during the prior public comment time may be permitted to speak again. 

  

85



IV. CONDUCT OF MEETING 

28 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

G. Protocol 
People addressing the Council may first give their name in an audible tone of voice 
for the record.  All remarks shall be addressed to the Council as a body and not to 
any member thereof.  No one other than the Council and the person having the floor 
shall be permitted to enter into any discussion, either directly or through a member of 
the Council, without the permission of the Presiding Officer.  No question shall be 
asked of a Councilmember except through the Presiding Officer. 

86



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

29 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 
A. Persons Authorized to Sit at Tables 

No person, except City officials, their representatives and representatives of boards 
and commissions shall be permitted to sit at the tables in the front of the Council 
Chambers without the express consent of the Council. 

B. Decorum 
No person shall disrupt the orderly conduct of the Council meeting.  Prohibited 
disruptive behavior includes but is not limited to shouting, making disruptive noises, 
such as boos or hisses, creating or participating in a physical disturbance, speaking 
out of turn or in violation of applicable rules, preventing or attempting to prevent others 
who have the floor from speaking, preventing others from observing the meeting, 
entering into or remaining in an area of the meeting room that is not open to the 
public, or approaching the Council Dais without consent.  Any written communications 
addressed to the Council shall be delivered to the City Clerk for distribution to the 
Council.  

C. Enforcement of Decorum 
When the public demonstrates a lack of order and decorum, the presiding officer shall 
call for order and inform the person(s) that the conduct is violating the Rules of Order 
and Procedure and provide a warning to the person(s) to cease the disruptive 
behavior.  Should the person(s) fail to cease and desist the disruptive conduct, the 
presiding officer may call a five (5) minute recess to allow the disruptions to cease. 

If the meeting cannot be continued due to continued disruptive conduct, the presiding 
officer may have any law enforcement officer on duty remove or place any person 
who violates the order and decorum of the meeting under arrest and cause that 
person to be prosecuted under the provisions of applicable law. 

D. Precedence of Motions 
When a question or motion is before the Council, no motion shall be entertained 
except: 

1. To adjourn; 
2. To fix the hour of adjournment; 
3. To lay on the table; 
4. For the previous question; 
5. To postpone to a certain day; 
6. To refer; 
7. To amend; 
8. To substitute; and 
9. To postpone indefinitely. 
These motions shall have precedence in order indicated.  Any such motion, except a 
motion to amend or substitute, shall be put to a vote without debate. 

87



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

30 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

E. Robert’s Rules of Order 
Robert’s Rules of Order have been adopted by the City Council and apply in all cases 
except the precedence of motions in Section V.D shall supersede. 

F. Rules of Debate 
1. Presiding Officer May Debate. 

The presiding officer may debate from the chair; subject only to such limitations 
of debate as are by these rules imposed on all members, and shall not be deprived 
of any of the rights and privileges as a member of the Council by reason of that 
person acting as the presiding officer. 

2. Getting the Floor - Improper References to be avoided. 
Members desiring to speak shall address the Chair, and upon recognition by the 
presiding officer, shall confine themself to the question under debate. 

3. Interruptions. 
A member, once recognized, shall not be interrupted when speaking unless it is 
to call a member to order, or as herein otherwise provided.  If a member, while 
speaking, were called to order, that member shall cease speaking until the 
question of order is determined, and, if in order, the member shall be permitted to 
proceed. 

4. Privilege of Closing Debate. 
The Mayor or Councilmember moving the adoption of an ordinance or resolution 
shall have the privilege of closing the debate.  When a motion to call a question is 
passed, the Mayor or Councilmember moving adoption of an ordinance, resolution 
or other action shall have three minutes to conclude the debate. 

5. Motion to Reconsider. 
A motion to reconsider any action taken by the Council may be made only during 
the same session such action is taken.  It may be made either immediately during 
the same session, or at a recessed or adjourned session thereof.  Such motion 
must be made  by a member on the prevailing side, and may be made at any time 
and have precedence over all other motions or while a member has the floor; it 
shall be debatable.  Nothing herein shall be construed to prevent any member of 
the Council from making or remaking the same or other motion at a subsequent 
meeting of the Council. 

6. Repeal or Amendment of Action Requiring a Vote of Two-Thirds of Council, 
or Greater. 
Any ordinance or resolution which is passed and which, as part of its terms, 
requires a vote of two-thirds of the Council or more in order to pass a motion 
pursuant to such an ordinance or resolution, shall require the vote of the same 
percent of the Council to repeal or amend the ordinance or resolution.

88



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

31 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

G. Debate Limited 
1. Consideration of each matter coming before the Council shall be limited to 20 

minutes from the time the matter is first taken up, at the end of which period 
consideration of such matter shall terminate and the matter shall be dropped to 
the foot of the agenda, immediately ahead of  Information Reports; provided that 
either of the following two not debatable motions shall be in order: 

a) A motion to extend consideration which, if passed, shall commence a new 
twenty-minute period for consideration; or 

b) If there are one or more motions on the floor, a motion for the previous 
question, which, if passed by a 2/3 vote, shall require an immediate vote 
on pending motions. 

2. The time limit set forth in subparagraph 1 hereof shall not be applicable to any 
public hearing, public discussion, Council discussion or other especially set matter 
for which a period of time has been specified (in which case such specially set 
time shall be the limit for consideration) or which by applicable law (e.g. hearings 
of appeals, etc.), the matter must proceed to its conclusion. 

3. In the interest of expediting the business of the City, failure by the Chair or any 
Councilmember to call attention to the expiration of the time allowed for 
consideration of a matter, by point of order or otherwise, shall constitute 
unanimous consent to the continuation of consideration of the matter beyond the 
allowed time; provided, however, that the Chair or any Councilmember may at any 
time thereafter call attention to the expiration of the time allowed, in which case 
the Council shall proceed to the next item of business, unless one of the motions 
referred to in Section D hereof is made and is passed. 

H. Motion to Lay on Table 
A motion to lay on the table shall preclude all amendments or debate of the subject 
under consideration.  If the motion shall prevail, the consideration of the subject may 
be resumed only upon a motion of a member voting with the majority and with consent 
of two-thirds of the members present. 

I. Division of Question 
If the question contains two or more propositions, which can be divided, the presiding 
officer may, and upon request of a member shall, divide the same. 

J. Addressing the Council 
Under the following headings of business, unless the presiding officer rules 
otherwise, any interested person shall have the right to address the Council in 
accordance with the following conditions and upon obtaining recognition by the 
presiding officer: 

1. Written Communications. 
Interested parties or their authorized representatives may address the Council in 
the form of written communications in regard to matters of concern to them by 

89



V. PROCEDURAL MATTERS 

32 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

submitting their written communications at the meeting, or prior to the meeting 
pursuant to the deadlines in Chapter III.C.4.  

2. Public Hearings. 
Interested persons or their authorized representatives may address the Council 
by reading protests, petitions, or communications relating to matters then under 
consideration. 

3. Public Comment. 
Interested persons may address the Council on any issue concerning City 
business during the period assigned to Public Comment. 

K. Addressing the Council After Motion Made 
When a motion is pending before the Council, no person other than the Mayor or a 
Councilmember shall address the Council without first securing the permission of the 
presiding officer or Council to do so. 

L.   Use of Cellular Phones and Electronic Devices 
 

The use of cell phones during City Council meetings is discouraged for the Mayor 
and Councilmembers.  While communications regarding Council items should be 
minimized, personal communications between family members and/or caregivers 
can be taken outside in the case of emergencies. In order to acknowledge 
differences in learning styles and our of support tactile learners, note-taking can 
continue to be facilitated both with a pen and paper and/or on electronic devices 
such as laptop computers and tablets. 
 
The use cell phones during Closed Session Meetings is explicitly prohibited for the 
Mayor and Councilmembers.  

90



VI. FACILITIES 

33 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

VI. FACILITIES 

A. Meeting Location Capacity 
Attendance at council meetings shall be limited to the posted seating capacity of the 
meeting location.  Entrance to the meeting location will be appropriately regulated by 
the City Manager on occasions when capacity is likely to be exceeded.  While the 
Council is in session, members of the public shall not remain standing in the meeting 
room except to address the Council, and sitting on the floor shall not be permitted.   

B. Alternate Facilities for Council Meetings 
The City Council shall approve in advance a proposal that a Council meeting be held 
at a facility other than the School District Board Room. 

If the City Manager has reason to anticipate that the attendance for a meeting will be 
substantially greater than the capacity of the Board Room and insufficient time exists 
to secure the approval of the City Council to hold the meeting at an alternate facility, 
the City Manager shall make arrangements for the use of a suitable alternate facility 
to which such meeting may be recessed and moved, if the City Council authorizes 
the action. 

If a suitable alternate facility is not available, the City Council may reschedule the 
matter to a date when a suitable alternate facility will be available. 

Alternate facilities are to be selected from those facilities previously approved by the 
City Council as suitable for meetings away from the Board Room. 

C. Signs, Objects, and Symbolic Materials 
Objects and symbolic materials such as signs which do not have sticks or poles 
attached or otherwise create any fire or safety hazards will be allowed within the 
meeting location during Council meetings. 

D. Fire Safety 
Exits shall not be obstructed in any manner. Obstructions, including storage, shall not 
be placed in aisles or other exit ways. Hand carried items must be stored so that such 
items do not inhibit passage in aisles or other exit ways. Attendees are strictly 
prohibited from sitting in aisles and/or exit ways. Exit ways shall not be used in any 
way that will present a hazardous condition. 

E. Overcrowding 
Admittance of persons beyond the approved capacity of a place of assembly is 
prohibited. When the meeting location has reached the posted maximum capacity, 
additional attendees shall be directed to the designated overflow area. 

 

91



APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES 

34 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC 
FACILITIES 

Purpose  
To establish a uniform policy regarding the naming and renaming of existing and future 
parks, streets, pathways and other public facilities. 

 
Objective 
A. To ensure that naming public facilities (such as parks, streets, recreation facilities, 

pathways, open spaces, public building, bridges or other structures) will enhance the 
values and heritage of the City of Berkeley and will be compatible with community 
interest.  

 
Section 1 – Lead Commission  
The City Council designates the following commissions as the ‘Lead Commissions’ in 
overseeing, evaluating, and ultimately advising the Council in any naming or renaming of a 
public facility.  The lead commission shall receive and coordinate comment and input from 
other Commissions and the public as appropriate.  
 
Board of Library Trustees 
 
Parks and Recreation Commission –Parks, recreation centers, camps, plazas and public 
open spaces  
 
Public Works Commission –Public buildings (other than recreation centers), streets and 
bridges or other structures in the public thoroughfare.  
 
Waterfront Commission –Public facilities within the area of the City known as the Waterfront, 
as described in BMC 3.36.060.B.  

 
Section 2 – General Policy  
A. Newly acquired or developed public facilities shall be named immediately after 

acquisition or development to ensure appropriate public identity.  
B. No public facility may be named for a living person, but this policy can be overridden with 

a 2/3 vote of the City Council. 
C. Public facilities that are renamed must follow the same criteria for naming new facilities.  

In addition, the historical significance and geographical reference of the established 
name should be considered when weighing and evaluating any name change.  

D. The City encourages the recognition of individuals for their service to the community in 
ways that include the naming of activities such as athletic events, cultural presentations, 
or annual festivals, which do not involve the naming or renaming of public facilities.   

E. Unless restricted by covenant, facilities named after an individual should not necessarily 
be considered a perpetual name.  

 
Section 3 – Criteria for Naming of Public Facilities  
When considering the naming of a new public facility or an unnamed portion or feature within 
an already named public facility (such as a room within the facility or a feature within an 
established park), or, the renaming of an existing public facility the following criteria shall be 
applied: 

92



APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES 

35 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

 
A. Public Facilities are generally easier to identify by reference to adjacent street names, 

distinct geographic or environmental features, or primary use activity.  Therefore, the 
preferred practice is to give City-owned property a name of historical or geographical 
significance and to retain these names.  

B. No public facility may be named for a living person, but this policy can be overridden 
with a 2/3 vote of the City Council.  

C. The naming of a public facility or any parts thereof in recognition of an individual 
posthumously may only be considered if the individual had a positive effect on the 
community and has been deceased for more than 1 year.  

D. When a public facility provides a specific programmatic activity, it is preferred that the 
activity (e.g. skateboard park, baseball diamond) be included in the name of the park 
or facility.  

E. When public parks are located adjacent to elementary schools, a name that is the 
same as the adjacent school shall be considered.  

F. When considering the renaming of an existing public facility, in addition to applying 
criteria A-E above, proper weight should be given to the fact that: a name lends a site 
or property authenticity and heritage; existing names are presumed to have historic 
significance; and historic names give a community a sense of place and identity, 
continuing through time, and increases the sense of neighborhood and belonging.  

 
Section 4 –Naming Standards Involving a Major Contribution  
When a person, group or organization requests the naming or renaming of a public facility, 
all of the following conditions shall be met: 
A. An honoree will have made a major contribution towards the acquisition and/or 

development costs of a public facility or a major contribution to the City.  
B. The honoree has a record of outstanding service to their community  
C. Conditions of any donation that specifies that name of a public facility, as part of an 

agreement or deed, must be approved by the City Council, after review by and upon 
recommendation of the City Manager.  

 
Section 5 –Procedures for Naming or Renaming of Public Facilities 
A. Any person or organization may make a written application to the City Manager 

requesting that a public facility or portion thereof, be named or renamed.  
1. Recommendations may also come directly of the City Boards or Commissions, 

the City Council, or City Staff. 
B. The City Manager shall refer the application to the appropriate lead commission as 

defined in Section 1 of the City’s policy on naming of public facilities, for that 
commission’s review, facilitation, and recommendation of disposition.  

1. The application shall contain the name or names of the persons or organization 
making the application and the reason for the requested naming or renaming.  

C. The lead commission shall review and consider the application, using the policies and 
criteria articulated to the City Policy on Naming and Renaming to make a 
recommendation to Council.  

1. All recommendations or suggestion will be given the same consideration without 
regard to the source of the nomination  

 
D. The lead commission shall hold a public hearing and notify the general public of any 

discussions regarding naming or renaming of a public facility.  

93



APPENDIX A. POLICY FOR NAMING AND RENAMING PUBLIC FACILITIES 

36 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

1. Commission action will be taking at the meeting following any public hearing on 
the naming or renaming.  

E. The commission’s recommendation shall be forwarded to Council for final consideration. 

 

The City of Berkeley Policy for Naming and Renaming Public Facilities was adopted by the 
Berkeley City Council at the regular meeting of January 31, 2012. 

94



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

37 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL 
AGENDA ITEMS 

 
These guidelines are derived from the requirements for Agenda items listed in the 
Berkeley City Council Rules of Procedure and Order, Chapter III, Sections B(1) and 
(2), reproduced below.  In addition, Chapter III Section C(1)(a) of the Rules of 
Procedure and Order allows the Agenda & Rules Committee to request that the 
Primary Authorof an item provide “additional analysis” if the item as submitted 
evidences a “significant lack of background or supporting information” or “significant 
grammatical or readability issues.” 
 
These guidelines provide a more detailed and comprehensive overview of elements 
of a complete Council item. While not all elements would be applicable to every type 
of Agenda item, they are intended to prompt Authors to consider presenting items 
with as much relevant information and analysis as possible.   
 
Chapter III, Sections (B)(1) and (2) of Council Rules of Procedure and Order: 
 
2. Agenda items shall contain all relevant documentation, including the following as 

Applicable: 
a. A descriptive title that adequately informs the public of the subject matter and 

general nature of the item or report and action requested; 
b. Whether the matter is to be presented on the Consent Calendar or the Action 

Calendar or as a Report for Information; 
c. Recommendation of the City Manager, if applicable (these provisions shall 

not apply to Mayor and Council items.); 
d. Fiscal impacts of the recommendation; 
e. A description of the current situation and its effects; 
f. Background information as needed; 
g. Rationale for recommendation; 
h. Alternative actions considered; 
i. For awards of contracts; the abstract of bids and the Affirmative Action 

Program of the low bidder in those cases where such is required (these 
provisions shall not apply to Mayor and Council items.); 

j. Person or persons to contact for further information, with telephone number. 
If the Primary Author of any report believes additional background 
information, beyond the basic report, is necessary to Council understanding 
of the subject, a separate compilation of such background information may 
be developed and copies will be available for Council and for public review in 
the City Clerk Department, and the City Clerk shall provide limited distribution 
of such background information depending upon quantity of pages to be 
duplicated. In such case the agenda item distributed with the packet shall so 
indicate. 
 

95



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

38 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

Guidelines for City Council Items: 
 

1. Title 
2. Consent/Action/Information Calendar 
3. Recommendation 
4. Summary Statement/Current situation and its effects 
5. Background 
6. Review of Existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 
7. Actions/Alternatives Considered 
8. Consultation/Outreach Overview and Results 
9. Rationale for Recommendation 
10. Implementation, Administration and Enforcement 
11. Environmental Sustainability 
12. Fiscal Impacts 
13. Outcomes and Evaluation 
14. Contact Information 
15. Attachments/Supporting Materials 

___________________________________________________ 
 

1. Title 
A descriptive title that adequately informs the public of the subject matter and 
general nature of the item or report and action requested. 
 

2. Consent/Action/Information Calendar 
Whether the matter is to be presented on the Consent Calendar or the Action 
Calendar or as a Report for Information. 
 

3. Recommendation 
Clear, succinct statement of action(s) to be taken.  Recommendations can be 
further detailed within the item, by specific reference.   
 
Common action options include: 

● Adopt first reading of ordinance  
● Adopt a resolution 
● Referral to the City Manager (City Manager decides if it is a short term 

referral or is placed on the RRV ranking list) 
● Direction to the City Manager (City Manager is directed to execute the 

recommendation right away, it is not placed on any referral list) 
● Referral to a Commission or to a Standing or Ad Hoc Council Committee 
● Referral to the budget process 
● Send letter of support 
● Accept, Approve, Modify or Reject a recommendation from a Commission or 

Committee 
● Designate members of the Council to perform some action 

96



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

39 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

 
4. Summary Statement/ “Current situation and its effects” 

A short resume of the circumstances that give rise to the need for the 
recommended action(s).   

● Briefly state the opportunity/problem/concern that has been identified, and 
the proposed solution.  

● Example (fictional):  
Winter rains are lasting longer than expected.  Berkeley’s winter shelters are 
poised to close in three weeks, but forecasts suggest rain for another two 
months.  If they do not remain open until the end of the rainy season, 
hundreds of people will be left in the rain 24/7.  Therefore, this item seeks 
authorization to keep Berkeley’s winter shelters open until the end of April, 
and refers to the Budget Process $40,000 to cover costs of an additional two 
months of shelter operations. 
 

5. Background 
A full discussion of the history, circumstances and concerns to be addressed by the 
item.   

● For the above fictional example, Background would include information and 
data about the number and needs of homeless individuals in Berkeley, the 
number and availability of permanent shelter beds that meet their needs, the 
number of winter shelter beds that would be lost with closure, the impacts of 
such closure on this population, the weather forecasts, etc. 

 
6. Review of Existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 

Review, identify and discuss relevant/applicable Plans, Programs, Policies and 
Laws, and how the proposed actions conform with, compliment, are supported by, 
differ from or run contrary to them.  What gaps were found that need to be filled?  
What existing policies, programs, plans and laws need to be 
changed/supplemented/improved/repealed?  What is missing altogether that needs 
to be addressed? 

 
Review of all pertinent/applicable sections of:  

● The City Charter 
● Berkeley Municipal Code 
● Administrative Regulations 
● Council Resolutions 
● Staff training manuals 

Review of all applicable City Plans: 
● The General Plan 
● Area Plans  
● The Climate Action Plan 
● Resilience Plan 
● Equity Plan 

97



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

40 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

● Capital Improvements Plan 
● Zero Waste Plan 
● Bike Plan 
● Pedestrian Plan 
● Other relevant precedents and plans 

  Review of the City’s Strategic Plan 
Review of similar legislation previously introduced/passed by Council 
Review of County, State and Federal laws/policies/programs/plans, if 
applicable 
 

7. Actions/Alternatives Considered 
● What solutions/measures have other jurisdictions adopted that serve as 

models/cautionary tales? 
● What solutions/measures are recommended by advocates, experts, 

organizations? 
● What is the range of actions considered, and what are some of their major 

pros and cons? 
● Why were other solutions not as feasible/advisable? 

 
8. Consultation/Outreach Overview and Results 

● Review/list external and internal stakeholders that were consulted 
○ External: constituents, communities, neighborhood organizations, 

businesses and not for profits, advocates, people with lived 
experience, faith organizations, industry groups, people/groups that 
might have concerns about the item, etc. 

○ Internal: staff who would implement policies, the City Manager and/or 
deputy CM, Department Heads, City Attorney, Clerk, etc. 

● What reports, articles, books, websites and other materials were consulted?   
● What was learned from these sources?   
● What changes or approaches did they advocate for that were accepted or 

rejected? 
 

9. Rationale for Recommendation 
A clear and concise statement as to whether the item proposes actions that:  

● Conform to, clarify or extend existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 
● Change/Amend existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws in minor ways 
● Change/Amend existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws in major ways 
● Create an exception to existing Plans, Programs, Policies and Laws 
● Reverse/go contrary to or against existing Plans, Programs, Policies and 

Laws 
 
Argument/summary of argument in support of recommended actions. The argument 
likely has already been made via the information and analysis already presented, 

98



APPENDIX B. GUIDELINES FOR DEVELOPING AND WRITING COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS 

41 Council Rules of Procedure and Order 
 Adopted February 4, 2020 

City of Berkeley 

but should be presented/restated/summarized. Plus, further elaboration of terms for 
recommendations, if any.   
 

10. Implementation, Administration and Enforcement 
Discuss how the recommended action(s) would be implemented, administered and 
enforced. What staffing (internal or via contractors/consultants) and 
materials/facilities are likely required for implementation? 
 

11. Environmental Sustainability 
Discuss the impacts of the recommended action(s), if any, on the environment and 
the recommendation’s positive and/or negative implications with respect to the 
City’s Climate Action, Resilience, and other sustainability goals. 
 

12. Fiscal Impacts 
Review the recommended action’s potential to generate funds or savings for the 
City in the short and long-term, as well as the potential direct and indirect costs.   
 

13. Outcomes and Evaluation 
State the specific outcomes expected, if any (i.e., “it is expected that 100 homeless 
people will be referred to housing every year”) and what reporting or evaluation is 
recommended. 
 

14. Contact Information 
 

15. Attachments/Supporting Materials 
 

99



100



 
No Material 
Available for 

this Item  
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
There is no material for this item.  
 
 

 
 

City Clerk Department 
2180 Milvia Street 
Berkeley, CA 94704 
(510) 981-6900 
 
 

The City of Berkeley Agenda & Rules Policy Committee Webpage: 
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/City_Council/Policy_Committee__Agenda___Rules.aspx 

101

arichardson
Typewritten Text
09



102



 
Office of the City Manager 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7000 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager 

 
May 6, 2020 
 
To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
From: Dee Williams-Ridley, City Manager 
 
Subject: Resumption of certain Board and Commission meetings 
 
 
As you are aware, on March 12, 2020, I directed that most board and commission 
meetings be suspended for at least 60 days in order to help minimize the spread of 
COVID-19.  Exceptions can be made if a board or commission has time-sensitive, 
legally mandated business to complete, subject to approval by the City Manager and 
Health Officer.  On April 13, 2020, the City Council Agenda & Rules Committee 
recommended that this action remain in effect until it is determined by the City Manager, 
as the Director of Emergency Services, and the Health Officer that conditions are 
appropriate to resume meetings, while maintaining the health and safety of the 
community.  
 
The purpose of this memo is to notify you that as of today, the Health Officer and I are 
authorizing certain board and commission meetings to resume with a virtual meeting 
format.  In-person board/commission meetings are not authorized until further notice. 
Board/commission meetings will be held via Zoom, similar to the format being used by 
the City Council and City Council policy committees that have resumed meetings during 
the Shelter-in-Place Order. 
 
Resuming certain board/commission meetings is necessary at this time to enable action 
on a range of time-sensitive issues.  Examples include pending land use permit 
applications (some of which carry legal mandates for action within set time frames), land 
use policy efforts which are time-sensitive to address the acute housing crisis, and input 
required for pending tax decisions, such as to the Disaster and Fire Safety Commission 
regarding tax rates under Measure GG.  
 
Board and commission meetings will be scheduled with enough lead time to allow 
agendas to be finalized, applicants and interested parties to be contacted, and public 
hearing notices to be posted.  Staff are contacting board members/commissioners to let 
them know that certain boards/commissions are resuming.  Members of the public may 
also reach out to commission secretaries (contact information is included on each 
commission webpage) to inquire about dates of future board/commission meetings.  
 

103

mailto:manager@CityofBerkeley.infos
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager
arichardson
Typewritten Text
10



Page 2 
May 6, 2020 
Re:  Resumption of certain Boards and Commission meetings 
 
 

 

Depending on the board/commission, initial virtual meetings will be scheduled in late 
May and June.  Some commission meetings will take longer than others to schedule, as 
some of the same staff who are responsible for preparing commission meeting packets 
and notices are also serving as Disaster Service Workers.  We appreciate everyone’s 
patience as we move forward with next steps.  
 
Boards/commissions that are authorized to resume meeting remotely are: 

• Ashby and North Berkeley BART Station Zoning Standards Community Advisory 
Group 

• Design Review Committee  
• Disaster & Fire Safety Commission 
• Fair Campaign Practices Commission  
• Homeless Services Panel of Experts 
• Housing Advisory Commission (limited to quasi-judicial activities)  
• Joint Subcommittee on the Implementation of State Housing Laws  
• Landmarks Preservation Commission  
• Open Government Commission  
• Personnel Board  
• Planning Commission  
• Police Review Commission  
• Zoning Adjustments Board 

 
I will consider authorizing additional boards/commissions to resume meeting on a case-
by-case basis.  
 
Web-based platforms allow board members/commissioners, staff, applicants, and 
members of the public to participate from their respective shelter-in-place locations. 
Commissioners who do not have access to a computer or internet will be provided with 
hard copies of all materials and can participate via phone.  
 
Departments are organizing training on online meeting facilitation for staff and 
commission chairs, and we will hold practice runs to test out the technology.  
 
Please contact me directly with any questions or concerns.  
 

 
cc: Senior Leadership Team 

 
 

104



105



106



107



108



 
[First Last name] 
Councilmember District [District No.] 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704    Tel: 510.981.XXXX    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.XXXX 
E-Mail: xxxxx@CityofBerkeley.info 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL REVISED  
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2 
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4, 2020 
 
Item Number:   2 
 
Item Description:   Statement on Item 2 - Amendments to the Berkeley Election  

Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC  
Chapter 2.12 

 
Submitted by:  Councilmember Hahn 
 
This item seeks to outlaw Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley. I would like to offer an 
alternative: to allow Officeholder Accounts but establish regulations to limit them in ways that 
reflect Berkeley’s limitations on campaign donations and consider narrowing the uses for 
which Officeholder Account funds can be used.   
 
The action I advocate for Council to take is to refer a discussion of Officeholder accounts to 
the Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a reasonable set of limitations and rules for 
such accounts and bring back recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to 
consider referring to the Fair Campaign Practices Committee. 
 
 

 

109

rthomsen
Typewritten Text
11



 
ACTION CALENDAR 

February 4, 2020 
 
To:  Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 
From:  Vice Mayor Sophie Hahn  
Subject: Statement on Item 2 - Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to 

prohibit Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
This item seeks to outlaw Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley. I would like to offer an alternative: 
to allow Officeholder Accounts but establish regulations to limit them in ways that reflect 
Berkeley’s limitations on campaign donations and consider narrowing the uses for which 
Officeholder Account funds can be used.   
 
The action I advocate for Council to take is to refer a discussion of Officeholder accounts to the 
Agenda and Rules Committee, to consider a reasonable set of limitations and rules for such 
accounts and bring back recommendations to the full Council, for the Council to consider 
referring to the Fair Campaign Practices Committee. 
 
Officeholder accounts are accounts an elected official can open, and raise funds for, to pay for 
expenses related to the office they hold.1 They are not campaign accounts, and cannot be used 
for campaign purposes. The types of expenses Officeholder Accounts can be used for include 
research, conferences, events attended in the performance of government duties, printed 
newsletters, office supplies, travel related to official duties, etc. Cities can place limits on 
Officeholder Accounts, as Oakland has done.2 Officeholder Accounts must be registered as 
official “Committees” and adhere to strict public reporting requirements, like campaign 
accounts. They provide full transparency to the public about sources and uses of funds. 
 
The FCPC bases its recommendation to prohibit Officeholder Accounts on arguments about 
“equity” and potential “corruption” in elections. The report refers repeatedly to “challengers” and 
“incumbents,” suggesting that Officeholder Accounts are vehicles for unfairness in the election 
context. 
 
I believe that the FCPC’s recommendations reflect a misunderstanding of the purpose and uses 
of Officeholder Accounts, equating them with campaign accounts and suggesting that they 
create an imbalance between community members who apparently have already decided to run 
against an incumbent (so-called “challengers”) and elected officials who are presumed to be 

                                                
1 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-
Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf 
2 http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051  

110

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/content/dam/fppc/NS-Documents/LegalDiv/Regulations/Index/Chapter5/18531.62.pdf
http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051


always running for office. The recommendations do not take into account some important 
framing: the question of what funds are otherwise available to pay for Officeholder-type 
expenses for Officeholders or members of the public. Contrary to the conclusions of the FCPC, I 
believe Officeholder accounts are an important vehicle to redress a significant disadvantage for 
elected officials, whose ability to exercise free speech in the community and participate in 
conferences and events related to their profession is constrained by virtue of holding public 
office, as compared to community members, whose speech rights are unrestricted in any 
manner whatsoever, and who can raise money to use for whatever purposes they desire. 
 
Outlawing Officeholder Accounts is also posited as a means to create equity between more and 
less wealthy Officeholders, on the theory that less affluent Officeholders will have less access to 
fundraising for Officeholder Accounts than more affluent Officeholders.  Because there are no 
prohibition on using personal funds for many of the purposes for which Officeholder Account 
funds can be used, prohibiting Officeholder Accounts I believe has the opposite effect; it leaves 
more affluent Officeholders with the ability to pay for Officeholder expenses from personal 
funds, without providing an avenue for less affluent Officeholders, who may not have available 
personal funds, to raise money from their supporters to pay for such Officeholder expenses. 
 
The question of whether Officeholder Accounts should be allowed in Berkeley plays out in the 
context of a number of rules and realities that are important to framing any analysis.   
 
First, by State Law, elected officials are prohibited from using public funds for a variety of 
communications that many constituents nevertheless expect. For example, an elected official 
may not use public funds to send a mailing announcing municipal information to constituents, 
“such as a newsletter or brochure, […] delivered, by any means […] to a person’s residence, 
place of employment or business, or post office box.”3 Nor may an elected official mail an item 
using public funds that features a reference to the elected official affiliated with their public 
position.4  Note that Electronic newsletters are not covered by these rules, and can and do 
include all of these features, even if the newsletter service is paid for by the public entity. That 
said, while technically not required, many elected officials prefer to use email newsletter 
distribution services (Constant Contact, MailChimp, Nationbuilder, etc.) paid for with personal 
(or “Officeholder”) funds, to operate in the spirit of the original rules against using public funds 
for communications that include a photo of, or references to, the elected official.   
 
Without the ability to raise funds for an Officeholder Account, for an elected official to send a 
paper newsletter to constituents or to use an email newsletter service that is not paid for with 
public funds, they must use personal funds. A printed newsletter mailed to 5-6,000 households 
(a typical number of households in a Berkeley City Council District) can easily cost $5,000+, and 
an electronic mail service subscription typically costs $10 (for the most basic service) to $45 per 
month, a cost of $120.00 to over $500 per year - in personal funds.   

                                                
3 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-
funds/campaign-related-communications.html 
4 http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-
funds/campaign-related-communications.html 

111

http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html
http://www.fppc.ca.gov/learn/public-officials-and-employees-rules-/communications-sent-using-public-funds/campaign-related-communications.html


 
Second, Berkeley City Councilmembers and the Mayor of Berkeley are not paid enough for 
there to be any reasonable expectation that personal funds should be used for these types of 
expenses.5  For many Councilmembers and/or the Mayor, work hours are full time - or more - 
and there is no other source of income.  
  
Finally, and most importantly, local elected officials are restricted from accepting money or gifts. 
An elected official cannot under any circumstances raise money to pay for Officeholder 
expenses such as printed communications, email newsletter services, travel and admission to 
industry conferences for which the elected official is not an official delegate (e.g., conferences 
on City Planning, Green Cities, Municipal Finance, etc.), and other expenses related to holding 
office that are not covered by public funds. Again, without the possibility of an Officeholder 
Account, an elected official generally must use personal funds for these expenses, allowing 
more affluent elected officials to participate while placing a hardship or in some cases a 
prohibition on the ability of less affluent elected officials to undertake these Officeholder-type 
activities - which support expected communications with constituents and participation in 
industry activities that improve the elected official’s effectiveness.   
 
The elected official’s inability to raise funds from others must be contrasted with the ability of a 
community member - a potential “challenger” who has not yet declared themselves to be an 
actual candidate - or perhaps a neighborhood association, business or corporation (Chevron, for 
example) - to engage in similar activities. Nothing restricts any community member or 
organization from using their own funds - or funds obtained from anyone - a wealthy friend, a 
corporation, a local business, a community organization or their neighbors - for any purpose 
whatsoever.   
 
Someone who doesn’t like the job an elected official is doing could raise money from family or 
connections anywhere in the community - or the world - and mail a letter to every person in the 
District or City criticizing the elected official, or buy up every billboard or banner ad on Facebook 
or Berkeleyside to broadcast their point of view.  By contrast, the elected official, without access 
to an Officeholder Account, could only use personal funds to “speak” with their own printed 
letter, billboard or advertisement. Community members (including future “challengers”) can also 
attend any and all conferences they want, engage in travel to visit interesting cities and projects 
that might inform their thoughts on how a city should be run, and pay for those things with 
money raised from friends, colleagues, businesses, corporations, foreign governments - 
anyone. They are private citizens with full first amendment rights and have no limitations, no 
reporting requirements, no requirements of transparency or accountability whatsoever. 
 
The imbalance is significant. Outside of the campaign setting, where all declared candidates 
can raise funds and must abide by the same rules of spending and communications, elected 
officials cannot raise money for any expenses whatsoever, from any source, while community 

                                                
5 Councilmembers receive annual compensation of approximately $36,000, while the Mayor receives 
annual compensation of approximately $55,000.5   

112



members, including organizations and private companies, can raise as much money as they 
want from any sources, and use that money for anything they choose.   
 
Without the ability to establish and fund an Officeholder Account, the only option an elected 
official has is to use personal funds, which exacerbates the potential imbalance between elected 
officials with more and less personal funds to spend.  Elected officials work within a highly 
regulated system, which can limit their ability to “speak” and engage in other activities members 
of the public are able to undertake without restriction. Officeholder Accounts restore some 
flexibility by allowing elected officials to raise money for expenses related to holding office, so 
long as the sources and uses of those funds is made transparent.   
 
By allowing Officeholder Accounts and regulating them, Berkeley can place limits on amounts 
that can be raised, and on the individuals/entities from whom funds can be accepted, similar (or 
identical) to the limits Berkeley places on sources of campaign funds. Similarly, Berkeley can 
restrict uses of funds beyond the State’s restrictions, to ensure funds are not used for things like 
family members’ travel, as is currently allowed by the State. Oakland has taken this approach, 
and has a set of Officeholder Account regulations that provide a good starting point for Berkeley 
to consider.6      
 
I respectfully ask for a vote to send the question of potential allowance for, and regulation of, 
Officeholder Accounts to the Agenda and Rules Committee for further consideration. 
 
CONTACT: Sophie Hahn, District 5: (510) 981-7150 
 

                                                
6 http://www2.oaklandnet.com/w/OAK052051 

113



 
Fair Campaign Practices Commission 

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-6998 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● Fax: (510) 981-7099 
E-Mail: sharvey@cityof berkeley.info  Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/ 

 
 
 

SUPPLEMENTAL  
AGENDA MATERIAL 

for Supplemental Packet 2  
 
 
Meeting Date:   February 4, 2020 
 
Item Number:   2 
 
Item Description:   Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit 
Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12 
 
Submitted by:  Samuel Harvey; Deputy City Attorney / Secretary, Fair 
Campaign Practices Commission 
 
Attachment 4 to the report (“Memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela 
Albuquerque”) included an attachment which was erroneously omitted from the 
Council item.  Attached is Attachment 4 (for context) along with the additional pages 
which should be included to appear as pages 16 -17 of the item.   
 
 

 

114

http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Page 14 of 16

115



Page 15 of 16

116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



Fair Campaign Practices Commission
PUBLIC HEARING
February 4, 2020

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council 

From: Fair Campaign Practices Commission

Submitted by: Dean Metzger, Chairperson, Fair Campaign Practices Commission

Subject: Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act to prohibit 
Officeholder Accounts; Amending BMC Chapter 2.12

RECOMMENDATION
Conduct a public hearing and upon conclusion, adopt first reading of an ordinance 
amending the Berkeley Election Reform Act, Berkeley Municipal Code Chapter 2.12, 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts (See Section 18531.62. Elected State Officeholder 
Bank Accounts, Regulations of the Fair Political Practices Commission).

SUMMARY
Contributions to and expenditures from Officeholder Accounts provide an unfair 
advantage to incumbents. They also increase the reliance on private campaign 
contributions and risk increasing the perception of corruption. Amending the Berkeley 
Election Reform Act to prohibit Officeholder Accounts will help to level the playing field 
in municipal elections, which was also a goal of the Fair Elections Act of 2016.

FISCAL IMPACTS OF RECOMMENDATION
None.

CURRENT SITUATION AND ITS EFFECTS
The proposed amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act (BERA) were adopted 
by the Fair Campaign Practices Commission (FCPC) at its regular meeting of 
November 21, 2019.

Action: M/S/C (Smith/Saver) to adopt the proposed amendments to BERA related to 
Officeholder Accounts.
Vote: Ayes: Metzger, Ching, Saver, Blome, McLean, Tsang, Smith; Noes: none; 
Abstain: none; Absent: O’Donnell (excused).

Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051, BERA may be amended by the 
“double green light” process. This process requires that the FCPC adopt the 
amendments by a two-thirds vote, and the City Council hold a public hearing and adopt 
the amendments by a two-thirds vote.

2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 • Tel: (510) 981-7000 • TDD: (510) 981-6903 • Fax: (510) 981-7099
E-Mail: manager@CityofBerkeley.info Website: http://www.CityofBerkeley.info/Manager

Page 1 of 16

165

mailto:manager@cityofberkeley.info
http://www.cityofberkeley.info/Manager


Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

February 4, 2020

Page 2

BACKGROUND
The Fair Campaign Practices Commission has supported creating the circumstances in 
which the incumbent and challengers during an election play on as level a playing field 
as possible and reducing the influence of private campaign contributions. For instance, 
the Berkeley Fair Elections Act of 2016, which was passed by voters and recommended 
to Council by the Commission, included the following express purposes:

• Eliminate the danger of actual corruption of Berkeley officials caused by 
the private financing of campaigns.

• Help reduce the influence of private campaign contributions on Berkeley 
government.

• Reduce the impact of wealth as a determinant of whether a person 
becomes a candidate.

(Section 2.12.490(B)-(D).)

A recent inquiry to the Commission Secretary regarding the regulation of Officeholder 
Accounts resulted in a request from a Commissioner to have discussion of these 
accounts placed on the May 16, 2019 agenda for possible action. The following motion 
was made and passed at that meeting:

Motion to request staff work with Commissioner Smith to bring to a future 
meeting background information and a proposal to eliminate officeholder 
accounts (M/S/C: O’Donnell/Blome; Ayes: Blome, Ching, McLean, Metzger, 
O’Donnell, Saver, Smith, Tsui; Noes: None; Abstain: None; Absent: Harper 
(excused)).

Definition of an Officeholder Account

Under state law, an “officeholder account” refers to the funds held in a single bank 
account at a financial institution in the State of California separate from any other bank 
account held by the officeholder and that are used for “paying expenses associated with 
holding public office.” Officeholder Account funds cannot be used to pay “campaign 
expenses.” This definition is drawn from state law applicable to statewide elected 
officials: Government Code section 85316 (Attachment 2), and the accompanying 
regulation by the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) codified at Title 2, Division 
6, of the California Code of Regulations, Section 18531.62 (Attachment 3).

Contributions to or expenditures from an Officeholder Account are not subject to 
BERA’s reporting requirements.  (The FPPC still requires the reporting of activity 
relating to Officeholder Accounts, which is available to view on Berkeley’s Public Access 
Portal.)  If, however, a complaint is filed that an Officeholder Account is used for

Page 2 of 16

166



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

February 4, 2020

Page 3

campaign contributions or to pay “campaign expenses,” BERA can be used to respond 
to the complaint. The legal arguments for these statements are contained in a 
memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela Albuquerque to Aide to Mayor Shirley 
Dean, Barbara Gilbert, dated December 28, 1999 and a December 9, 1991 
memorandum by Secretary and Staff Counsel to the FCPC, Sarah Reynoso, that is 
attached to the December 28, 1999 memo. (Attachment 4.) Because the BERA 
provisions relied on in these memoranda have not been amended, and because no 
other BERA provisions have been added to regulate officeholder accounts, the 
memoranda’s conclusions remain valid and are still controlling guidance.

Contributions to Officeholder Accounts

Funds raised for Officeholder Accounts in Berkeley are not subject to any limitations, 
either from the FPPC or BERA. Neither is there a limit on the total amount the 
Officeholder Account fund may receive in contributions per year. Contributions to an 
elected official’s Officeholder Account may put that contributor in a more favorable light 
with the elected official than might otherwise be the case.

Expenditures from Officeholder Accounts

Except for the restriction that Officeholder Account funds cannot be used for “campaign 
expenses,” BERA does not restrict how funds from Officeholder Accounts can be used.

There are a number of permissible expenditures from Officeholder Accounts that could 
put an elected official in a favorable light with voters that are not available to a 
challenger for that office.  A donation to a nonprofit organization, although technically 
not a “campaign expense,” would be seen favorably by those receiving the funds as well 
as individuals favorably disposed to the nonprofit organization receiving the funds. An 
individual running against this incumbent would have to draw on their own resources to 
make contributions to nonprofit organizations.

As long as political campaigns are not included, newsletters mailed to constituents 
related to events, information, or an officeholder’s position on matters before the 
Council are a permissible Officeholder Account expenditure. This keeps the 
incumbent’s name in front of the voter in a way unavailable to a challenger unless they 
pay for a newsletter and its distribution from their own resources.

Expenditures from Officeholder Account funds for flowers and other expressions of 
condolences, congratulations, or appreciation, while technically not “campaign 
expenses,” also increase the probability that the recipient will be favorably predisposed 
toward the elected official as a candidate for reelection or election to another office.
Again, a challenger would have to draw on their own resources to express condolences, 
congratulations, or appreciation to their potential supporters.

Page 3 of 16

167



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

February 4, 2020

Page 4

Further, officeholder accounts can be used to pay for a broad range of office expenses, 
such as meals, travel, parking tickets, or contributions to other candidates or political 
parties.1  Eliminating officeholder accounts would reduce reliance on and the influence 
of private contributions for these expenditures.

Recommendation

To make elections more equitable between challengers and incumbent and for the 
reasons given above, the Fair Campaign Practices Commission recommends 
prohibiting Officeholder Accounts.

Berkeley will not be the first to prohibit Officeholder Accounts. The San Jose Municipal 
Code was amended to prohibit officeholder accounts in January 2008.  (Chapter 12.06
– ELECTIONS, San Jose, CA Code of Ordinances, p. 10)

Part 8 - OFFICEHOLDER ACCOUNTS
12.06.810 - Officeholder account prohibited.

No city officeholder, or any person or committee on behalf of a city 
officeholder may establish an officeholder account or an account established 
under the Political Reform Act, California Government Code Section 8100 et seq. 
as amended, for the solicitation or expenditure of officeholder funds. Nothing in 
this section shall prohibit an officeholder from spending personal funds on official 
or related business activities.

The following additions to BERA are proposed:

2.12.157 Officeholder Account

“Officeholder Account” means any bank account maintained by an elected officer or by 
any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, and whose funds are used for 
expenses associated with holding office and not for direct campaign purposes.

2.12.441 Officeholder account prohibited

A. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may establish an officeholder account.

B. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may use contributions, as defined in 2.12.100, for expenses associated with 
holding office.

1 Under state law applicable to state elected officials, officeholders may use campaign contributions for 
“expenses that are associated with holding office.” (Govt. Code, § 89510.) To qualify, expenditures must 
be “reasonably related to a legislative or governmental purpose.” (Id., § 89512.) “Expenditures which 
confer a substantial personal benefit shall be directly related to a political, legislative, or governmental 
purpose.” (Ibid.)

Page 4 of 16

168



Amendments to the Berkeley Election Reform Act 
to prohibit Officeholder Accounts PUBLIC HEARING

January 21, 2020

C. Anyone holding an active Officeholder Account on the date this change to 
BERA is adopted on a second reading by the City Council has one year from 
that date to terminate their Officeholder Account, in accordance with FPPC 
guidelines.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
There are no identified environmental effects related to the recommendation in this 
report.

RATIONALE FOR RECOMMENDATION
This proposed change to BERA will help to level the playing field between challengers 
and the incumbent running for elective office.

ALTERNATIVE ACTIONS CONSIDERED
A Subcommittee was formed to consider the options of (1) amending the Berkeley 
Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, to prohibit Officeholder Accounts, (2) 
amending BERA to mitigate possible advantages incumbents with an Officeholder 
Accounts have over challengers, or (3) doing nothing with regard to Officeholder 
Accounts. The four members of the Subcommittee recommended unanimously to the 
full Commission to amend the Berkeley Elections Reform Act, BMC Chapter 2.12, to 
prohibit Officeholder Accounts.

CITY MANAGER
The City Manager takes no position on the content and recommendations of this report.

CONTACT PERSON
Dean Metzger, Chair, Fair Campaign Practices Commission. 981-6998

Attachments:
1: Proposed Ordinance
2: Government Code section 85316
3: Section 18531.62 (Elected State Officeholder Bank Accounts), Regulations of the 
Fair Political Practices Commission, Title 2, Division 6, California Code of Regulations 
4: Memorandum signed by City Attorney Manuela Albuquerque to Aide to Mayor 
Shirley Dean, Barbara Gilbert (including attached memorandum signed by Secretary 
and Staff Counsel to the FCPC, Sarah Reynoso, to the FCPC)

Page 5

Page 5 of 16

169



ORDINANCE NO. ##,###-N.S.

OFFICEHOLDER ACCOUNT PROHIBITED; AMENDING BERKELEY MUNICIPAL CODE 
CHAPTER 2.12

BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Berkeley as follows:

Section 1.  That Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.12.157 is added to read as follows:

BMC 2.12.157 Officeholder account

“Officeholder Account” means any bank account maintained by an elected officer or by 
any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, and whose funds are used for 
expenses associated with holding office and not for direct campaign purposes.

Section 2.  That Berkeley Municipal Code section 2.12.441 is added to read as follows:

BMC 2.12.441 Officeholder account prohibited

A. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may establish an officeholder account.

B. No elected officer, or any person or committee on behalf of an elected officer, 
may use contributions, as defined in 2.12.100, for expenses associated with 
holding office.

C. This provision does not affect a candidate’s ability to establish a legal defense 
fund or the requirements for such a fund, as set forth in the Political Reform 
Act or by regulation.

D. Any active Officeholder Account on the date this change to BERA is adopted 
on a second reading by the City Council has one year from that date to 
terminate their Officeholder Account.

Section 3. Copies of this Ordinance shall be posted for two days prior to adoption in the 
display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek Building, 2134 
Martin Luther King Jr. Way. Within 15 days of adoption, copies of this Ordinance shall be 
filed at each branch of the Berkeley Public Library and the title shall be published in a 
newspaper of general circulation

Page 6 of 16

170



10/8/2019 Law section

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/codes_displaySection.xhtml?lawCode=GOV&sectionNum=85316. 1/1

Code: Select Code Section: Search

TITLE 9. POLITICAL REFORM [81000 - 91014]  ( Title 9 added June 4, 1974, by initiative Proposition 9. )
CHAPTER 5. Limitations on Contributions [85100 - 85802]  ( Chapter 5 added June 7, 1988, by initiative Proposition 73. )

85316.  

 Up^  << Previous     Next >> cross-reference chaptered bills PDF | Add To My Favorites
Search Phrase: Highlight

GOVERNMENT CODE - GOV
 

ARTICLE 3. Contribution Limitations [85300 - 85321]  ( Article 3 added June 7, 1988, by initiative Proposition 73. )

(a) Except as provided in subdivision (b), a contribution for an election may be accepted by a candidate for
elective state office after the date of the election only to the extent that the contribution does not exceed net debts
outstanding from the election, and the contribution does not otherwise exceed the applicable contribution limit for
that election.

(b) Notwithstanding subdivision (a), an elected state officer may accept contributions after the date of the election
for the purpose of paying expenses associated with holding the office provided that the contributions are not
expended for any contribution to any state or local committee. Contributions received pursuant to this subdivision
shall be deposited into a bank account established solely for the purposes specified in this subdivision.

(1) No person shall make, and no elected state officer shall receive from a person, a contribution pursuant to this
subdivision totaling more than the following amounts per calendar year:

(A) Three thousand dollars ($3,000) in the case of an elected state officer of the Assembly or Senate.

(B) Five thousand dollars ($5,000) in the case of a statewide elected state officer other than the Governor.

(C) Twenty thousand dollars ($20,000) in the case of the Governor.

(2) No elected state officer shall receive contributions pursuant to paragraph (1) that, in the aggregate, total more
than the following amounts per calendar year:

(A) Fifty thousand dollars ($50,000) in the case of an elected state officer of the Assembly or Senate.

(B) One hundred thousand dollars ($100,000) in the case of a statewide elected state officer other than the
Governor.

(C) Two hundred thousand dollars ($200,000) in the case of the Governor.

(3) Any contribution received pursuant to this subdivision shall be deemed to be a contribution to that candidate for
election to any state office that he or she may seek during the term of office to which he or she is currently elected,
including, but not limited to, reelection to the office he or she currently holds, and shall be subject to any applicable
contribution limit provided in this title. If a contribution received pursuant to this subdivision exceeds the allowable
contribution limit for the office sought, the candidate shall return the amount exceeding the limit to the contributor
on a basis to be determined by the Commission. None of the expenditures made by elected state officers pursuant
to this subdivision shall be subject to the voluntary expenditure limitations in Section 85400.

(4) The commission shall adjust the calendar year contribution limitations and aggregate contribution limitations
set forth in this subdivision in January of every odd-numbered year to reflect any increase or decrease in the
Consumer Price Index. Those adjustments shall be rounded to the nearest one hundred dollars ($100).

(Amended by Stats. 2007, Ch. 130, Sec. 149. Effective January 1, 2008. Note: This section was added by Stats.
2000, Ch. 102, and approved in Prop. 34 on Nov. 7, 2000.)

Home Bill Information California Law Publications Other Resources My Subscriptions My Favorites

Page 7 of 16

171



Page 8 of 16

172



Page 9 of 16

173



Page 10 of 16

174



Page 11 of 16

175



Page 12 of 16

176



Page 13 of 16

177



Page 14 of 16

178



Page 15 of 16

179



NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
BERKELEY CITY COUNCIL

AMENDMENTS TO THE BERKELEY ELECTION REFORM ACT

The Fair Campaign Practices Commission is proposing amendments to the Berkeley 
Election Reform Act related to the prohibition of officeholder accounts.

The hearing will be held on, February 4, 2020, at 4:00 p.m. in the School District Board 
Room, 1231 Addison Street.

A copy of the agenda material for this hearing will be available on the City’s website at 
www.CityofBerkeley.info as of January 30, 2020.

For further information, please contact Samuel Harvey, Commission Secretary at 981- 
6998.

Written comments should be mailed or delivered directly to the City Clerk, 2180 Milvia 
Street, Berkeley, CA 94704, in order to ensure delivery to all Councilmembers and 
inclusion in the agenda packet.

Communications to the Berkeley City Council are public record and will become part of 
the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website. Please 
note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not 
required, but if included in any communication to the City Council, will become 
part of the public record. If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact 
information to be made public, you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service 
or in person to the City Clerk.  If you do not want your contact information included in 
the public record, please do not include that information in your communication. Please 
contact the City Clerk at 981-6900 or clerk@cityofberkeley.info for further information.

Published: January 24, 2020 – The Berkeley Voice
Pursuant to Berkeley Municipal Code Section 2.12.051

~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~
I hereby certify that the Notice for this Public Hearing of the Berkeley City Council was 
posted at the display case located near the walkway in front of the Maudelle Shirek 
Building, 2134 Martin Luther King Jr. Way, as well as on the City’s website, on 
January 30, 2020.

Mark Numainville, City Clerk

Page 16 of 16

180

http://www.ci.berkeley.ca.us/
mailto:clerk@cityofberkeley.info


2180 Milvia Street, Berkeley, CA 94704 ● Tel: (510) 981-7170 ● TDD: (510) 981-6903 ● E-Mail: 
RRobinson@cityofberkeley.info

CONSENT CALENDAR
December 10, 2019

To: Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council

From: Councilmembers Rigel Robinson and Sophie Hahn

Subject: Referral: Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery

RECOMMENDATION
Refer to the Zero Waste Commission to develop a plan, in consultation with the public 
and key stakeholders, to achieve timely compliance with Senate Bill 1383 (Lara, 2016) 
including:

1. An ordinance making composting compulsory for all businesses and residences 
in the City of Berkeley. The Commission should also consider the inclusion of 
compulsory recycling.

2. An edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 
generators.

CURRENT SITUATION
Recycling and composting in Berkeley is currently governed by the 2012 Alameda 
County mandatory recycling ordinance, of which the City of Berkeley is a covered 
jurisdiction. Under the ordinance, all businesses must have recycling service and 
businesses that generate 20 or more gallons of organics must have composting service. 
All multi-family properties (5+ units) are required to provide composting and recycling 
service. Businesses and property owners are also required to inform their tenants, 
employees, and contractors of proper composting and recycling technique at least once 
a year, and provide tenants with additional reminders during move-in and move-out.1 

The ordinance is enforced through surprise routine inspections. If a business or multi-
family property is issued two official violation notices, they may receive an 
administrative citation. While citations and fines are issued for non-compliance, multi-
family property owners and managers are not liable for tenants who improperly sort their 
waste.2

BACKGROUND
In 2009, San Francisco successfully implemented compulsory composting for all 
businesses and residences, allowing them to achieve an 80 percent landfill diversion 
rate in 2012 that remains the highest in the country.3 This successful policy laid the 

1 http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/ordinance-overview/
2 http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/my-recycling-rules/
3 https://www.epa.gov/transforming-waste-tool/zero-waste-case-study-san-francisco

Page 1 of 27

181

http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/ordinance-overview/
http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/my-recycling-rules/
https://www.epa.gov/transforming-waste-tool/zero-waste-case-study-san-francisco
rthomsen
Typewritten Text
12



Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery CONSENT CALENDAR December 10, 2019

groundwork for the State of California and other cities across the nation to follow suit 
and introduce legislation to increase composting rates.

California Senate Bill 1383 was introduced by Senator Ricardo Lara and signed into law 
by Governor Jerry Brown in 2016. The legislation establishes a target of a 50 percent 
reduction in statewide organic waste disposal by 2020 and a 75 percent reduction by 
2025, in addition to a 20 percent increase in edible food recovery by 2025.4 SB 1383 
imposes two main requirements onto local jurisdictions: the provision of organic waste 
collection services to all residents and businesses, and the development of an edible 
food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food generators.5

As defined in SB 1383, Tier 1 commercial edible food generators are 1) supermarkets, 
2) grocery stores with a total facility size equal to or greater than 7,500 square feet, 3) 
food service distributors, and 4) wholesale food markets. Tier 2 commercial edible food 
generators are 1) restaurants with 250 or more seats or a total facility size equal to or 
greater than 5,000 square feet, 2) hotels with an onsite food facility and 200 or more 
rooms, 3) health facilities with an onsite food facility and 100 or more beds, 4) large 
venues, 5) large events, 6) state agencies with a cafeteria with 250 or more seats or 
total cafeteria size equal to or greater than 5,000 square feet, and 7) local education 
agency facilities with an onsite food facility.6

California’s climate change initiatives are primarily governed by AB 32 (2006), Executive 
Order B-30-15 (2015), and Executive Order S-3-05 (2005), which establish targets for 
reducing greenhouse gas emissions. The state’s current goals are to reduce emissions 
to 1990 levels by 2020, 40 percent below 1990 levels by 2030, and 80 percent below 
1990 levels by 2050.7 

Improving landfill diversion rates is an important part of the solution. Organic waste that 
is improperly disposed of produces methane, a greenhouse gas which has 28 to 36 
times the Global Warming Potential (GWP) of carbon dioxide over a 100-year period.8 
By diverting organic waste from the landfill, SB 1383 will reduce at least 4 million metric 
tons of statewide greenhouse gas emissions annually by 2030. 

CalRecycle conducted an informal rulemaking process for SB 1383 from February 2017 
to December 2018, and is expected to conclude the year-long formal rulemaking 
process by the end of 2019.9 The City of Berkeley’s Zero Waste Department submitted 
two rounds of formal comments on the draft regulations in July and October 2019. 

Pursuant to the new regulations, local jurisdictions must have their composting and 
edible food recovery programs in place by January 1, 2022, when CalRecycle is 
authorized to begin enforcement actions. The enforcement mechanism is similar to the 

4 https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1383
5 https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/education
6 http://ncrarecycles.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/SB1383_Final-May-Draft-Edible-Regs-Only.pdf
7 https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/cc.htm
8 https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/understanding-global-warming-potentials
9 https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/rulemaking/slcp

Page 2 of 27

182

https://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billNavClient.xhtml?bill_id=201520160SB1383
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/organics/slcp/education
http://ncrarecycles.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/10/SB1383_Final-May-Draft-Edible-Regs-Only.pdf
https://ww3.arb.ca.gov/cc/cc.htm
https://www.epa.gov/ghgemissions/understanding-global-warming-potentials
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/rulemaking/slcp


Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery CONSENT CALENDAR December 10, 2019

enforcement of other solid waste and recycling regulations, in which cities and counties 
can be issued a violation and be subject to enforcement for failure to comply with any 
individual aspect of the regulation. CalRecycle has discretion to determine the level of 
penalty necessary to remedy a violation. 

In order to achieve compliance with state law by 2022, it is imperative that the City of 
Berkeley begin planning as soon as possible. According to CalRecycle’s SB 1383 guide 
for local governments, City Councils and Boards of Supervisors across California must 
“adopt an ordinance or similarly enforceable mechanism that is consistent with these 
regulatory requirements prior to 2022...planning in 2019 will be critical to meet the 
deadline.” 

Implementing the compulsory composting component of SB 1383 will require the City to 
adopt an ordinance that builds on the existing Alameda County ordinance, adding 
composting requirements for residences with 1-4 units and businesses that generate 
fewer than 20 gallons of organic waste. The edible food recovery program component 
necessitates work to ensure that our existing food recovery organizations have enough 
capacity to meet statewide goals, including the consideration of providing additional 
funding for this purpose. 

With the opening of a new warehouse in September 2019, Berkeley Food Network is 
working to establish a food sourcing and distribution hub which will include a food 
recovery program that reduces the amount of edible food sent to landfill. As BFN is 
already a valuable partner to the City and is in the process of forming partnerships with 
food recovery organizations, the Commission should explore ways the City can partner 
with them to meet SB 1383 requirements and further support them in their work.10

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
Staff time and an undetermined amount of funding, contingent on the Commission’s 
recommendations, to bring the City into compliance with state law.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY
This proposal aligns with the City of Berkeley’s Climate Action Plan, which calls for a 
reduction in greenhouse gas emissions by 80 percent below 2000 levels by 2050. As a 
means to achieve this goal, Chapter 5 of the Plan recommends measures to “enhance 
recycling, composting, and source reduction services for residential and non-residential 
buildings.”11 

CONTACT PERSON
Councilmember Rigel Robinson, (510) 981-7170

10 https://berkeleyfoodnetwork.org/about/our-work/
11 https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-
_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/BCAP%20Exec%20Summary4.9.09.pdf

Page 3 of 27

183

https://berkeleyfoodnetwork.org/about/our-work/
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/BCAP%20Exec%20Summary4.9.09.pdf
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/uploadedFiles/Planning_and_Development/Level_3_-_Energy_and_Sustainable_Development/BCAP%20Exec%20Summary4.9.09.pdf


Compulsory Composting and Edible Food Recovery CONSENT CALENDAR December 10, 2019

Attachments:
1: CalRecycle Education and Outreach Resources: An Overview of SB 1383’s Organic 
Waste Reduction Requirements
2: San Francisco Mandatory Recycling and Composting Ordinance
https://sfenvironment.org/sites/default/files/policy/sfe_zw_sf_mandatory_recycling_com
posting_ord_100-09.pdf
3: Recycling Rules Alameda County 
http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/enforcement-overview/ 

Page 4 of 27

184

https://sfenvironment.org/sites/default/files/policy/sfe_zw_sf_mandatory_recycling_composting_ord_100-09.pdf
https://sfenvironment.org/sites/default/files/policy/sfe_zw_sf_mandatory_recycling_composting_ord_100-09.pdf
http://www.recyclingrulesac.org/enforcement-overview/


Note to presenter:  This slide presentation was developed for local jurisdiction staff by CalRecycle 
staff to educate city council members city board members, city and county staff, decision-makers, and 
other impacted colleagues. The slides include suggested talking points. We have also provided a 
handful of slides with artwork, images, and icons that you can use to build new content if needed. 
Please view this presentation in slideshow mode before presenting to familiarize yourself with the 
animations. If you have any questions, you can contact Christina Files in the CalRecycle Office of 
Public Affairs: christina.files@calrecycle.ca.gov.

Presentation Introduction
• SB 1383 (Lara, Chapter 395, Statutes of 2016) is the most significant waste reduction mandate to 

be adopted in California in the last 30 years.
• SB 1383 requires the state to reduce organic waste [food waste, green waste, paper products, 

etc.] disposal by 75% by 2025.  In other words, the state must reduce organic waste disposal by 
more than 20 million tons annually by 2025.

• The law also requires the state to increase edible food recovery by 20 percent by 2025.
• This has significant policy and legal implications for the state and local governments.

1. SB 1383 establishes a statewide target and not a jurisdiction organic waste recycling target. 
2. Given that it is a statewide target and there are not jurisdiction targets, the regulation requires 

a more prescriptive approach (this is different than AB 939).  
A. CalRecycle must adopt regulations that impose requirements necessary to achieve the 

statewide targets.  
B. This makes the regulation more similar to other environmental quality regulations where 

regulated entities, i.e., jurisdictions, are required to implement specific actions, rather 
than achieve unique targets. 

Page 5 of 27

185

mailto:christina.files@calrecycle.ca.gov


a. For example AB 32 established GHG reduction targets for the state, and the 
implementing Cap-and-Trade regulations require businesses to take specific 
actions. 

i. The individual businesses are not required to achieve a specific target. 
ii. They are required to take actions prescribed by the date. 

Overview of Presentation
• Background and Context of SB 1383: Why California passed this law
• SB 1383 Requirements: A big picture look at the law’s requirements and objectives
• Jurisdiction Responsibilities: What SB 1383 requires of local governments

• Provide organic waste collection to all residents and businesses
• Establish an edible food recovery program that recovers edible food from the 

waste stream
• Conduct outreach and education to all affected parties, including generators, 

haulers, facilities, edible food recovery organizations, and city/county 
departments

• Capacity Planning: Evaluating your jurisdiction’s readiness to implement SB 1383
• Procure recycled organic waste products like compost, mulch, and renewable 

natural gas (RNG)
• Inspect and enforce compliance with SB 1383
• Maintain accurate and timely records of SB 1383 compliance

• CalRecycle Oversight Responsibilities 
• SB 1383 Key Implementation Dates
• SB 1383 Key Jurisdiction Dates

Additional Resources
• CalRecycle’s Short-Lived Climate Pollutants (SLCP): Organic Waste Methane 

Emissions Reductions webpage has more information: 
https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/Climate/SLCP/

• CalRecycle’s SB 1383 Rulemaking webpage as more information about the status of 
1383 regulations: https://www.calrecycle.ca.gov/laws/rulemaking/slcp

Page 6 of 27

186



• When we are talking about organic waste for the purposes of SB 1383 we are talking about 
green waste, wood waste, food waste, but also fibers, such as paper and cardboard.

• Organic waste comprises two-thirds of our waste stream. 
• Food waste alone is the largest waste stream in California.

• According to CalRecycle’s last waste characterization study in 2014, food waste 
comprised 18 percent of what we disposed.

• SB 1383 also requires California to recover 20 percent of currently disposed edible food. 
• We currently don’t know how much of the food waste stream is edible. 
• CalRecycle is conducting a new waste characterization study in 2018/19 that is taking a 

closer look at our food waste stream.
• The results of this study will help determine how much edible food waste is landfilled on 

average throughout the state. 
• Here’s what we do know: 

• 1 in 5 children go hungry every night in California – redirecting perfectly edible food that 
is currently being disposed to feed those in need can help alleviate this.

• For every 2 ½ tons of food rescued, that’s the equivalent of taking 1 car off the road for 
a year. (https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator)

Page 7 of 27

187



• Landfilling organic waste leads to the anaerobic breakdown of that material, which creates 
methane. 

• Landfills are responsible for 21% of the state’s methane emissions. Landfills are the third 
largest producer of methane.

• Methane is 72 times more potent than Carbon Dioxide (C02) over a 20-year horizon.
• Climate change may seem like a distant problem, but there are other more localized 

environmental impacts associated with landfill disposal of organic waste that have immediate 
negative impacts on our community now. 

• Landfilling organic waste is a significant source of local air quality pollutants (NOX and 
PM2.5). 

• These pollutants have an immediate negative impact on the air our community and it 
can cause respiratory issues and hospitalizations.  

• Diverting organic waste to recycling can significantly reduce these local air quality 
emissions and the associated negative impacts.

We are starting to see the effects of climate change in cities and counties throughout California.
• Longer droughts and warmer temperatures are drying our forest and contributing to the 

ever increasing number of wildfires in CA (which also impact air quality).
• Cyclical droughts
• Bigger storms
• Coastal erosion due to rising sea levels

• We should not underestimate the cost of these climate change impacts. 
• The state and communities are spending billions fighting wildfires, removing debris and 

rebuilding homes. 
• That means we are paying for the effects of climate change today. 

Page 8 of 27

188



• The financial and public health impacts are here and we need to take action to 
mitigate climate change now

• That is why the state enacted SB 1383, which is designed to reduce the global warming 
gasses like methane, which are the most potent and are “short-lived”

• Reducing this gas now, through actions like organic waste recycling will significantly reduce 
emissions, and will reduce the impacts of climate change in our life time. 

Overview of SB 1383:
• SB 1383 establishes aggressive organic waste reduction targets. 
• SB 1383 also builds upon Mandatory Commercial Organics Recycling law.  Our jurisdiction 

has been implementing this law since 2016. 
• SB 1383 requires Californians to reduce organic waste disposal by 50% by 2020 and 75% by 

2025. 
• These targets use the 2014 Waste Characterization Study measurements when 23 

million tons of organic waste were disposed. 
• These disposal reductions will reduce at least 4 million metric tons of greenhouse gas 

emissions annually by 2030. 
• Additionally as a part of the disposal reduction targets the Legislature directed CalRecycle to 

increase edible food recovery by 20 percent by 2025. 
• The food recovery goal is unique. 

Page 9 of 27

189



Highlighted here on the slide are the key dates for SB 1383 implementation and milestones.  
1. This law, the targets, and the requirements for CalRecycle to adopt regulations were adopted 

in September 2016
2. CalRecycle conducted two years of informal hearings with local governments and stakeholders 

to develop regulatory concepts. 
Formal Rulemaking

1. CalRecycle started the formal regulation rulemaking January 18, 2019, this is expected to 
conclude by the end of 2019.

Regulations Take Effect 
1. The regulations will become enforceable in 2022.

a. Jurisdictions must have their programs in place on January 1, 2022.
Jurisdictions Must Initiate Enforcement

1. In 2024 Jurisdictions will be required to take enforcement against noncompliant entities.
2. Finally, in 2025 the state must achieve the 75 percent reduction and 20 food recovery targets.
3. To meet the deadline of January 1, 2022, CalRecycle expects that jurisdictions will be 

planning and making programmatic and budgetary decisions regarding the 
requirements in advance of the deadline.  

4. CalRecycle can begin enforcement actions on jurisdictions and other entities starting on Jan. 
1, 2022. 

5. The enforcement process on jurisdictions is different than under AB 939:
a. Like many solid waste and recycling regulations, a regulated entity (such as a city or 

county) can be issued a violation and be subject to enforcement for failure to comply 
with any individual aspect of the regulation. This is different from the unique AB 939 
enforcement structure where a jurisdiction’s overall efforts to achieve specific target are 
reviewed in arrears

Page 10 of 27

190



b. Like most regulatory enforcement programs, the enforcing agency (CalRecycle) will 
have discretion to determine the level of penalty necessary to remedy any given 
violation. E.g. A reporting violation may be considered less severe than a failure to 
provide collection services to all generators.

c. CalRecycle will consider certain mitigating factors which are specifically enumerated in 
the regulation. This is not the same as good faith effort but includes similar 
considerations. The specific nuances regarding requirements for state and local 
enforcement will be discussed in the later slides. 

• These timelines mean that we need to start planning now.

 

1. To meet the deadline of January 1, 2022, CalRecycle expects that jurisdictions will be 
planning and making programmatic and budgetary decisions regarding the 
requirements in advance of the deadline.

a. CalRecycle can begin enforcement actions on jurisdictions and other entities starting on 
Jan. 1, 2022. 

2. This slide outlines the major programmatic activities for jurisdictions and the following slides 
will cover more details.

3. In 2024 Jurisdictions will be required to take enforcement against noncompliant entities.
a. There are additional details in the draft regulations regarding the enforcement 

requirements  
4. CalRecycle has some funding through competitive grant programs, as well as a loan program, 

for establishing the infrastructure for recycling organic waste and recovering edible food.  
However, for the programmatic activities, such as enforcement, inspections, education, 
collection we will need to plan for budgetary changes to address these.

Page 11 of 27

191



a. In early 2020 CalRecycle will have a number of tools that we can begin utilizing, such as 
a model enforcement ordinance, franchise agreement models, and education materials.  
Using the 2018 and 2020 Statewide Waste Characterization Studies, jurisdictions will 
have data needed to conduct some of the capacity planning requirements.

b. Although the regulations are not finalized the major components are not expected to 
change.

c. We need to start planning now to have the programmatic and budgetary changes in 
place by January 1, 2022.

Jurisdictions will be required to adequately resource these programs:
1. Provide organic waste collection services to all residents and businesses.

A. This means for all organic waste, including green waste, wood waste, food waste, 
manure, fibers, etc. 

B. Containers have prescribed colors (any shade of grey or black for trash, green for 
organic waste and blue containers for traditional recyclables)

C. There are container labeling and contamination monitoring requirements
D. We need to assess our current collection programs and determine what may need to 

be, expanded, or changed
2. Establish edible food recovery program for all Tier 1 and 2 commercial edible food 

generators
A. This means ensuring that there are edible food recovery organizations that have 

enough capacity
B. This may entail providing funding to ensure there is adequate capacity and collection 

services
3. Conduct education and outreach to all generators

Page 12 of 27

192



A. This will require education to be provided to all generators, and when applicable 
education may need to be provided in Spanish and other languages.

4. Our jurisdiction will be required to procure certain levels of compost, renewable gas 
used for transportation fuels, electricity, heating applications, or pipeline injection, or 
electricity from biomass conversion produced from organic waste. 

5. Plan and secure access for recycling and edible food recovery capacity.
6. We will be required to monitor compliance and conduct enforcement 

A. Monitoring and education must begin in 2022
B. Enforcement actions must start Jan 1, 2024

7. We will need to adopt an ordinance, or similarly enforceable mechanism that is 
consistent with these regulatory requirements prior to 2022.

8. Planning in 2019 will be critical to meet the deadline.
 

1. Jurisdictions should start planning now to get ready for SB 1383 implementation. 
2. This law extends beyond directing waste management and recycling operations and 

staff. 
a. Each department will need to understand how SB 1383 impacts their work. 
b. Recordkeeping and reporting requirements extend to all of these departments, 

and jurisdiction leaders will play a vital role in ensuring compliance with SB 1383. 
• City Councils and Boards of Supervisors will need to pass local enforcement ordinances to 

require all residents and businesses to subscribe to these services.
• City Managers and Chief Administrative Officers will be involved in capacity planning, 

directing procurement of recycled organic products like compost and renewable natural gas, 
and establishing edible food recovery programs. 

Page 13 of 27

193



• Finance and Legal staff will be involved in local enforcement ordinances, new collection fees, 
and ensuring programs are adequately resourced.

• Purchasing staff will be central to procuring recycled organic products, including paper. 
• Procure does not necessarily mean purchase, but this department is likely aware of 

current compost, mulch, RNG, and paper product purchases for the jurisdiction.
• Public Works staff are involved with hauler agreements, local waste management processing 

facilities, and organic waste recycling facilities (like compost and anaerobic digestion facilities). 
They may also be involved in civil engineering activities where compost may be utilized (as in 
erosion control along city streets and embankments).

• Public Parks staff may be involved with assessing the need for local compost application to 
parks and city landscaped areas. 

• Environmental Health staff may be tasked with enforcement duties, including inspecting 
commercial food generators for compliance with edible food recovery requirements.

• Public Transportation and Fleet departments could be involved in procuring renewable 
natural gas for city and county owned vehicles. 

(Note to presenter: You might customize this slide to reflect the collection system for residential and 
commercial recycling programs.  Remember this law/regulation is about all organic waste so that 
means the fibers, foodwaste, greenwaste, manure, etc.)

• The most basic element of the regulation is that jurisdictions are required to provide an 
organic waste collection service to each of their residents and businesses. 

• The regulations also require all residents and businesses to use an organic waste 
recycling service that meets the regulatory requirements.  

• Jurisdictions must have enforceable requirements on its haulers that collect organic waste in 
the jurisdiction, and also for commercial and residential generators and self-haulers.

Page 14 of 27

194



• There is a lot of detail regarding the types of allowable collection programs (several pages of 
regulatory text dedicated just to this).  These are the high level requirements. 

• Each resident and business, must subscribe to an organic waste collection service 
that either “source-separates” the waste (e.g. separate bins), or transports all 
unsegregated waste to a facility that recovers 75 percent of the organic content 
collected from the system. 

• The regulations allow for a menu of collection options.
• A one-can system – you’ll be responsible for ensuring that all contents are 

transported to a facility that recovers 75% of organic content
• A two-can system – at least one of the containers (whichever includes organic 

waste and garbage) must be transported to a facility that recovers 75% of 
organic content

• A three-can system – organic waste is required to be source separated (paper in 
blue, food and yard in green).   No recovery rate

• The three-can option also allows additional separation at the hauler/generators 
discretion… For example some jursidictions provided separate containers for 
yard (green) and food (brown) waste so they can be managed separately

• The same rules will apply to entities not subject to local control, and CalRecycle will oversee 
State Agencies, UCs, CSUs, Community Colleges, K-12 schools and other entities not subject 
to local oversight.  

(Note to presenter: You may want to customize the speaking points depending on how much your 
community is already doing to implement edible food recovery programs)
SB 1383 requires that we strengthen our existing infrastructure for edible food recovery and food 
distribution. 

Page 15 of 27

195



Jurisdictions – are responsible to implement Edible Food Recovery Programs in their communities. 
Even in communities where existing infrastructure already exists, there are new recordkeeping and 
inspection tasks that will need to be implemented. 

• Assess Capacity of Existing Food Recovery 
• Establish Food Recovery Program (And Expand Existing Infrastructure if necessary)
• Inspect Commercial Generators for Compliance
• Education and Outreach

Jurisdictions should get a head start on 1383 implementation by assessing the infrastructure 
that currently exists within your community. Jurisdictions need to assess the following:

• How many commercial generators do you have? How much edible food could they donate? 
• How many food recovery organizations exist, and what is their capacity to receive this 

available food?
• What gaps do we have in our current infrastructure and what do we need to do to close them?
• How can we fund the expansion of edible food recovery organizations? (Grants, partnerships, 

sponsorships, etc.)
• What partnerships currently exist and what new partnerships need to be established?

 CalRecycle will be developing some tools to assist jurisdictions with this assessment.

Jurisdictions must conduct education and outreach to:
1. All businesses and residents regarding collection service requirements, contamination 

standards, self-haul requirements, and overall compliance with 1383
2. Commercial edible food generators regarding edible food donation requirements, and 

available edible food recovery organizations
Educational material must be linguistically accessible to our non-English speaking residents.  

Page 16 of 27

196



• Each jurisdiction will have a minimum procurement target that is linked to its population. 
CalRecycle will notify jurisdictions of their target Prior to January 1, 2022

• The jurisdiction can decide what mix of compost, mulch, biomass derived electricity, or 
renewable gas they want to use to meet their target.

• CalRecycle will provide a calculator with the conversion factors for compost/renewable 
gas/electricity from biomass conversion made from organic waste for a jurisdiction to 
use to calculate progress towards meeting their target. 

• Procurement doesn’t necessarily mean purchase. 
• A jurisdiction that produces its own compost, mulch, renewable gas, or electricity from 

biomass conversion can use that toward the procurement target. Same goes for the 
jurisdiction’s direct service providers (for example, its haulers).

• A jurisdiction can use compost or mulch for erosion control, soil amendment, soil 
cover, parks/open spaces, giveaways.

• A jurisdiction can use renewable gas to fuel their fleets, or a jurisdiction’s waste 
hauler could use renewable gas to fuel their trucks. Renewable gas can be used 
for transportation fuels, electricity, or heating applications.

•SB 1383 also requires that jurisdictions procure recycled-content paper when it is 
available at the same price or less then virgin material.

•Finally procured paper products must meet FTC recyclability guidelines (essentially products 
we purchase must be recyclable).

Page 17 of 27

197



 
(Note to presenter: If your Jurisdiction already enforces CalGreen and MWELO, then you would 
address that this would not be a new requirement, or this slide could be eliminated.)

Jurisdictions will have to adopt and ordinance or other enforceable requirement that requires 
compliance with CalGreen and Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance requirements (California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 11):

•Providing readily accessible areas for recycling containers in commercial and multi-family units
•Recycling organic waste commingled with C&D debris, to meet CalGreen 65% requirement for 

C&D recycling in both residential and non-residential projects
•Require new construction and landscaping projects to meet Water Efficient Landscape 

requirements for compost and mulch application. 

Page 18 of 27

198



 

(Note to presenter: You might customize this slide if you have already secured adequate capacity for 
your organic recyclables.)
In California today we have about 180 compost facilities with 34 of them accepting food waste. 

•We have 14 AD facilities accepting solid waste. 
•There is also a significant number of Waste Water Treatment Plants that could be leveraged to 

use for co-digestion of food waste.  
•It will take a significant number of new facilities to recycle an additional 20-25 million tons of 

organic waste annually. CalRecycle estimates we will need 50-100 new or expanded 
facilities (depending on the size of each new facility this number could fluctuate).

Page 19 of 27

199



Key Points:
1. Each jurisdiction must plan for adequate capacity for recycling organic waste and for 

edible food recovery
A. For edible food recovery capacity each jurisdiction must plan to recover 20 

percent of the edible food for human consumption, must identify Tier 1 and 2 
commercial edible food generators, and funding for edible food recovery 
infrastructure

2. Each county will lead this effort by coordinating with the cities in the county to estimate 
existing, new and/or expanded capacity.

3. Counties and cities must demonstrate that they have access to recycling capacity through 
existing contracts, franchise agreements, or other documented arrangements.

4. There are requirements for each jurisdiction to consult with specified entities to determine 
organic waste recycling capacity, such as the Local Enforcement Agency, Local Task 
Force, owners/operators of facilities, community composting operations, and from citizens, 
such as disadvantaged communities, i.e., to discuss the benefits and impacts associated 
with expansions/new facilities.

5. For edible food recovery the county and city must contact edible food recovery 
organizations that serve the jurisdiction to determine how much existing, new and/or 
planned capacity if available.

6. If capacity cannot be guaranteed, then each jurisdiction within the county that lacks 
capacity must submit an implementation schedule to CalRecycle that includes specified 
timelines and milestones, including funding for the necessary recycling or edible food 
recovery facilities.

7. The County must collect data from the cities on a specified schedule and report to 
CalRecycle.  Cities are required to provide the required data to the County within 120 days.

Page 20 of 27

200



A. Start year for planning and reporting is 2022 – that report must cover 
2022-2025. 

B. Subsequent reports will be due every 5 years, and will plan for a 10-year 
horizon

• By January 1, 2022, Jurisdictions are required to have:
• An enforcement mechanism or ordinance in place, yet they are not required to enforce 

until 2024.
• Between Jan 2022 and Dec 2023, jurisdictions need to:

• Identify businesses in violation and provide educational material to those generators 
• The focus during the first 2 years is on educating generators.  
• The goal is to make sure every generator has an opportunity to comply 

before mandatory jurisdiction enforcement comes into effect in 2024.  
• The regulations allow 2 years for education and compliance.

• After January 2024, jurisdictions shall take progressive enforcement against organic waste 
generators that are not in compliance.  

• The progressive approach allows for notification to the generator and provides ample 
time for the generator to comply before penalties are required to be issued by the 
jurisdiction.  

• CalRecycle sets a maximum timeframe that a jurisdiction has to issue a Notice of 
Violation and issue penalties to a generator.  

• The jurisdiction has the flexibility to develop its own enforcement process within these 
parameters.  

• When a Jurisdiction determines a violation occurred the jurisdiction is required to, 
at a minimum:

Page 21 of 27

201



• Issue a Notice of Violation within 60 days of determining a violation. 
• If the generator still has not complied within 150 days from the issuance of 

the Notice of Violation, then the jurisdiction is responsible to issue 
penalties

• The 150 days, between the Notice and Violation and the penalty 
phase, allows the jurisdiction to use other methods to achieve 
compliance prior to being required to issue penalties.  Therefore, 
only the most recalcitrant violators will need to be fined.  

• The regulations allow a generator to be out of compliance for a total 
210 days, before penalties must be issued.

• The regulations set a minimum penalty amount of at least $50 for the first offense 
within one year and can go up to $500 a day for multiple offenses occurring 
within one year.  

• An early robust education program will minimize the amount of future enforcement 
action needed

(Note to Presenter: If needed, customize the next couple of slides to fit the type of collection service 
that your City has/will have for residential and commercial.  You may have residential on 3-container, 
multifamily on single or 2-container and businesses having all three depending on the business.)

• If a Jurisdiction is using a 3- or 2-bin organic waste collection service they are required to do:
• Annual compliance review of commercial businesses just as we should be doing 

now with AB 1826 Mandatory Commercial Recycling
• Commercial businesses that generate 2 CY or more per week of solid waste 

(trash, recycling, organics), 

Page 22 of 27

202



• Note: commercial businesses include multi-family dwellings of five units or 
more

• This can be a desk audit to review reports from our haulers to verify that service 
is provided or that they are complying through self-hauling or backhauling

• 2- or 3-Collection Service: 
• Route reviews: We are supposed to conduct route reviews of commercial 

businesses and residential areas.  The route reviews check for: 
• Verifying subscription (validating the desk review)

• This entails seeing that the business has the appropriate 
external containers.

• If a business does not use the hauler’s service, then 
verifying the business is self-hauling would be necessary.  
As noted earlier this is same type of action that AB 1826 
already requires

• Note: This random inspection of routes does not require 
going inside a business to verify that the business has 
appropriate containers/labels inside of the business.

• Monitoring for contamination on
• Randomly selected containers, and ensuring all collection routes 

are reviewed annually and that contamination is being monitored in 
the collection containers and education is provided if there is an 
issue

OR
• A jurisdiction has the option of conducting waste composition 

studies every six months to identify if there are prohibited container 
contaminants. If there is more than 25 percent prohibited container 
contaminants, then additional education must be provided 

• The Route Reviews can be done by our hauler(s)
• Single Unsegregated Collection Service: Same as the 2- or 3-bin service except:

• We will need to verify with our hauler(s) that the contents are transported 
to a high diversion organic waste processing facility and that the facility is 
meeting the requirements of the organic content recovery rate

• Note: The department will be identifying in the future what facilities 
are high diversion organic waste processing facilities as the 
facilities will be reporting to CalRecycle.

• There are no route reviews required

Page 23 of 27

203



(Note to Presenter:  If your jurisdiction is already implementing an edible food recovery program and 
conducting inspections, such as through the Health Department you will want to revise the talking 
points.)
Edible Food Recovery Program

• These types of inspections will be new for our jurisdiction.
• We will need to plan resources to conduct these inspections.

• We might consider partnering with Health Inspectors that are 
already visiting food generators.

• Inspections on Tier One edible food generators in 2022 and Tier Two in 2024
• Verify they have arrangements with a food recovery organization
• Verify that the food generators are not intentionally spoiling food 

that can be recovered

Page 24 of 27

204



•Our jurisdiction will have to maintain all information in an Implementation Record.
• Many sections require a minimum level of recordkeeping such as “ordinances, 

contracts, and franchise agreements”.
• This graphic is a snapshot of items to be kept in the Implementation Record.
• CalRecycle staff may review the implementation record as part of an audit of 

our program.
• The Implementation Record needs to be stored in one central location

• It can be kept as a physical or electronic record
• It needs to be accessible to CalRecycle staff within ten business days
• It needs to be retained for five years

Page 25 of 27

205



Enforcement – CalRecycle will authorize low population and rural area waivers.  In the case of 
entities such as public universities, which may be exempt from local solid waste oversight, 
CalRecycle will be directly responsible for ensuring compliance. This will be monitored through 
CalRecycle’s existing state agency monitoring process. 
CalRecycle will be evaluating a Jurisdiction’s Compliance. 

For example:
• Verifying that all organic waste generators have service
• Jurisdictions are providing education
• Issuing Notices of Violation within the correct timeline

SB 1383 is a Statewide target and not a jurisdiction organic waste diversion target.  Unlike with 
AB 939 where there was a specified target for each jurisdiction, SB 1383 prohibits a jurisdiction 
target.  Due to this structure:

• The regulations require a more prescriptive approach, and establishes state 
minimum standards.

• Jurisdictions will have to demonstrate compliance with each of the prescriptive 
standards rather than the determination of a Good Faith Effort, which uses 
a suite of indicators to determine if a jurisdiction is actively trying to implement  
programs and achieve targets

Under the SB 1383 regulations if CalRecycle determines a jurisdiction is violating one or more of 
the requirements, 

• A jurisdiction will be noticed and will have 90 days to correct.  
• Most violations should be able to be corrected in this timeframe.  For cases 

where the jurisdiction may need a little additional time, the timeframe can be 
expanded to 180 days  

Page 26 of 27

206



• For violations that are due to barriers outside the jurisdictions control 
and which may take more time to correct, the regulations allow for the 
jurisdiction to be placed on a Corrective Action Plan (CAP), allowing up to 24 
months to comply.  In these cases, it must be apparent that the jurisdiction has 
taken substantial effort to comply but cannot due to extenuating circumstances 
(such as a lack of capacity, disaster).

• An initial corrective action plan issued due to inadequate capacity of organic 
waste recovery facilities may be extended for a period of up to 12 months if the 
jurisdiction meets the requirements and timelines of its CAP and has 
demonstrated substantial effort to CalRecycle.

The Corrective Action Plan [or CAP] is modeled off of the Notice and Order Process that is used for 
noncompliance at solid waste facilities, where a number of steps or milestones must be taken by the 
solid waste facility operator prior to being able to fully comply.

Regarding eligibility for a CAP failure of a governing body to adopt and ordinance, or adequately 
fund/resource a program IS NOT considered substantial effort or an Extenuating Circumstance and 
will not allow a violation to be subject to a Corrective Action Plan.

(Note to presenter:  If you have been participating in the regulatory workshops you might customize 
this slide.  If you haven’t been participating you might consider using this slide to discuss next steps 
with your elected officials and executive management.)
Jurisdictions are encouraged to participate in the 1383 regulatory process.

Page 27 of 27

207


	05-11 Agenda - Agenda Committee
	04-27 Minutes - Agenda Committee
	Draft 5-26 Agenda - Council
	Draft Item 22 Business Damage Mitigation Fund
	Draft Item 23 Support a Global Ceasefire
	Draft Item 24 Urgency Ordinance 
	Item 05 Upcoming Workshops
	Item 06 Council Referrals
	Item 07 Land Use Calendar
	Item 08 Discussion of Potential Revisions
	Item 09 Discssion Regarding City Council
	Item 10 Discussion Regarding Impact
	Item 11 Amendments to the Berkeley
	Item 12 Referral Compulsory Composting



